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Given the significant judgment used in estimating the allowance for loan losses, Vive's and Four' s loan loss reserves may not
be sufficient to cover actual losses. Future increases in the allowances for credit losses or actual write- offs will result in a
decrease in net earnings and may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Risks Related to Our Indebtedness We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service all of our indebtedness, and may be
forced to take other actions to satisfy our obligations under our indebtedness, which may not be successful. Our ability to make
scheduled payments on or refinance our debt obligations, including the Senior Notes, depends on our financial condition and
operating performance, which are subject to prevailing economic and competitive conditions and to certain financial, business,
legislative, regulatory and other factors beyond our control. We may be unable to maintain a level of cash flows from operating
activities sufficient to permit us to pay the principal, premium, if any, and interest on our indebtedness, including the Senior
Notes. If our cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations, we may face substantial
liquidity problems and may be forced to reduce or delay investments and capital expenditures or to dispose of material assets or
operations, seek additional debt or equity capital or restructure or refinance our indebtedness. We may not be able to effect any
such alternative measures, if necessary, on commercially reasonable terms or at all and, even if successful, those alternative
actions may not allow us to meet our scheduled debt service obligations. The Revolving Facility and the indenture that governs
the Senior Notes restrict our ability to dispose of assets and use the proceeds from those dispositions and may also restrict our
ability to raise debt or equity capital to be used to repay other indebtedness when it becomes due. We may not be able to
consummate those dispositions or to obtain proceeds in an amount sufficient to meet any debt service obligations then due. In
addition, we conduct our operations through our subsidiaries. Accordingly, repayment of our indebtedness is dependent on the
generation of cash flow by our subsidiaries and their ability to make such cash available to us, by dividend, debt repayment or
otherwise. Unless they are guarantors of the Senior Notes or our other indebtedness, our subsidiaries do not have any obligation
to pay amounts due on the senior notes or our other indebtedness or to make funds available for that purpose. Our subsidiaries
may not be able to, or may not be permitted to, make distributions to enable us to make payments in respect of our indebtedness.
Each subsidiary is a distinct legal entity, and, under certain circumstances, legal and contractual restrictions may limit our ability
to obtain cash from our subsidiaries. While the indenture that governs the senior notes and the Revolving Facility limit the
ability of our subsidiaries to incur consensual restrictions on their ability to pay dividends or make other intercompany payments
to us, these limitations are subject to qualifications and exceptions. In the event that we do not receive distributions from our
subsidiaries, we may be unable to make required principal and interest payments on our indebtedness. Our inability to generate
sufficient cash flows to satisfy our debt obligations, or to refinance our indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms or at all,
would materially and adversely affect our financial position and results of operations and our ability to satisfy our obligations
under our Senior Notes and Revolving Facility. If we cannot make scheduled payments on our debt, we will be in default and
holders of the Senior Notes may declare all outstanding principal and interest to be due and payable, the lenders under the
Revolving Facility may terminate their commitments to loan money and we may be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation.
Despite our current level of indebtedness, we and our subsidiaries may still be able to incur substantially more debt. This may
further exacerbate the risks to our financial condition described above. We and our subsidiaries may be able to incur significant
additional indebtedness in the future. Although the indenture that governs the Senior Notes and the Revolving Facility contain
restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness, these restrictions are subject to a number of qualifications and
exceptions, and the additional indebtedness incurred in compliance with these restrictions may be substantial. These restrictions
also will not prevent us from incurring obligations that do not constitute indebtedness. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , we
would have had undrawn commitments available to be borrowed under the Revolving Facility of ap-te-$ 300 356-8-million. We
also would have had available to us an uncommitted incremental facility under the Revolving Facility of up to $ 300. 0 million,
with availability subject to satisfaction of certain conditions. If new debt is added to our current debt levels, the related risks that
we and our subsidiaries now face may intensify. The terms of the Revolving Facility and the indenture that governs the Senior
Notes may restrict our current and future business plans and strategies, particularly our ability to respond to changes or to take
certain actions. The indenture that governs the Senior Notes and the Revolving Facility contain a number of restrictive
covenants that impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us and may limit the extent to which, or our ability to,
engage in acts that may be in our long- term best interest, including restrictions on our ability to: * incur additional indebtedness
and guarantee indebtedness; ¢ pay dividends or make other distributions or repurchase or redeem capital stock; ¢ prepay, redeem
or repurchase certain debt;  issue certain preferred stock or similar equity securities; * make loans and investments; ¢ sell assets;
* incur liens; © enter into transactions with affiliates; ¢ alter the businesses we conduct; ¢ enter into agreements restricting our
subsidiaries' ability to pay dividends; and * consolidate, merge or sell all or substantially all of our assets. In addition, the
restrictive covenants in the Revolving Facility require us to maintain specified financial ratios, such as a consolidated interest
coverage ratio and a total net debt to EBITDA ratio, and satisfy other financial condition tests. Our ability to meet those
financial ratios and tests can be affected by events beyond our control, and we may be unable to meet them. A breach of the
covenants or restrictions under the indenture that governs the Senior Notes or under the Revolving Facility may result in an
event of default under the applicable indebtedness. Such a default may allow the creditors to accelerate the related debt and may
result in the acceleration of any other debt to which a cross- acceleration or cross- default provision applies. In addition, an event
of default under the Revolving Facility would permit the lenders under our Revolving Facility to terminate all commitments to



extend further credit under that facility. In the event our lenders or noteholders accelerate the repayment of our borrowings, we
and our subsidiaries may not have sufficient assets to repay that indebtedness. As a result of these restrictions, we may be: ¢
limited in how we conduct our business; * unable to raise additional debt or equity financing to operate during general economic
or business downturns, or at other times; or ® unable to compete effectively or to take advantage of new business opportunities.
These restrictions may affect our ability to grow in accordance with our strategy. In addition, our financial results, our
substantial indebtedness and our credit ratings may adversely affect the availability and terms of our financing. Our variable rate
indebtedness subjects us to interest rate risk, which may cause our debt service obligations to increase significantly. Borrowings
under our Revolving Facility are at variable rates of interest and expose us to interest rate risk. If interest rates were to increase,
our debt service obligations on the variable rate indebtedness would increase even though the amount borrowed remained the
same, and our net income and cash flows, including cash available for servicing our indebtedness, will correspondingly
decrease. Assuming all loans are fully drawn, each quarter point change in interest rates would result in a $ 0. 9 million change
in annual interest expense on our indebtedness under our Revolving Facility. In the future, we may enter into interest rate swaps
that involve the exchange of floating for fixed rate interest payments in order to reduce interest rate volatility. However, we may
not maintain interest rate swaps with respect to all of our variable rate indebtedness, and any swaps we enter into may not fully
mitigate our interest rate risk. RisksRelate i e lovembe

g q & y Sssisams trisd of-who aw-1sS-bethg-appHed:
General Risk Factors Our stock price is volatile, and you may not be able to recover your investment if our stock price declines.
The stock market in general, and our stock in particular, has recently experienced significant volatility and the price of our stock
may continue to fluctuate significantly. In particular, we cannot assure that you will be able to resell your shares at or above

your purchase price. Among the factors that may affect our stock price are: * how our actual financial performance compares to

the financial performance outlook we provide; * quarterly variations in our key operating metrics, such as revenue, active



customer count, GMV and profitability that are not necessarily indicative of longer- term operating performance and valuation;
the stock price performance of comparable companies and quarterly variations in their results of operations;  changes in
earnings estimates or buy / sell recommendations by securities or industry analysts; ¢ investor perceptions of us and our industry;
« federal, state or local regulatory proposals, initiatives, actions or changes that are, or are perceived to be, adverse to our
operations, including any continuing impacts of the FTC Settlement as discussed above; * actions by institutional and" activist"
shareholders, including future purchases and sales of our stock; ¢ our capital allocation strategy and financial policies, including
continued share repurchases under our current share repurchase program as discussed above; ¢ additions or departures of key
personnel; and ¢ continuing uncertain macroeconomic conditions, in particular those relating to persistent inflationary
pressures and elevated interest rates for prolonged periods . In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a
company' s securities, class action litigation has often been instituted against the affected company. Any litigation of this type
brought against us may result in substantial costs and a diversion of our management' s attention and resources, which would
harm our business, results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. If we fail to establish and maintain effective
internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures, we may not be able to accurately report our
financial results, or report them in a timely manner. As a public company, we are required to document and test our internal
control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 so that our management can certify,
on an annual basis, that our internal control over financial reporting is effective. In addition, we are required to, among other
things, establish and periodically evaluate procedures with respect to our disclosure controls and procedures. If we fail to
establish and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures, we may not be
able to accurately report our financial results, or report them in a timely manner, which may cause a decline in our stock price
and adversely affect several aspects of our performance. In addition, if our senior management is unable to conclude that we
have effective internal control over financial reporting, or to certify the effectiveness of such controls, or if our independent
registered public accounting firm cannot render an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting, when required, or if material weaknesses in our internal controls are identified, we may be subject to increased
regulatory scrutiny and a loss of public and investor confidence, which may also have a material adverse effect on our business
and our stock price. Our risk management processes and procedures may not be effective in mitigating our risks. We continue to
establish and enhance processes and procedures intended to identify, measure, monitor, manage and control the types of risk to
which we are subject, including, but not limited to, decisioning risks related to the leases and loans Pregressive-EeasingVive
and-Four—- our businesses originate, strategic risk, regulatory risk and operational risk. We seek to monitor, manage and control
our risk exposure through a framework that includes our risk appetite, enterprise risk assessment process, risk policies,
procedures and controls, reporting requirements, risk culture and governance structure. Our framework, however, may not
always effectively identify and control our risks. In addition, there may also be risks that exist, or that develop in the future, that
we have not appropriately anticipated, identified or mitigated. If our risk management framework does not effectively identify,
manage and control our risks, both those we are aware of and those we do not anticipate, including as a result of changes in
economic conditions, we may suffer unexpected losses that may have a material and adverse effect on several aspects of our
performance. If securities or industry analysts publish research that is unfavorable about our business, our stock price and
trading volume may decline. As described above, the trading market for our common stock depends in part on the research and
reports that securities or industry analysts publish about our business. We currently have a limited number of analysts who are
publishing research about us. In the event that one or more of our analysts downgrades our stock or publishes misleading or
unfavorable research about our business, our stock price may decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of the
Company, demand for our stock may decrease, which may cause our stock price or trading volume to decline. Our actual
operating results may differ significantly from our guidance. From time to time, we issue guidance in our quarterly earnings
conference calls, or otherwise, regarding our future performance that represents our management' s estimates as of the date of
release. This guidance, which constitutes forward- looking statements, is based upon a number of management' s assumptions
and estimates that, while presented with numerical specificity, are inherently subject to significant business, economic and
competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control, and are based upon specific assumptions
with respect to future business decisions, some of which will change. While we have stated and we intend to continue to state
possible outcomes as high and low ranges that are intended to provide a sensitivity analysis as variables change, we can provide
no assurances that actual results will not fall outside of the suggested ranges. The principal reason we release guidance is to
provide a basis for our management to discuss our business outlook with analysts and investors. We do not accept any
responsibility for any projections or reports published by any of these persons. Guidance is necessarily speculative in nature, and
it can be expected that some or all of the assumptions underlying the guidance furnished by us will prove to be incorrect or will
vary significantly from actual results. For example, on a number of occasions over the last several years, we adjusted our
guidance when actual results varied from our assumptions. Accordingly, our guidance is only an estimate of what management
believes is realizable as of the date of release. Actual results will vary from our guidance, and the variations may be material.
We are a holding company and are dependent on the operations and funds of our subsidiaries. As a holding company, we are
dependent on dividends, distributions and other payments from our subsidiaries, particularly Progressive Leasing, (i) to fund
payments on our obligations, including debt obligations, (ii) to provide funding and capital as needed to our operating
subsidiaries, and (iii) to repurchase shares and pay dividends, to the extent our Board of Directors approves them. ITEM 1B.
UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS None. ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY The Company maintains a cybersecurity program
designed to detect, identify, classify and mitigate cybersecurity and other data security threats, as part of its efforts to protect and
maintain the confidentiality and security of customer, employee and vendor information, and non- public information about the
Company. This cybersecurity program is based in- part on, and its maturity is measured using, the U. S. Department of
Commerce’ s National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Cybersecurity Framework. In furtherance of detecting,



identifying, classifying and mitigating cybersecurity and other data security threats, the Company also: * adopted and maintains
information security and privacy policies; ¢ conducts targeted audits and penetration tests throughout the year, using both
internal and external resources; * engages nationally- known third party cybersecurity consultants to independently evaluate the
Company' s information security maturity on a regular basis; * maintains a vendor risk management program, which includes
receiving the results of cybersecurity audits conducted on vendors, for a portion of our vendors, and eenduet-conducting cyber
related risk assessments on other vendors; ¢ provides mandatory security and privacy training and awareness to all of its
employees so that employees understand the behaviors and requirements necessary to safeguard information resources at the
Company; » maintains cyber liability insurance; and * complies with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard. The
Company has a dedicated team of employees overseeing its cybersecurity program and initiatives, led by the Company' s Chief
Information Security Officer (who has over twenty years' experience working in cyber and information security roles with large
companies, including multiple senior executive positions), and works directly in consultation with internal and external advisors
in connection with these efforts. Pursuant to the Company' s cybersecurity program, potential cybersecurity threats are classified
by risk levels and threat mitigation efforts are typically prioritized based on those risk classifications, while focus also remains
on maintaining the resiliency of the Company' s information systems. In the event the Company identifies a potential
cybersecurity issue, the Company has defined procedures for responding to such issues, including procedures that address when
and how to engage with Company management, the Board of Directors, other stakeholders and law enforcement. In addition, the
Company m&rnfarns—a-n—Enfefpﬂse- s Chlef Informatlon Securlty Ofﬁcer and other Information Security Department
managers meet with Comm al-g entor-cxecutives and other employees thatmeet
from various departments on a regular bas1s to pfeﬁde—evefﬁght—mfh—fespeet—te-dlscuss cybersecurity risk mitigation and
the Company' s cybersecurity program and initiatives. The Company' s Board of Directors has ultimate oversight responsibility
for risks relating to the Company' s cybersecurity program. In addition, the Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in
monitoring the Company' s cybersecurity investments, initiatives, key benchmarks and risk mitigation plans, and regularly
receives updates about such matters from the Company' s Chief Information Security Officer, and makes inquiries of the
Company' s management team, internal auditors and independent auditors in connection therewith. In addition, the Company' s
Enterprise Risk Management Committee, which is comprised of members of the Company' s executive leadership team, is
informed on a regular basis about, and monitors, the Company' s efforts and initiatives to prevent, detect, mitigate and remediate
cybersecurity- related risks, and to further improve the Company' s cybersecurity maturity, including through presentations it
receives from the Company' s Chief Information Security Officer. Conducting the Company' s businesses involves the
collection, storage, use, disclosure, processing, transfer, and other handling of a wide variety of information, including
personally identifiable information, for various purposes in the Company' s businesses, including to help ensure the integrity of
the Company' s services and to provide features and functionality to the Company’ s customers and POS partners. Like other
companies that process a wide variety of information, the Company' s information technology systems, networks and
infrastructure and technology have been, and may in the future be, vulnerable to cybersecurity attacks and other data security
threats. These types of attacks are constantly evolving, may be difficult to detect quickly, and often are not recognized until after
they have been launched against a target. For example, and as the Company previously disclosed, Progressive Leasing
experienced a cybersecurity incident in September 2023, which affected certain of its systems. While there was no major
operational impact to any of Progressive Leasing’ s services as a result of the incident, and the Company’ s other subsidiaries
were not impacted, this incident, as well as any other breach of the Company’ s systems or facilities, or those of Progressive
Leasing, Vive , Four, or Feur;-the Company' s other strategic operations may continue to result in cybersecurity- related
risks. For more information about these and other cybersecurity risks faced by the Company, see Part 1. Item 1A." Risk
Factors." ITEM 2. PROPERTIES The Company leases management and information technology space for corporate functions
under operating leases expiring at various times through 26272028 . Most of the leases contain renewal options for additional
periods ranging from three to five years. The following table sets forth certain information regarding our corporate and segment
management facilities as of December 31, 2623-2024 : FOCATHONSEGMENTLOCATIONISEGMENT ., PRIMARY USE
AND HOW HELDSQ. FT. Draper, Utah%Preg-resswe» UtahProgressive Lcasing and Vive — Corporate Management — Leased
+48-74 , 000 Glendale-Aventura , FloridaFour Arizenat; 2ProgressiveLeastng-— Corporate Management — Leased-Leased6
, 69769 --666-1 The Company previously leased offices for corporate management of its Progressive Leasing segment in
Glendale, Arizona. During 2022, the office space in Arizona was consolidated to a single floor as part of the Company' s
restructuring initiatives and partial impairment was recognized for the abandoned portion of the right- of- use lease asset. 2-On
January 25, 2024, the Company announced that it had taken several restructuring actions, including the planned-reduction and
consolidation of its office space in Utah and Arizona. During the first quarter of 2024, the Company wit-reduee-reduced its
office space in Utah by 50 % and completely waeate-vacated the office space in Arizona . The closure of the office space in
Arizona was not due to a reduction in the workforce there , and-but rather, was due to the employees who had worked in
that space being allowed to permanently work from home. A corresponding impairment was wi-be-recognized for the
abandoned right- of- use lease assets. The existing leasc agreements— agreement for Utah and-Arizona-expire-expires in August
2027 and-Mareh 2025 respeetively-. We believe that all of our facilities are well maintained and adequate for their current and
reasonably foreseeable uses. ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS From time to time, we are party to various legal proceedings
arising in the ordinary course of business. While any proceeding contains an element of uncertainty, we do not currently believe
that any of the outstanding legal proceedings to which we are a party will have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial position or results of operations. However, an adverse resolution of a number of these items may have a material
adverse impact on our business, financial position or results of operations. For further information, see Note +8-9 in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements under the heading" Legal Proceedings," which discussion is incorporated by
reference in response to this Item 3. ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES Not applicable. PART II ITEM 5. MARKET




FOR REGISTRANT' S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES Market Information, Holders and Dividends Effective December 1, 2020, all shares of the Company' s
common stock were trading as a single class on the New York Stock Exchange (" NYSE") under the ticker symbol" PRG." The
CUSIP number of the Company' s common stock is 74319R101. The number of sharcholders of record of the Company' s
common stock at February -1-6-14 %9%4—2025 was 439—165 The closrng prlce for the common %tock at February -1-6-14 %924
2025 was $ -3-1—42 82 - 3 d v

ﬁ%Beafd—ef—Btfeefers—deems—re*evaﬂt— I%suer Purehaqee of Equrty Securrtreq The followrng table presents our ihare repurchase
activity for the three months ended December 31, 2623-2024 : PeriodTotal Number of Shares PurchasedAverage Price Paid Per
ShareTotal Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or ProgramsMaximum Dollar Value of Shares
that May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs1October 1, 2823-2024 through October 31, 2023268-202475 , 000 $
2743 . 95 75 200, 000 $ 223-398 . 456-516 , 364-145 November |, 2023-2024 through November 30, 2023683-2024485 . 309
OH32816-683;-943204188;-047 47. 55 485, 309 375, 437, 702 December 1, 2023-2024 through December 31, 2023226
2024300 , 000 29-46 . 48226-96 300 , 000 +57-361 , 762-349 , 595-Fetalt-309 Tota1860 +63-309 860 , 309 9—1—3—1—1—93—9—1—3—1
Share repurchases are conducted under authorizations made from time to time by the Company' s Board of Directors. The
authorization, effective Nevember3-February 21 , 202+-2024 , provided the Company with the ability to repurchase shares up
to a maximum amount of $ 500 +—6-biHierrmillion . Subject to the terms of the Board' s authorization and applicable law,
repurchases may be made at such times and in such amounts as the Company deems approprrate Repurchaseq may be
discontinued at any time —O1 h 0 0

Securrtreq Authorrzed for I%suance Under Equrty Compen@atron Plan% lnformatlon concerning the Company s equity
compensation plans is set forth in Item 12 of Part IIT of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Performance Graph Comparison of 5
Year Cumulative Total Return * Among PROG Holdings, Inc., the S & P MidCap 400 Index, the S & P SmallCap 600 Index,
and the S & P North American Technology Sector Index * $ 100 invested on 12 /31 /48-19 in stock or index, including
reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending December 31. The line graph above and the table below compare, for the last five
years, the yearly dollar change in the cumulative total shareholder returns (assuming reinvestment of dividends) on the
Company' s common stock with that of the S & P MidCap 400 Index, the S & P SmallCap 600 Index, and the S & P North
American Technology Sector Index. The Company was previously included in the S & P MidCap 400 Index, but moved to the S
& P SmallCap 600 Index in April 2022. The spin- off of The Aaron' s Company on November 30, 2020 was reflected as a $ 9.
60 per share special dividend in calculating the PROG Holdings cumulative total shareholder return. Shareholders of PROG
Holdings received one share of The Aaron' s Company for every two shares of PROG Holdings common stock in the
distribution related to the separation and spin- off. The $ 9. 60 per share special dividend was based on the November 30, 2020
closing price of one share of The Aaron' s Company common stock, on a" when issued" basis, which was $ 19. 19, adjusted for
the distribution ratio. December 3 1, 264826492020262420222023PROG----- 201920202021202220232024PROG Holdings,
Inc. $ 100. 00 $ 436-109 . +5-20 $ 14891 . 6945 $ 34. 424 24 515 4662 $85-. 3166 $ 86. 73 S & P MidCap 400100. 00
126-113 . 26-66 141. 80 123. 28 143. 44178-54 163 . 54 95455-5848+45-S & P SmallCap 600100. 00 111 2278143664
+73- 29 +45-141 . 3946813 118 . 73-41 137. 42 149. 37 S & P North American Technology Sector100. 00 +42-145 . 6826715
183 . 47 H-118 26+ 791+69-60 191 . 22272-10 260 . 66-04 I[TEM 6. [ RESERVED ] ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT' S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS The following
Management' s Discussion and Analysis (" MD & A") is intended to help the reader understand the results of operations and
financial condition of PROG Holdings, Inc. and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the
accompanying notes. Throughout the MD & A we refer to various notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements which appear
in Item 8 of this Form 10- K. The following discussion may contain forward- looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates
and beliefs and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results may differ materially from those discussed in
these forward- looking statements. Factors that may cause or contribute to these differences include those discussed in Item 1A.
Risk Factors and" Forward- Looking Statements" of this Form 10- K. Business Overview PROG Holdings, Inc. (" we , " 7" our
," 7" us," sthe" Company , " ;or" PROG Holdings") is a financial technology holding company that provides transparent and
competltrve payment options to consumers. PROG Holdings has two reportable segments: (i) Progressive Leasing, an in- store,
app- based, and e- commerce point- of- sale lease- to- own solutions provider; and (ii) Vive Financial (" Vive"), an omnichannel
provider of second- look revolving credit products. Our Progressive Leasing segment provides consumers with lease- purchase
solutions through its point- of- sale partner locations and e- commerce website partners (collectively," POS partners"). It does so
by purchasing merchandise from the POS partners desired by customers and, in turn, leasing that merchandise to the customers
through a cancellable lease- to- own transaction. Progressive Leasing has no stores of its own, but rather offers lease- purchase
solutions to the customers of traditional and e- commerce retailers. The Progressive Leasing segment comprised approximately
9796 % of our consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . Our Vive segment primarily serves
customers that may not qualify for traditional prime lending offers who desire to purchase goods and services from participating
merchants. Vive offers customized programs, with services that include revolving loans through private label and Vive- branded



credit cards. Vive' s current network of POS partner locations and e- commerce websites includes furniture, mattresses, home
exercise equipment, and home improvement retailers, as well as medical and dental service providers. The Vive segment
comprised approximately 3 % of our consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . OnFune 25,2021 the
Company-eompleted-the-aequisitionrof-Four Technologies, Inc. (" Four"), aninnovative-is a Buy Now, Pay Later (" BNPL")
company that allows shoppers to pay for merchandise through four interest- free installments. Four' s proprietary platform
capabilities and its base of customers and retailers expand PROG Holdings' ecosystem of financial technology offerings by
introducing a payment solution that further diversifies the Company' s consumer financial technology offerings. Shoppers use
Four to purchase furniture, clothing, electronics, health and beauty products, footwear, jewelry, and other consumer goods from
retailers across the United States. Four is not a reportable segment for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 as its financial
results are not matertal-significant to the Company' s consolidated financial results. Four' s financial results are reported within"
Other" for segment reporting purposes. PROG Holdings also owns Build, a credit building financial management tool.
Build is not a reportable segment in 2024 as its financial results are not significant to the Company' s consolidated
financial results. Build' s financial results are reported within' Other" for segment reporting purposes. Macroeconomic
and Business Environment Fhe-During 2024, the Company' s lease application volume increased due to progress in
executing our strategic growth initiatives, including direct- to- consumer and other enhanced marketing initiatives, e-
commerce integrations with POS partners, customer experience technology improvements with certain POS partners,
and also due to the tightening of the credit supply above Progressive Leasing. We believe these factors contributed to
growth in Progressive Leasing' s Gross Merchandise Volume (" GMV") in the year ended December 31, 2024 when
compared to the prior year, and will continue to have a favorable impact in 2025. Despite the increase in demand for our
lease- to- own offerings, the Company continues to operate in a challenging macroeconomic environment. Due to We-beheve
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we-believe-inflation-eontinties-to present-a-challenge-to-our-eustomers-housing, food and gas costs . We belicve the signifieant

tnerease-increased cost of living has had a disproportionate negative effect on the customers we serve and an unfavorable
impact on our GMYV and financial performance in 2024, and will continue to do so in 2025. We believe the persistent
inflatierrinflationary pressures , the cost of living and clevated interest rates for extended periods ;-and-fears-ofapossible
reeesstorrhave also unfavorably impacted consumer confidence within our customer base, resulting in a decrease in demand for
the types of merchandise offered by many of our key national and regional POS partners. For example, Big Lots, Inc., one of
Progressive Leasing' s ten largest POS partners filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy in September 2024, resulting in the
permanent closure of many of its stores. While we expect to implement a number of initiatives intended to offset the
GMV loss arising out of Big Lots' bankruptcy, we believe that development will have a negative impact on Progressive
Leasing' s GMV and financial performance in 2025. In light of these macroeconomic challenges and to align the cost
structure of our business with our near- term revenue outlook, the Company executed on a number of cost reduction initiatives
during-beginning in 2022 ;-2623;-and continuing into the-firstguarterof2024 , to drive efficiencies and right- size variable
costs, while dttemptmo to minimize the negam e 1mpdct on growth- related 1n1t1'1t1ves Customer payment delinquencies at the
G val-pe W ; : rg-mieh-of 2622-2024 were

elevated compared t to Hiereasihg-eustomer
del-rnqttenetes—and—h—rgher—the end 0f 2023, whlch contrlbuted to the prov1s10n for lease merchandlse write- offs as a

percentage of - Progressive-Leasing-tightened-its-lease deetstoningseveral-times-during-revenues increasing to 7. 5 % for the
firsthalf-of- year ended December 31, 2622-2024 —restﬂ-t-rng—from 6.7 % in the same perlod feweHease—amareva}s-aﬂd—&ﬂ

advers-e—rmpaet—eﬁ—GM%Lm %92—2—&1&61—2023 but stlll -

eeﬁS-tSfeﬂt—Wl-ﬂ‘l—Wlthln pfe—paﬁdemie—}eas&peft-fehe-perfwm&nee-the Company s targeted annual range of 6 % to 8 % Any
Heweverany-meaningful increase in the unemployment rates-— rate s-or any further increase in inflation and-erthe-pessibiity
of-areeesstonin-the-United-States-may result in increasing levels of customer payment delinquencies and related write- offs,
which would result in an unfavorable impact on our performance. Cybersecurity Incident During As-previousty-disetosed-by
the third quarter of Company-on-September24;-2023, Progressive Leasing experienced a cybersecurity incident affecting
certain data and IT systems of Progressive Leasing. Promptly after detecting the incident, the Company engaged third- party
cybersecurity experts and took immediate steps to respond to, remediate and investigate the incident. Law enforcement was also
notified. Based on the Company' s investigation, the Company determined that the data involved in the incident contained a
substantial amount of personally identifiable information, including social security numbers, of Progressive Leasing' s customers
and other individuals. With the assistance of eurcybersecurity experts, the Company located the Progressive Leasing customers
and other individuals whose information was impacted and notified them, consistent with state and federal requirements. The
Company also took a numbel of additional measures to demonstrate 1ts contmued support and commitment to data pm acy and
protection. Fh G : s : B
result of this cybersecurlty incident, Proolessn ¢ Leasing has beeome subject to multlple 1awsults which allege, qmong other
things, the incurrence of various types of damages arising out of the incident. All As-efthe-date-ofthisForm10-IKs-allt-butone
of these lawsuits have been consolidated 1nt0 a sms_le dCthl] in the Unlted States Dlstrlct Court for the District of Utah (the
District Court"). The plaintiffs filed W
consolidated complaint -ts—e*peeted—te—be—ﬁ-}ed-&ga-mst—on Aprll 19 2024 On June 24 2024 Progresswe Ledsmg -rn—ﬁled a




motion to dismiss the Bistﬂet—eeﬂft—complalnt whlch was granted n Mareh—er—Apﬂ-l—ef—part and denied in part on January
16, 2024-2025 . Progressive Leasing behev and-intends to vigorously
defend itself against the lawsuit; however, at this time, the Company is unable to detemnne or predict the outcome of this
lawsuit or reasonably provide an estimate or range of the possible losses, if any. The Company also maintains cybersecurity
insurance coverage, subject to a § 1. 0 million retention, to limit the exposure to losses and related costs and expenses, such as
those related to the cybersecurity incident and lawsuits stemming therefrom; however, there can be no assurance that such
insurance coverage will be adequate to cover all of the costs and expenses related thereto or that the insurers will agree to cover
all such losses, costs and expenses. During the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company incurred $ 0. 3
million and $ 2. 8 million , respectively, for aetual-and-antieipated-costs reldted to the cybersecurity incident , net of insurance
proceeds . These costs reldted primarily to third- party legal and consulting services and credit monitoring services for
Progressive Leasing' s customers and employees that were impacted and are included within professional services expense as a
component of operating expenses in the consolidated statements of earnings. Highlights The following summarizes significant
highlights from the year ended December 31, 2823-2024 : « We reported revenues of $ 2. 4-5 billion in 2623-2024 , a-an
deerease-lncrease of -7'—2 3 % compmed to %92—2—2023 The deefease-lncrease In revenues was prlmauly due to an increase in

paﬁ-ta-l-ly—e-ffset—by—CMV hom our other opemtlons —Whteh—mmedsed by 6€’—$ 200 2—5 mllllon, or 198. 3 % , prlmarlly due to an
increase in loan originations for our Four business in 2024 compared to 2023 . GMV increased by $ 130. 5 million for
Progressive Leasing in 2024 , compared to 2622-2023 . The increase in GMYV for Progressive Leasing was due to a
combination of: (i) positive customer responses to our strategic initiatives, such as direct- to- consumer and other
enhanced marketing initiatives, e- commerce integrations with our POS partners and customer experience technology
improvements with certain POS partners, and (ii) increasing demand for our lease- to- own offering arising out of a
tightening of the credit supply above Progressive Leasing, which resulted in an increase in lease applications when
compared to 2023 . - Earnings before income tax (benefit) expense inereased-decreased to $ 163. 6 million compared to §
196. 2 million eempared-to-$1H48—2-mitlionin2022-Despite-the-deeline-in 2023 . The revenues-diseussed-above,theinerease
decrease irearnings-before-ineome-tax-expense-was primarily driven by fewer-higher provisions for lease merchandise
write- offs and loan losses, more customers choosing to exercise early buyout options , and increased restructuring expenses

in 2024 compared to 2()22 —rmpreved—eﬁstemefpaymeﬂt—aetwrty,—. These decreases to earnmgs before income taxes were
........ o Lo obhcanan soodwa a4 SURREpPN - 0

s resultmo from h-tgher—m-terest—rates-our cost reductlon

initiatives . Key Operatmg Memcs GIOSS Melchdndlse Volume. We believe GMV is a key performance indicator of our
Progressive Leasing and Vive segments, as it provides the total value of new leases and loans written into our portfolio over a
specified time period. GMV does not represent revenues earned by the Company, but rather is a leading indicator we use in
forecasting revenues the Company may earn #rthe-short—ters. Progressive Leasing' s GMV is defined as the retail price of
merchandise acquired by Progressive Leasing, which it then expects to lease to its customers. GMV for Vive and Other are
defined as gross loan originations. The following table presents our GMV for the Company for the years presented: For the Year
Ended December 31 (Unaudited and In Thousands) 26232622202 Rregressive---- 202420232022Progressive Lcasing $ 1, 927,
164 $ 1, 796, 647 $ 1, 976, 794 Vivel4l $2-, 093 143 ;948 V4ved43- 541 178, 002 499;439-Othert04+-Other301 , 568 101 ,
099 60, 459 8;-65+Total GMV $ 2, 369, 825 $ 2, 041, 287 $ 2, 215, 255 $2;:354738-The deerease-increase in Progressive
Leasing's GMV was primarily due to a deerease-t-combination of: (i) positive customer demand-for-many-efresponses to
our strategic initiatives, such as direct- to- consumer and the-other produets-offered-by-enhanced marketing initiatives, e-
commerce integrations with our POS partners and customer experience technology improvements with certain POS
partners, and (ii) increasing demand for our lease- to- own offerlng ar1s1ng out of a tlghtenlng of the credlt supply above
Progressive Leasing , which resulted ts-¢we-in ps ; b
and-- an increase expeﬂeﬁees—’l:he-deel-me—m lease apphcatlons when compared to 2023 E- commerce channels generated
ts4 beginn m mtd-—2-92—2—2024 compared to

loans—E-—ecommeree-channelsgenerated-10. 9 %e-PPregressive—I:eas%ng—s—GWm 2022 eempared—te—l—7—2—%-m%922— The
deerease-irtotal-GMV-waspartially-offsetby-an-increase in GMV from our other operations ;-was primarily due to an increase
in loan originations by our Four business . GMYV for Vive remained consistent year over year . Active Customer Count. Our
active customer count represents the total number of customers that have an active lease agreement with Progressive Leasing, or
an active loan with Vive or our Other-other operations . Active customer counts include customers that may have an active
lease or loan agreement with more than one segment. The following table presents our active customer count for each segment
and Other : As of December 31 (Unaudited and In Thousands) 202320222024 Aetive—--- 202420232022 Active Customer
Count: Progressive Leasing893— Leasing934 893 943 Vive90 86 +-044-Vive86-92 88-OtherH3-Other252 113 39 +8-The
deerease-irthe-number of customers for Progressive Leasing enstomers-was pfﬁﬁaﬂ-}y—hlgher in 2024 compared to the prlor
year, due to favorable a-deerease-in-customer responses to




our fease-strategic initiatives, including enhanced marketing, e - to—ewn-soluttonis-commerce integrations with POS
partners, customer experience technology improvements with certain POS partners, and the-to a lesser extent, a

tlghtemng of etuh}ease—deets&emng—m—rmd-%ea%te—addfess—the credlt supply above Progresswe Leasmg ﬂnfavefab}e-eeeﬁeﬁne

i pattia setby-aninerease-i-the number of customers for V1ve has remained essentlally
flat. The increase in the number of customers for Other was the result of continued growth in our other strategic
businesses. Key Components of Earnings Before Income Tax (Benefit) Expense In this MD & A section, we review our
consolidated results. For the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 and the comparable prior year periods, some of the key
revenue, cost and expense items that affected earnings before income taxes were as follows: Revenues. We separate our total
revenues into two components: (i) lease revenues and fees and (ii) interest and fees on loans receivable. Lease revenues and fees
include all revenues derived from lease agreements from our Progressive Leasing segment. Lease revenues are recorded net of a
provision for uncollectible renewal payments. Interest and fees on loans receivable represents merchant fees, finance charges
and annual and other fees earned on outstanding loans in our Vive segment and, to a lesser extent, from our Four business .
Depreciation of Lease Merchandise. Depreciation of lease merchandise reflects the expense associated with depreciating
merchandise leased to customers by Progressive Leasing. Provision for Lease Merchandise Write- offs. The provision for lease
merchandise write- offs represents the estimated merchandise losses incurred but not yet identified by management and
adjustments for changes in estimates for the allowance for lease merchandise write- offs. Operating Expenses. Operating
expenses include personnel costs, stock- based compensation expense, occupancy costs, advertising, decisioning expense,
professional services expense, sales acquisition expense, computer software expense, bank service charges, the provision for
loan losses, fixed asset depreciation expense, intangible asset amortization, and restructuring expense, among other expenses.
Impairment of Goodwill. Impairment of goodwill is the partial write- off of the goodwill balance at the Four reporting unit.
Refer to Note 1 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the goodwill impairment
assessment and resulting impairment charge that occurred in the third quarter of 2022. Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense,
net consists of interest incurred on the Company' s Senior Notes and senior secured revolving credit facility (the" Revolving
Facility"). Interest expense is presented net of interest income earned on the Company' s deposits in cash and cash equivalents.
Results of Operations Results of Operations — Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-Change Year Ended
December 31, 2024 vs. 2023 xs2022-(In Thousands) 20232022-20242023 § % REVENUES: Lease Revenues and Fees §$ 2,
366,489 $ 2,333, 588 § 232, 901 1 523, 785-$-(190,19DF 4 5% Interest and Fees on Loans Reeetvable74-—- Receivable97

,007 74 , 676 7422 , 331 29 641-6356-. 0 2, 463, 496 2, 408, 264 55, 232 2 59%-826-(189562+F. 3 FCOSTS AND
EXPENSES Depreciation of Lease Merchandisel, 621, 101 1, 576, 303 +44 , 798 2 757-736-18+-42H-6-. 8 33-Provision for
Lease Merchandise Write- offs155-0ffs178, 338 155 25049323 , 088 14 9%6—(—3-8—67-6)—61—9— 9 ¥Operating Expenses45+
Expenses469 , 160 451 , 084 456-18 , 374-716-076 4. 0 -2 Impairment-of-Goodwil—1+0- 268 +5+6-, 599 2 +5Hnmf2-, 182,
637 285,962 3. 4-1—2,—1-8—1—(%%9,%«44)—69 —SYOPERATING PROFF225-PROFIT194, 897 225 , 627 +85-(30 , 730) (13 645-39;
98221+ 5-6) Interest Expense, Net ( 31, 289) (29, 400) (371 , 46+-883 ) (6 59952+ 4 ) EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME
TAX (BENEFIT) EXPENSEL96-- EXPENSE163 , 608 196 , 221 (1482444797732, 613) (16 . 4-6) INCOME TAX
(BENEFIT) EXPENSE (33, 641) 57, 383 49-(91 , 024) nmfNET 5357848158 NEF-EARNINGS §$ 197,249 § 138, 838 $ 98
58 , 411 42 709-$46,429-40-. 71 % nmf — Calculation is not meaningful Information about our revenues by source and
reportable segment is as follows: Year Ended December 31, 2023¥ear-2024Year Ended December 31, 26222023 (In
Thousands) Progressive LeasingViveOtherTotalProgressive LeasingViveOtherTotalLease Revenues and Fees $ 2, 366, 489 $ —
$—9$2,366,489 $ 2,333, 588 § — $ — $ 2,333, 588 $ 2,523, 785-$—$—$2,-523, 785 Interest and Fees on Loans
Receivable — 64, 415 32, 592 97, 007 — 68, 912 5, 764 74, 676 —F6;9H-3;1430-74;-041+-Total Revenues $ 2, 366, 489 $ 64,
415 $ 32,592 % 2, 463,496 $ 2, 333, 588 § 68,912 $ 5,764 $ 2,408, 264 -$—2%2—3—7—85—$—7—9—9—1—1—$—3—1—39—$—2%9%‘§%6—The
deerease-increase in Progressive Leasing revenues was primarily the result of the 7. 3 % increase in GMYV for 2024 as
compared to the prior year, due to an increase in demand for our lease- to- own offerings and more customers choosing
to exercise early buyout options. This increase was partlally offset by havmg a smaller lease portfoho at the begmmno of

aﬂd-ﬂafettgheﬁtz"GQS—ZOM as compqred to the beglnmng 38

declined prlmarlly due to a9 e s as-eompared-te Heg--a smallel loan portfoho throughout
2024 as compared to 2023 , as a result of lower demand for products offered by certain Vive POS partners . The increase
to Other revenue was prundnly driven by a 67198 . 2-3 % increase in Four' s GMV as compared to the same period in 2622
2023, due to increased loan originations . Information about certain significant components of operating expenses is as
follows: Change Year Ended December 31, 2024 vs. 2023 %s-2022-(In Thousands) 20232622-20242023 $ % Personnel Costs|
$172,542 $ 187, 199 § (494 14 , 657 195-$6,996-) (3-7 . 68 ) % Stock- Based Compensation 29, 179 24, 920 4,259 17 . 1
Occupancy Costs4 , 52+-199 §, 429 (1, 230) (22. 7 ) Advertising20 , 3«99—42—102 17, 203 2 Oectpaney-CostsS-, 4%9—6—899 16.
9 Professional Services32 , 466277 26, 882 5, 395 20. | ;

Serviees26;-88222,-824-4;-65817-8-Sales Acquisition E—)epeﬂseQ—Z-S—Expense229 175 28 205 970 3 2-8—82-8—(62—39—62— 42
Computer Software Expense326-Expense328 , 057 26 , 673 271 , 384 629956335 ¥ 2 Bank Service Charges|1, 042 11,
246 +25494-(204) (1 72456~ 6-8 ) Other Sales, General and Administrative Expense38-Expense36 , 969 38 . 005 46-(1 , 574
036) (25569-. 7 ) Sales, General and Administrative Expense363, 542 365, 762 ( 2, 220) (0. 6 —39—Sa-}es—Geﬂera-l-&ﬁé

Administrative Expensed365-762-366;296-(528)(0—1) Provision for Loan Fesses40-Losses55, 950 40 , 757 4+-15 , 193 37. 3



Depreclatmn and Amortlzat10n26 977 2—32— 32, 032 475—5 055 ) (15. 8) Restructurlng Expense22, 691 12, 533 10 158
81.1- ation32;-032-33- 85181954 Restrueturing Expense ;
()pudlnvY E\pullsu S 469 160 $ 451, 084 S 459—18 37-4—$—7—1-9—076 4.0-2% 1 Puxonml costs L\thldL\ stock- b.lsLd
compensation expense, which is reported separately in the operating expense table. 2 Sales acquisition expense includes vendor
incentives and rebates to POS partners, external sales commissions, amortization of initial direct costs and amounts paid to
various POS partners to be their exclusive provider of lease- to- own solutions. 3 Computer software expense consists primarily
of software subscription fees, licensing fees and non- capitalizable software implementation costs. The § 14. 7 million decrease
in personnel costs was due to a decrease of $ 13. 3 million at Progressive Leasing attributable to its reduction in the
number of employees during the second half of 2023 and first quarter of 2024 as part of its restructuring and cost cutting
initiatives. Personnel costs at Vive also decreased by $ 1. 4 million compared to 2023. Stock- based compensation
increased $ 4. 3 million compared to 2023, consisting of increases of $ 5. 3 million at Progressive Leasing and $ 0. 2
million at Vive, partially offset by a decrease of $ 1. 2 million at Four. The higher stock- based compensation in 2024 was
the result of: (i) an increase in the grant date value of restricted stock units granted in 2024 compared to 2023; and (ii) an
increase to the estimated payout of performance stock units granted in 2024 based on the Company' s actual results,
compared to a lower payout of performance stock units granted in 2023. The lower stock- based compensation at Four in
2024 compared to 2023, was a result of the Company determining in the second quarter of 2024 that performance stock
units that had been granted to Four executives in 2021 and 2022 were no longer probable of being earned. Advertising
expense increased $ 2. 9 million compared to 2023, primarily due to increased advertising in the Progressive Leasing
segment associated with the expansion of our direct- to- consumer marketing efforts. Professional services increased $ S.
4 million compared to 2023, primarily due to higher technology- related costs. Professional services in the prior year
were also impacted by the benefit of $ 0. S million of regulatory insurance recoveries that were received during the first
quarter of 2023. The provision for loan losses increased $ 15. 2 million compared to 2023. The increase was primarily the
result of a $ 14. 0 million increase in the provision for loan losses for our Other operations, due to the continued growth
of our Four business and our other strategic operations. The provision for loan losses at Vive also increased $ 1. 2 million
due to higher delinquencies compared to 2023. Depreciation and amortization decreased $ 5. 1 million compared to 2023,
primarily due to a decrease of $ S. 7 million at Progressive Leasing and $ 0. 1 million at Vive, partially offset by an
increase of $ 0. 7 million at Four and other strategic businesses. The decrease at Progressive Leasing was primarily
attributable to a technology asset that was fully amortized during the second quarter of 2024, as well as assets that were
impaired as part of the Company' s restructuring activities during the first quarter of 2024. The increase at Four and
other strategic businesses was due to an increase in depreciable assets as compared to 2023. In 2024, restructuring
expense included $ 7. 8 million associated with the early termination of an independent sales agent agreement for
Progressive Leasing, $ 2. 0 million associated with the early termination of a third party vendor agreement within other
strategic operations, $ 6. 0 million of operating lease right- of- use asset and other fixed asset impairment charges related
to the reduction of Progressive Leasing office space, and $ 6. 8 million of employee severance for Progressive Leasing,
Vive, and Other operations. In 2023, restructuring expense included $ 9. 6 million associated with the early termination
of certain independent sales agent agreements and $ 2. 9 million of employee severance within Progressive Leasing.
Other Costs and Expenses Depreciation of lease merchandise. Depreciation of lease merchandise increased by 2. 8 %
during the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to 2023. The increase was primarily due to growth in the Company'
s lease portfolio, resulting from positive customer responses to our strategic initiatives and increasing demand for our
lease- to- own offering. As a percentage of lease revenues and fees, depreciation of lease merchandise increased to 68. 5
% from 67. 5 % in the prior year period, primarily due to a normalized level of early buyouts during 2024 as compared
to a lower level of early buyouts during 2023. Provision for lease merchandise write- offs. The provision for lease
merchandise write- offs increased by $ 23. 1 million during the year ended December 31, 2024, as compared to 2023. The
provision for lease merchandise write- offs as a percentage of lease revenues increased to 7. 5 % for the year ended
December 31, 2024 from 6. 7 % for the prior year. The increase in the provision was a result of higher delinquencies and
write- offs in 2024 compared to 2023. Given the significant economic uncertainty resulting from a higher cost of living,
inflationary pressures, impact of tariffs, and increased interest rates for an extended period, and the potential effects of
such developments on Progressive Leasing' s sates-POS partners , general-customers, and administrative-business going
forward, a high level of estimation was involved in determining the allowance as of December 31, 2024. Actual lease
merchandise write- offs could differ materially from the allowance for those write- offs. Interest expense, net.
Information about interest expense and interest income is as follows: ChangeYear Ended December 31, 2024 vs. 2023 (In
Thousands) 20242023 $ % Interest Expense, Net: Interest Expense $ 38, 816 $ 38, 694 § 122 0. 3 % Interest Income (7,
527) (9, 288) 1, 761 19. 0 Total Interest Expense, Net $ 31, 289 § 29, 406 $ 1, 883 6. 4 % Interest expense, net increased $
1. 9 million due to a decrease in interest income earned from a decrease in cash deposits during 2024 compared to 2023.
Information about our earnings before income tax (benefit) expense by reportable segment is as follows: Change Year
Ended December 31, 2024 vs. 2023 (In Thousands) 20242023 $§ % EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAX (BENEFIT)
EXPENSE: Progressive Leasing $ 184, 782 § 216, 271 $ (31, 489) (14. 6) % Vive (848) 4, 545 (5, 393) nmfOther (20, 326)
(24, 595) 4,269 17. 4 Earnings Before Income Tax (Benefit) Expense $ 163, 608 $ 196, 221 § (32, 613) (16. 6) % The loss
before income tax (benefit) expense within Other primarily relates to losses from our other strategic operations. Factors
impacting the change in earnings before income tax (benefit) expense for each reporting segment are discussed above.
Income tax (beneﬁt) expense was a benefit of $ 345-33 . -6 million for and-$324—3-milienduring-the years— year ended
December 31, 2024 compared to an expense of $ 57. 4 million in 2023 . The effective tax rate was (20. 6) % for the year
ended December 31, 2024 compared to 29. 2 % in 2023. The income tax benefit and negative effective tax rate in 2024




was primarily due to a $ S1. 4 million non- cash reversal of the uncertain tax position related to Progressive Leasing and
a $ 27. 6 million deferred tax benefit related to an election which resulted in the deemed liquidation of a wholly- owned
partnership for tax purposes. Results of Operations — Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 Change Year Ended
December 31 . respeetively-2023 vs . 2022 (In Thousands) 20232022 $ % REVENUES: Lease Revenues and Fees $ 2, 333,
588 $ 2, 523, 785 $ (190, 197) (7. 5) % Interest and Fees on Loans Receivable74, 676 74, 041 635 0. 9 2, 408, 264 2, 597,
826 (189, 562) (7. 3) COSTS AND EXPENSES: Depreciation of Lease Merchandisel, 576, 303 1, 757, 730 (181, 427) (10.
3) Provision for Lease Merchandise Write- offs155, 250 193, 926 (38, 676) (19. 9) Operating Expenses451, 084 450, 374
710 0. 2 Impairment of Goodwill — 10, 151 (10, 151) nmf2, 182, 637 2, 412, 181 (229, 544) (9. 5) OPERATING
PROFIT225, 627 185, 645 39, 982 21. S Interest Expense, Net (29, 406) (37, 401) 7, 995 21. 4EARNINGS BEFORE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE196, 221 148, 244 47,977 32. 4 INCOME TAX EXPENSES7, 383 49, 535 7, 848 15. § NET
EARNINGS §$ 138, 838 $ 98, 709 $ 40, 129 40. 7 % Year Ended December 31, 2023Year Ended December 31, 2022 (In
Thousands) Progressive LeasingViveOtherTotalProgressive LeasingViveOtherTotalLease Revenues and Fees $ 2, 333,
5888 —$—8$2,333,5888%2,523,7858% —$ —$ 2,523, 785 Interest and Fees on Loans Receivable — 68, 912 5, 764 74,
676 — 70,911 3, 130 74, 041 Total Revenues $ 2, 333, 588 $ 68,912 § 5, 764 $ 2, 408, 264 $ 2, 523,785 $ 70,911 $ 3,130 §
2,597, 826 The decrease in Progressive Leasing revenues was primarily the result of having a smaller lease portfolio at
the beginning of and throughout 2023, as compared to the same periods in 2022. The decrease was also a result of a
decline in Progressive Leasing' s GMYV for the year ended 2023, as compared to 2022, resulting from decreased customer
demand for many of the products offered by our POS partners and tightened lease decisioning beginning in mid- 2022.
The decline in revenues was partially offset by improved customer payment activity in 2023, as compared to 2022. Vive
revenues declined due to a 19. 4 % decrease in GMYV as compared to 2022, resulting in a smaller loan portfolio
throughout 2023. The increase in Other revenue was primarily driven by a 67. 2 % increase in Four' s GMV as
compared to the same period in 2022. Change Year Ended December 31, 2023 vs. 2022 (In Thousands) 20232022 $ %
Personnel Costs1 $ 187,199 $ 194, 195 $ (6, 996) (3. 6) % Stock- Based Compensation24, 920 17, 521 7, 399 42. 2
Occupancy Costs5, 429 6, 466 (1, 037) (16. 0) Advertisingl7, 203 15, 762 1, 441 9. 1 Professional Services26, 882 22, 824 4,
058 17. 8 Sales Acquisition Expense228, 205 28, 828 (623) (2. 2) Computer Software Expense326, 673 27, 629 (956) (3. 5)
Bank Service Charges11, 246 12, 491 (1, 245) (10. 0) Other Sales, General and Administrative Expense38, 005 40, 574 (2,
569) (6. 3) Sales, General and Administrative Expense365, 762 366, 290 (528) (0. 1) Provision for Loan Losses40, 757 41,
232 (475) (1. 2) Depreciation and Amortization32, 032 33, 851 (1, 819) (5. 4) Restructuring Expensel2, 533 9, 001 3, 532
39. 2 Operating Expenses $ 451, 084 $ 450,374 $ 710 0. 2 % The $ 7. 0 million decrease in personnel costs was due to a
decrease of § 9. 1 million at Progressive Leasing attributable to its reduction in the number of employees during the second half
ot 2022 as part of its restructuring and cost cutting initiatives. Personnel costs for Four and other strategic businesses also
decreased by $ 0. 1 million as compared to 2022. These decreases were partially offset by an increase of $ 2. 2 million at Vive
primarily due to increased salaries and wages for new and existing employees. Stock- based compensation increased $ 7. 4
million compared to 2022, consisting of increases of $ 4. 7 million at Progressive Leasing, $ 1. 9 million at Four and other
strategic businesses, and § 0. 8 million at Vive. The lower stock- based compensation in 2022 was the result of: (i) the Company
determining in the second quarter of 2022 that performance stock units that had been granted to Four executives were no longer
probable of being earned resulting in lower expense in 2022 compared to 2023; (ii) no stock- based compensation expense being
recognized for Progressive Leasing performance stock units granted in 2022 as these—- the performance metrics related to those
performance stock units were not met; and (iii) other stock- based forfeitures in 2022 related to the Progressive Leasing
restructuring program. During 2023, the estimated payout of performance stock units granted in 2023 exceeded target based on
the Company' s actual results, further increasing the stock- based compensation expense during 2023 versus 2022. Professional
services expense increased $ 4. 1 million, consisting of $ 3. 2 million at Progressive Leasing, $ 0. 8 million at Four and other
strategic businesses and $ 0. 1 million at Vive. The increase at Progressive Leasing was primarily due to costs incurred related
to the cybersecurity incident during the third quarter of 2023. The remaining increases were the result of increased expenses for
other legal services and contract labor compared to 2022. Restructuring expense increased $ 3. 5 million due to additional
actions taken during the year ended December 31, 2023. In 2023, restructuring costs included $ 9. 6 million associated with the
early termination of certain independent sales agent agreements and $ 2. 9 million of employee severance within Progressive
Leasing. In 2022, restructuring costs included $ 5. 6 million of employee severance within Progressive Leasing, $ 3. 3 million of
operating lease right- of- use asset and other fixed asset impairment charges related to the relocation of the Vive corporate
headquarters and a reduction of Progressive Leasing management and information technology office space, and $ 0. 1 million of
other restructuring expenses. Other-Costs-and-Expenses-Depreciation of lease merchandise. Depreciation of lease merchandise
decreased by 10. 3 % during the year ended December 31, 2023 compared to 2022. The decrease was primarily due to a
reduction in the size of Progressive Leasing' s lease portfolio, resulting from tightening of its decisioning in mid- 2022 and
decreased consumer demand for many of the leasable products offered by Progressive Leasing' s retail partners. As a percentage
of total lease revenues and fees, depreciation of lease merchandise decreased to 67. 5 % from 69. 6 % in the prior year period,
primarily due to improved customer payment activity and lower early buyouts for the year ended December 31, 2023, as
compared to the same period in 2022. Provision for lease merchandise write- offs. The provision for lease merchandise write-
offs decreased by $ 38. 7 million due to a reduction in the size of Progressive Leasing' s lease portfolio and improved customer
payment activity during the year ended December 31, 2023, as compared to the same period in 2022. The provision for lease
merchandise write- offs as a percentage of lease revenues decreased to 6. 7 % for the year ended December 31, 2023 from 7. 7
% in the same period in 2022. The decrease in the provision as a percentage of lease revenues was a result of improved customer
payment activity and lower write- offs due to the Company tightening its lease decisioning in mid- 2022. Given the significant
economic uncertainty resulting from inflation, elevated interest rates for extended periods, the resumption of student loan



payments in October 2023, and the potential effects of such developments on Progressive Leasing' s customers, and business
going forward, a high level of estimation was involved in determining the allowance as of December 31, 2023. Actual lease
merchandise write- offs could differ materially from the allowance for those write- offs. Impairment of Goodwill. The Company
recorded a loss of § 10. 2 million to pdltld]ly w rlte off the goodwill bdldnce of the Four reportum unit during the third quarter of
ws:-Change Year Ended December
31,2023 vs. 2022 (ln Thousdnds) 2()232()22 $ % Interest Expense Net—l-n’fefest—NetInterest Expense $ 38, 694 § 38, 675 $ 19
— % Interest Income (9, 288) (1, 274) (8, 014) nmfTotal Interest Expense, Net $ 29, 406 § 37,401 $ (7, 995) (21. 4) % Interest
expense, net decreased $ 8. 0 million due to interest income earned on the Company' s deposits in cash and cash equivalents
resulting from an mcrease m deposm n hlgher yleld dccounts Earnlngs Before TFhe-Company-carned-interestineome-Income
Tax Expense © 9 —Information about our earnings before
income tax expense by reportable seoment is as 1‘0110\&5 (han;:e Yem Ended December 31, 2023 vs. 2022 (In Thousands)
20232022 $ % EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE: Progressive Leasing $ 216, 27185 174,143 $42,12824.2 %
Vive4, 5459, 195 (4, 650) (50. 6) Other (24, 595) (35, 094) 10, 499 29. 9 Earnings Before Income Tax Expense $ 196, 221 §
148, 244 $ 47, 977 32. 4 % The loss before income taxes within Other primarily relates to our Four operations. Factors
impacting the change in earnings before income tax expense for each reporting segment are discussed above. Income tax
expense increased to $ 57. 4 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 compared to $ 49. 5 million in 2022 primarily due to
higher earnings before income tax expense for-in 2023 as compared to the-prior year. The effective tax rate was 29. 2 % for the
year ended December 31, 2023 compared to 33. 4 % in 2022. The decrease in the effective tax rate was primarily driven by the
non- deductible goodwill impairment loss for Four of $ 10. 2 million that occurred in 2()22 and the increase in the valuation
allowance related to certain deferred tax assets that occurred in 2022. n




Position Thc major chanucs in the consohddtcd balance shcu Tom Dcumbu 31 %92—2—2023 to Dcumbu 31 %92—3—2024 n
include: « Cash and cash equivalents inereased-decreased $ 23-59 . 5-7 million to $ +55-95 . 4-7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2623-2024 . For additional information, refer to the" Liquidity and Capital Resources" section below. * Lease
merchandise, net, deereased-increased $ +4-46 . 6-8 million due primarily to a 9-7 . +3 % deerease-increase in Progressive
Leasing' s GMV in 2623-2024 as compared to 2622-2023 . * Aeeountspayable-Loans receivable, net of allowances and aeerted
expenses-unamortized fees, increased $ +6-20 . 2 million due primarily to a-growth in the loan portfolio of Four compared to
December 31, 2023. Four' s GMYV increased 198. 3 % in 2024 as compared to 2023. * Income tax receivable decreased $
22. 3 million primarily due to a net decrease in tax payments made during the year ended December 31, 2024 Prepald

-rnerease—m—aeeeuﬁts—pay&b-}e—to upfront vendor 1ncent1ves pald to certaln Progresswe Leasnng POS pmlncu in 2024 .
Accounts payable and accrued expenses decreased $ 58 2 mlllmn duc prlmarlly to amrinerease-t-fourth-quarter- GMV

the Company-s-uncertain

tax position , including 1nterest related to Progresswe Leasmg s $ 175. 0 mllllon settlement with the FTC setttement-in
2020. * Debt, net increased $ S1. 3 million due to a $§ 50. 0 million draw on our Revolving Facility in December 2024, and
the amortization of deferred financing costs. The $ 50. 0 million draw was subsequently repaid in January 2025 . -
Deferred tax assets increased $ 23. S million and deferred tax Habiity-liabilities decreased $32-30 . 4-5 million , due
primarily 10 a—deel-rﬂe-an election whlch resulted in the temper&w—beeiedeemed llquldatlon of a wholly te-—owned

c\pccl that our primary capital 1cquucmcnls will consist 0[ * Reinvesting in our business, mcludmc buying mcrchandlsc or the
operations of Progressive Leasing. Because we believe Progressive Leasing will continue to grow over the long- term, we
expect that the need for additional lease merchandise will remain a major capital requirement; * Making merger and acquisition
investment (s) to further broaden our product offerings; and * Returning excess cash to shareholders through periodically



repurchasing stock and / or paying dividends. Other capital requirements include (i) expenditures related to software
development; (ii) expenditures related to our corporate operating activities; (iii) personnel expenditures; (iv) income tax
payments; (v) funding of loans receivable for Vive and Four ; and (vi) servicing our outstanding debt obligations. Our capital
requirements have been financed through: ¢ cash flows from operations; * private debt offerings; * bank debt; and ¢ stock
offerings. As of December 31, 2823-2024 , the Company had $ +55-95 . 4-7 million of cash, $ 356-300 . 0 million of availability
under the Revolving Facility, and $ 666-650 . 0 million of gross indebtedness. Cash Provided by Operating Activities Cash
provided by operating activities was $ 138. 5 million and $ 204. 2 million during the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively. The $ 65. 7 million decrease in operating cash flows was primarily driven by a $ 129. 3 million
increase in cash used for purchases of lease merchandise as a result of higher GMV at Progressive Leasing, an increase in
the balance of accounts receivable due to timing of payments received from customers, and an increase in payments
made on accounts payable and accrued expenses compared to December 31, 2023. These decreases in cash provided by
operating activities were offset primarily by a decrease in cash paid for taxes of $ 50. 6 million when compared to the
prior year. Cash provided by operating activities was $ 204. 2 million and $ 242. 5 million during the years ended December
31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The $ 38. 3 million decrease in operating cash flows was primarily driven by a $ 190. 2 million
decrease in lease revenue resulting from a smaller lease portfolio and a § 38. 3 million increase in cash paid for income taxes
compared to 2022. These decreases were partially offset by a § 168. 1 million decrease in purchases of lease merchandise, an
increase in the balance of accounts payable and accrued expenses compared to December 31, 2022, improved customer payment
activity during 2023, and an increase in interest income resulting from an increase in deposits in higher yield accounts. Other
changes in cash provided by operating activities are discussed above in our discussion of results for the year ended December
31, 2023. Cash provided-by-operating-Used in Investing Activities Cash used in investing activities was $ 242-79 . 5-2 million
and $ 246—38 9—8 million during the years ended Decembe1 31, %922—2024 dnd %92—1—2023 respecm ely The Gash—pfeﬂded-by

deefe&se—m nv estum cash outﬂows was prlmarlly the result of a § 25—244 -3—8 mllllon 1ncrease in cash outﬂows for
investments in loans receivable, partially offset by a $ 203. 4 million increase in proceeds from loans receivable . These
increases are primarily the result of growth of loan activity at Four. Cash used in investing activities was $ 38. 8 million
and $ 53. 5 million during the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The $ 14. 7 million decrease in
investing cash outflows was primarily the result of a $ 25. 3 million increase in proceeds from loans receivable , partially

offset by a $ 11. 1 million i increase 1r1 cash outflows for investments in loans receivable —Gash—btsed—rﬂ-rm%es{-mg—aeﬁ*frﬁes—was%
A A = Do L QG = [ a3 3 L RO | BPEOR

0 i ents- o i ; d-to .C ash Used ln Fmanemo Activities C ash used in
fmdncms_ aetl\ ities was § -1-4-1—119 o1 mllllon durln}c the year ended Decembe1 31,2623-2024 compared to $ 227141 . 2-9
million during the year ended December 31, 2023, a decrease of $ 22. 8 million. The decrease in cash used in financing
activities was primarily the result of a $§ 50. 0 million draw on our revolving credit facility. This decrease in cash used
was partially offset by a $ 20. 4 million increase in cash paid for dividends, as the Company began paying dividends
during 2024. Cash used in financing activities was $ 141. 9 million during the year ended December 31, 2023 compared to
$ 227. 2 million during the year ended December 31, 2022, a decrease of § 85. 3 million. Cash used in financing activities in
2023 was primarily for the Company' s repurchase of $ 139. 6 million of its common stock, compared to $ 223. 6 million of
share repuwhdses in 2022 t-he—pﬂeﬁye&ﬁ The ( ompany also used cash f01 an 1mmaterml amount of debt issuance costs in 2023

in the mdrket from time to time as authorlzed by our Board of Directors. Effective November 3, 2021 the Company announeed
that its Board of Directors had authorized a share repurehdse program thdt prox ided the C ompany with the dblllty to repuwhdse
shares up to a maximum amount of § 1 billion ~As ha A
f&etﬁefﬂ&mtﬂg—atﬁl&ef&aﬁeﬂ—}mt—e%%ﬂheﬂ— On February 21 2()24 the Company' s BOdId of Dlrectors reauthonzed
the repurchase of Company common stock at an aggregate purchase price of up to $ 500 million under the Company' s existing
share repurchase program, with such reauthorized share repurchase program to be extended for a period of three years from
February 21, 2024, or until the $ 500 million aggregate purchase price of Company common stock purchased pursuant to the
reauthorized share repurchase program has been met, whichever occurs first. As of December 31, 2024, we had the authority




to purchase additional shares up to our remaining authorization limit of $ 361. 3 million. The Company purchased 4-3 ,
694480 , 274-871 shares of its common stock for § 439-138 . 6-7 million during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , 84 ,
F20-691 , 223-274 shares for $ 223-139 . 6 million during the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 , and H-8 , 6H-720 , 178
223 shares for $ 567-223 . 4-6 million during the year ended December 31, 26242022 . These amounts do not include any
excise tax that may be assessed on those repurchases. We declared and paid a dividend of $ 0. 12 per share in each quarter
of 2024 whlch resulted in aggregate d1v1dend payments of $ 20 4 mllllon We pald no d1v1dends durmg 2023 —and 2022 5

continue paylng quarterly cash d1v1dends in future periods, the future payment of d1V1dends if permltted will be at the sole
discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on our capital allocation strategy at that time as well as other factors,
including our earnings, financial condition, and other considerations that our Board of Directors deems relevant. Debt Financing
On November 24, 2020, the Company entered into a credit agreement with a consortium of lenders providing for a $ 350 million
senior revolving credit facility (the" Revolving Facility'). On November 15 , ﬁﬁdef2024 the Company entered into an
amendment to the Revolving Facility, the primary purpose of which 4
terminate-on-was to extend the maturity date of the Revolving Facility from N ovember 24 2025 to November 15, 2029

The Revolving Facility includes an uncommitted incremental facility increase option (" Incremental Facilities") which, subject to
certain terms and conditions, permits the Company at any time prior to the maturity date to request an increase in extensions of
credit available thereunder by an aggregate additional principal amount of up to $ 300 million. As of December 31, 2623-2024 ,
the Company had se-$ 50. 0 million outstanding batanee-and $ 356-300 million remaining available for borrowings on the
Revolving Facility. The Company repaid the $ 50. 0 million Revolving Facility borrowing in January 2025. The Revolving
Facility is fully secured and contains certain financial covenants, which include requirements that the Company maintain ratios
of (i) total net debt to EBITDA of no more than 2. 50: 1. 00 and (ii) consolidated interest coverage of no less than 3. 00: 1. 00.
The Company will be in default under the Revolvmg F acﬂlty 1f it falls to comply Wlth these covenants, and all borrowmgs
outstandlng may become due unmedlately Add aty volving y a1 b As-as

-Faeﬁtﬁ'—beeame—fa-l-lry—seettfed—As of December 31 %92—3—2024 the Company was in Comphance w1th the ﬁnan01al Covenants
set forth in the Revolving Facility and believes it w111 continue to be in compliance in the future. On November 26, 2021, the
Company entered into an indenture in connection with its offering of § 600 million aggregate principal amount of its senior
unsecured notes due 2029 (the" Senior Notes"). The Senior Notes were issued at 100. 0 % of their par value with a stated fixed
annual interest rate of 6. 00 %. Interest accrues on the outstanding balance and is payable semi- annually. The Senior Notes are
general unsecured obligations of the Company and are guaranteed by certain of the Company' s existing and future domestic
subsidiaries. The indenture discussed above contains various other covenants and obligations to which the Company and its
subsidiaries are subject while the Senior Notes are outstanding. The covenants in the indenture may limit the extent to which, or
the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to, among other things: (i) incur additional debt and guarantee debt; (ii) pay
dividends or make other distributions or repurchase or redeem capital stock; (iii) prepay, redeem or repurchase certain debt; (iv)
issue certain preferred stock or similar equity securities; (v) make loans and investments; (vi) sell assets; (vii) incur liens; (viii)
enter into transactions with affiliates; (ix) enter into agreements restricting the ability of the Company' s subsidiaries to pay
dividends; and (x) consolidate, merge or sell all or substantially all of the Company' s assets. The indenture also contains
customary events of default for transactions of this type and amount. The Company was in compliance with these covenants at
December 31, 2823-2024 and believes that it will continue to be in compliance in the future. Commitments Income Taxes.
During the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , we made net income tax payments of $ +66-49 . 4-8 million. During the year
ended December 31, 2024-2025 we anticipate making estimated cash payments of $ 49-67 . 0 million for United States federal
and state income taxes. Leases. We lease management and information technology space for corporate functions as-weH-as
storage-space-for-ourhub-faetlities-under operating leases expiring at various times through 26272028 . Our corporate and
segment management office leases contain renewal options for additional periods ranging from three to five years. Approximate
future minimum payments for operating leases that have initial or remaining non- cancelable terms in excess of one year as of
December 31, 2623-2024 are disclosed in Note 76 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Contractual
Obligations and Commitments. Future interest payments on the Company' s variable- rate debt are based on a rate per annum
equal to, at our option, (i) the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (" SOFR") plus a margin within the range of 1. 5 % t0 2. 5 %
for revolving loans, based on total leverage, or (ii) the administrative agent' s base rate plus a margin ranging from 0. 5 %to 1. 5
%, as specified in the agreement. Future interest payments related to our Revolving Facility are based on the borrowings
outstanding at that time. Future interest payments may be different depending on future borrowing activity and interest rates.
The Company had #e-$ 50. 0 million of outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Facility as of December 31, 2623-2024 .
As discussed above, on November 26, 2021, the Company issued $ 600 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes that
bear a fixed annual interest rate of 6. 00 %. Interest will accrue on the outstanding balance and will be payable semi- annually.
The Senior Notes will mature on November 15, 2029. The Company has no long- term commitments to purchase merchandise
nor does it have significant purchase agreements that specify minimum quantities or set prices that exceed our expected
requirements for three months. Deferred income tax liabilities as of December 31, 2023-2024 were approximately $ +64-74 . -3
million. Deferred income tax liabilities are calculated based on temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and
liabilities and their respective book basis, which will result in taxable amounts in future years when the liabilities are settled at
their reported financial statement amounts. The results of these calculations do not have a direct connection with the amount of
cash taxes to be paid in any future periods. As a result, scheduling deferred income tax liabilities as payments due by period may



be misleading, because this scheduling would not necessarily relate to liquidity needs. Unfunded Lending Commitments. The
Company, through its Vive business, had unconditionally cancellable unfunded lending commitments totaling approximately $
461. 1 million and $ 523. 9 million and-$-543—Fmillierras of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622- respectively, that do not
give rise to revenues and cash flows. These unfunded commitments arise in the ordinary course of business from credit card
agreements with individual cardholders that give them the ability to borrow, against unused amounts, up to the maximum credit
limit assigned to their account. While these unfunded amounts represented the total available unused lines of credit, the
Company does not anticipate that all cardholders will utilize their entire available line at any given point in time. Commitments
to extend unsecured credit are agreements to lend to a cardholder so long as there is no violation of any condition established in
the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses. Since many of the commitments
are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. Critical Accounting Policies We discuss the most critical accounting policies below. For a discussion of all of the
Company' s significant accounting policies, see Note 1 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Revenue
Recognition All of Progressive Leasing' s customer agreements are considered operating leases and are recognized in
accordance with ASC 842, Leases. The Company maintains ownership of the lease merchandise until all payment obligations
are satisfied under the lease ownership agreements. Progressive Leasing recognizes lease revenue on a straight- line basis over
the estimated lease term. Initial lease payments made by the customer upon lease execution are initially recognized as deferred
revenue and are recognized as lease revenue over the estimated lease term on a straight- line basis. All other customer billings
are in arrears and, therefore, lease revenues are earned prior to the lease payment due date and are recorded in the statements of
earnings net of related sales taxes as earned. Cash collected in advance of being due or earned and recognized as deferred
revenue is presented within customer deposits and advance payments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Progressive Leasing revenues recorded prior to the payment due date results in unbilled accounts receivable in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Our revenue recognition accounting policy matches the lease revenue with the
corresponding costs, mainly depreciation expense, associated with lease merchandise. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2022~ we had deferred revenue representing cash collected in advance of being due or earned totaling $ 40. 9 million and $ 35.
7 millienand-$37F-million, respectively, and accounts receivable, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts based on
historical collection rates, of $ 80. 2 million and $ 67. 9 mitlenand-$-64—-S5-million, respectively. Our accounts receivable
allowance is estimated using historical write- off and collection experience. Other qualitative factors, such as current and
forecasted customer payment trends, are considered in estimating the allowance. For customer agreements that are past due, the
Company' s policy is to write off lease receivables after 120 days. The provision for uncollectible renewal payments is recorded
as a reduction of lease revenues and fees in accordance with ASC 842. Vive recognizes interest income based upon the amount
of the loans outstanding, which is recognized as interest and fees on loans receivable in the billing period in which they are
assessed if collectability is reasonably assured. Vive acquires loans receivable from its third- party bank partners at a discount
from the face value of the loan. The discount is comprised mainly of a merchant fee discount, which represents a pre-
negotiated, nonrefundable discount that generally ranges from 3. 0 % to 25-30. 0 % of the loan face value. The discount is
designed to cover the risk of loss related to the portfolio of cardholder charges and Vive' s direct origination costs. The merchant
fee discount, net of the origination costs, is amortized on a net basis and is recorded as interest and fee revenue on loans
receivable on a straight- line basis over the initial 24- month period that the card is active. The Company' s Progressive Leasing
segment, at which all merchandise is on lease, depreciates merchandise on a straight- line basis to a 0 % salvage value generally
over 12 months. We record a provision for lease merchandise write- offs using the allowance method. The allowance for lease
merchandise write- offs estimates the merchandise losses incurred but not yet identified by management as of the end of the
accounting period. The Company estimates its allowance for lease merchandise write- offs using historical write- off experience.
Other qualitative factors, such as current and forecasted customer payment trends, are considered in estimating the allowance.
For customer agreements that are past due, the Company' s policy is to write off lease merchandise after 120 days. As of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, the allowance for lease merchandise write- offs was $ 51. 9 million and $ 44. 2
mitien-and-$4F1-million, respectively. The provision for lease merchandise write- offs was $ +55-178 . 3 million and $ 493
155 . 9-3 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2822-, respectively. Provision for Loan Losses and Loan
Loss Allowance Expected lifetime losses on loans receivable are recognized upon loan acquisition, which results in earlier
recognition of credit losses and requires the Company to make its best estimate of probable lifetime losses at the time of
acquisition. The Company segments its Vive loans receivable portfolio into homogenous pools by FICO score and by
delinquency status and evaluates loans receivable collectively for impairment when similar risk characteristics exist. Our Vive
credit card loans do not have contractually stated maturity dates, which requires the Company to estimate an average life of loan
by analyzing historical payment trends to determine an expected remaining life of the loan balance. Our current estimate is that
the average life of an outstanding credit card loan is approximately one to two years, depending on the respective FICO score
segmentation. The Company calculates the Vive allowance for loan losses based on internal historical loss information and
incorporates observable and forecasted macroeconomic data over a six- month reasonable and supportable forecast period. Key
macroeconomic factors incorporated into our forecasts include projected changes in unemployment rates, stock market
volatility, projected United States treasury rates, and projected prime lending rates. Incorporating macroeconomic data could
have a material impact on the measurement of the allowance to the extent that forecasted data changes significantly, such as
changes in forecasted unemployment rates and the observed significant market volatility. Subsequent to the six- month
reasonable and supportable forecast period described above, the Company reverts to using historical loss information on a
straight- line basis over a period of three months. For the remaining life of the portfolio, the Company utilizes historical loss
information. The Company may also consider other qualitative factors in estimating the allowance, as necessary. For the
purposes of determining the allowance as of December 31, 2623-2024 , management considered ether-qualitative factors such as



ightent i oan-deetstoningtnmt d eent-macroeconomic conditions associated with the impacts
-ffeﬁa—rnefeased-of stablhzmg mﬂatlon —and unemployment rates —&nd+eﬁhe—pesstbrh&y—e-ﬁa—reeessiefrm—the—Umted—Stafes-
v ata—. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level
c0n51dered approprlate to cover expected hfetlme losses of pr1n01pal interest and fees on active loans in the loans receivable
portfolio, and the appropriateness of the allowance is evaluated at each period end. Vive' s Pelinguent-delinquent loans
receivable are those that are 30 days or more past due based on their contractual billing dates. The-Companyplaces-Vive' s
loans receivable are placed on nonaccrual status when they are greater than 90 days past due or upon notification of cardholder
bankruptcy, death or fraud. Vive Fhe-Cempany-discontinues aeerting-recognizing interest and fees— fee revenue and
amortizing merchant fee discounts and promotional fee discounts for loans receivable in nonaccrual status. Loans receivable are
removed from nonaccrual status when eardhetderpaymentstesames-the loan becomes 90 days or less past due and collection of
the remaining amounts outstanding is deemed probable. Payments received on nonaccrual loans are allocated according to the
same payment hierarchy methodology applied to loans that are accruing interest. Loans receivable are charged off at the end of
the following month after the billing cycle in which the loans receivable become 120 days past due. Four extends or declines
credit on an individual transaction basis using its proprietary decisioning platform, without using customer credit
ratings. Four' s credit risk exposure is limited by smaller transaction values and a short loan duration. The provision for
loan losses was $ 56. 0 million and $ 40. 8 miten-and-$-4+—2-million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2022 respectively. The allowance for loan losses was $ 47. 8 million and $ 40. 6 million and-$42—~4-mithen-as of December
31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. Recent Accounting Pronouncements Refer to Note 1 to the Company' s consolidated
financial statements for a discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements. ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK As of December 31, 2023-2024 , we had #te-$ 50. 0 million of
outstanding borrowings under our senior snseeured—- secured Revolving Facility. Borrowings under the Revolving Facility are
indexed to SOFR or the prime rate, which exposes us to the risk of increased interest costs if interest rates rise. Based on the
Company' s variable- rate debt outstanding as of December 31, 2623-2024 , a hypothetical 1. 0 % increase or decrease in interest
rates would net-affeetincrease or decrease interest expense and cash flows by approximately $ 0. 5 million annually.
Interest rate risk amounts were determined by considering the impact of hypothetical interest rates on our Revolving
Facility. These analyses do not consider the effect of any change in overall economic activity that could occur. Further, in
the event of a change of that magnitude, we may take action to further mitigate our exposure to the change. However,
due to the uncertainty of the specific actions that would be taken and their possible effects, the analysis assumes no
changes in our financial structure . We do not use any significant market risk sensitive instruments to hedge commodity,
foreign currency or other risks, and hold no market risk sensitive instruments for trading or speculative purposes. ITEM 8.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm To
the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of PROG Holdings, Inc. Opinion on the Financial Statements We have audited the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets of PROG Holdings, Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2622, the related consolidated statements of earnings, shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2823-2024 , and the related notes (collectively referred to as the" consolidated financial
statements"). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company at December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2822-, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2623-2024 , in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles. We also
have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB),
the Company' s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal
Control- Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013
framework), and our report dated February 24-19 , 2824-2025 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company' s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company' s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with
the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matter The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter
arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the
audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective or complex judgments. The communication of the critical audit matter does not alter in any
way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit
matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the account or disclosure to which it relates.
Valuation of the allowance for loan lossesDescription of the MatterAs of December 31, 2623-2024 , the allowance for loan
losses (ALL) was $ 48-47 . 6-8 million. As discussed in Note 1 and Note 6-5 to the consolidated financial statements,
management records the ALL to estimate probable lifetime losses that are expected in the loan portfolio. In determining the
estimate, management utilizes quantitative factors such as actual historical loss experience and incorporates observable and
forecasted macroeconomic data such as projected changes in unemployment rates, stock market volatility, United States treasury




rates, inflation, and prime lending rates over a reasonable and supportable forecast perrod The Company also considers, as
necessary, qualitative factors such as the tgh g e™s ofng-H-m e eert-macroeconomic

condrtrons assocrated w1th the 1mpacts -frem—rnefeased-of stablllzmg inflation, and unemployment rates aﬂd+er—t-he—pesstbﬂ-rty

6ilsueh-pfegf&ms-eﬂ—ﬁs-eustemefs—ab&&y—te-pay— The Company apphes Judgment mcludmg the determlnatron of the expected

life of the loan receivable, as it determines necessary to make its best estimate of probable expected lifetime losses in the
portfolio. Auditing management' s ALL estimate involved a high degree of complexity in evaluating the quantitative calculation
of expected losses in the loan portfolio and subjectivity in evaluating management' s qualitative factors. Management' s
assessment and measurement of the qualitative factors is judgmental and-eoutd-have-asignifteanteffeetonthe- AL How We
Addressed the Matter in Our AuditWe focused our testing within-on the Vive segment as-due to the more subjective nature of
the portfolio and because it comprised the majority of the Company' s ALL balance as of December 31, 2623-2024 . We
obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of controls for management' s process of
the measurement and valuation of the ALL. For example, we tested controls over management' s review of the ALL
calculations, methodology and significant assumptions, including qualitative adjustments. With respect to the quantitative
calculation of expected losses, we involved internal specialists and evaluated the conceptual soundness of the methodology and
performed calculation procedures over the model. We also tested the appropriateness of key inputs and assumptions used in the
calculation by agreeing a sample of inputs to supporting information. With respect to the identification of qualitative factors, we
evaluated the potentlal 1mpact of'i 1mpre01sron 1n the calculatron and hence the need to consider a quahtatrve adJustment to the

: te-fa t obtained-duri atteh /s/Ernst&YoungLLPWe
have served as the Company s audrtor since 1991. Salt Lake C1ty, Utah F ebruary 2—1—19 2624-2025 Opinion on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting We have audited PROG Holdings, Inc.' s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2623-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). In our opinion, PROG Holdings, Inc. (the
Company) maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 ,
based on the COSO criteria. We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023
and-2022-, the related consolidated statements of earnings, shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2823-2024 , and the related notes and our report dated February 24-19 , 2624-2025 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon. Basis for Opinion The Company' s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in
the accompanying Management' s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company' s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion. Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting A company' s
internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company' s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company' s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. / s / Ernst & Young LLP Management Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting Management of PROG Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the" Company") is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because of its
inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. The Company' s management
assessed the effectiveness of the Company' s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 . In making
this assessment, the Company' s management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the



Treadway Commission (2013 framework) in Internal Control- Integrated Framework. Based on its assessment using those
criteria, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company' s internal control over financial reporting
was effective. The Company' s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 has been audited by Ernst
& Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report dated February 2419 , 2624-2025 ,
which expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company' s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2023-2024 . PROG HOLDINGS, INC. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS December 31, 20232622
20242023 (In Thousands, Except Share Data) ASSETS: Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 95, 655 $ 155, 416 $34345-880-Accounts
Receivable (net of allowances of $ 71, 607 in 2024 and $ 64, 180 in 2023 and-$-69;26412022-) 80, 225 67, 879 64,5241 casc
Merchandise (net of accumulated depreciation and allowances of § 440, 831 in 2024 and $ 423, 466 in 2023 and-$467355in
2622-) 680, 242 633, 427 648;-043-L.oans Receivable (net of allowances and unamortized fees 0f$ 57,342 in 2024 and $ 50,
022 in 2023 aﬂd—$§-3,—63§—iﬂ%922—) 146, 985 126, 823 430, 966-Property and Equipment, Net24-Net21 , 443 24 , 104 23852
Operating Lease Right- of- Use Assets9-Assets4 , 0359 , 271 H5-875-Goodwill296, 061 296, 061 Other Intangibles, Netd+
Net73, 775 91 , 664 H44H-Income Tax Reeetvable32-Receivablel0 , 644 32 , 918 48;864-Deferred Income Tax Assets2
Assets26 ,472 2 , 981 25955-Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets50-Assets78 , 230 50 , 711 48;48+Total Assets $ 1, 513,767 $
1,491, 255 $5494909-LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY: Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 93, 190 $
151, 259 $435;-625-Deferred Income Tax Hiabilitiest04-Liabilities74 , 320 104 , 838 37426+Customer Deposits and
Advance Payments35-Payments40 , 917 35 . 713 37-074-Operating Lease Hiabilitiest5-Liabilities11 , 496 15 , 849 2+-Debt ,
122 Debt592-Net643, 563 592 , 265 590,-966-Total Liabilities899-Liabilities863 , 486 899 , 924 924448-Commitments and
Contingencies (Note +8-9 ) Shareholders' Equity: Common Stock, Par Value $ 0. 50 Per Share: Authorized: 225, 000, 000
Shares at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-; Shares Issued: 82, 078, 654 at December 31, 2023-2024 and 26224+202341
, 039 41, 039 Additional Paid- in €apital352-Capital358 , 538 352 , 421 338;-8+4-Retained Earningsl, 469, 450 1, 293, 073 1,
154-869 , 235027 1, 686, 533 155340988 css: Treasury Shares at CostCommon Stock: 3841 , 484-262 , 527901 Shares at
December 31, 2023-2024 and 34-38 . 644-404 , +62-527 at December 31, 2022-2023 (1, 218, 746) (1, 095, 202 3963-62F)
Total Shareholders' Eequity59+-Equity650 , 281 591 , 331 570,46+ Total Liabilities & Sharcholders' Equity $ 1, 513,767 $ 1,
491, 255 $1495909-The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS Year Ended December 31, 262320222024-202420232022 (In Thousands,
Except Per Share Data) REVENUES: Lease Revenues and Fees $ 2, 366, 489 $ 2, 333, 588 $ 2, 523, 785 $2,-619;-605-Interest
and Fees on Loans Reeetvable74— Receivable97 , 007 74 , 676 74, 041 582 , 945-463, 496 2, 408, 264 2, 597, 826 25677926
COSTS AND EXPENSES: Depreciation of Lease Merchandisel, 621, 101 1, 576, 303 1, 757, 730 4:-8206,-648-Provision for
Lease Merchandise Write- effs+55-0ffs178, 338 155, 250 193, 926 +26;-984-Operating Expenses45+-Expenses469 , 160 451 ,
084 450, 374 39%-399-Impairment of Goodwill —— 10, 151 —2,268, 599 2, 182, 637 2, 412, 181 2;344;393-OPERATING
PROF225-PROFIT194, 897 225 , 627 185, 645 333527 Interest Expense, Net ( 31, 289) (29, 400) (37, 401 H5:323-)
EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAX (BENEFIT) EXRPENSEL96—- EXPENSE163 , 608 196 , 221 148, 244 328204
INCOME TAX (BENEFIT) EXRENSES7-- EXPENSE (33, 641) 57 . 383 49, 535 84;647+NET EARNINGS § 197,249 §
138, 838 $ 98, 709 $243:-557-EARNINGS PER SHAREBasic $ 4. 63 $ 3. 02 $ 1. 90 $3-69-Assuming Dilution $ 4. 53 § 2. 98
$1.90 $3-6FWEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING: Baste46-Basic42 , 584 46 , 034 51, 921 66,026
Assuming DHuttend6-Dilutiond3 , 549 46 , 550 52, 075 66;4+6-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY Treasury StockCommon StockAdditionalPaid- in CapitalRetained EarningsTotal Shareholders' Equity (In Thousands,
Except Per Share) Share9AmountSharqumountBalance January 1, %92—1—2022 (%3—9%9)—55—66—1—3—88—19—99—752—&45—346%—3—1—8—

> 05 05 > 05

(38) $ (749 401) 82,079 $ 41 039 $ 332 244 $ 1, 055 52( $ 679, 408 Stock- Ba%ed Compen%atlon———— 17 694 — 17
694 Reissued Shares314 9, 372 — — (11, 124) — (1, 752) Repurchased Shares (8, 720) (223, 598) — — — — (223, 598) Net
Earnings — — — — — 98, 709 98, 709 Balance, December 31, 2022 (34, 044) $ (963, 627) 82,079 $ 41, 039 $ 338,814 $ 1,

154, 235 $ 570, 461 Stock- Based Compensatio
(2, 265) Repurchased Shares (4, 691) (140, 855) — — — — (140, 855) Net Earnings — — — — — 138, 838 138, 838
Balance, December 31, 2023 (38, 405) $ (1, 095, 202) 82, 079 § 41, 039 § 352,421 § 1,293,073 § 591, 331 Cash Dividends, $
0. 48 per share — — — — — (20, 872) (20, 872) Stock- Based Compensation — — — — 29, 597 — 29, 597 Reissued
Shares623 16, 183 — — (23, 480) — (7, 297) Repurchased Shares (3, 481) (139, 727) — — — — (139, 727) Net Earnings
————— 197, 249 197, 249 Balance, December 31, 2024 (41, 263) $ (1, 218, 746) 82,079 $ 41, 039 $ 358, 538 $ 1, 469,
450 $ 650, 281 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Year Ended December 31, (In Thousands)
20232022202 10PERATING—--- 2024202320220PERATING ACTIVITIES: Net Earnings $ 197, 249 $ 138, 838 $ 98, 709 §
243-557-Adjustments to Reconcile Net Earnings to Cash Provided by Operating Activities: Depreciation of Lease
Merchandisel, 621, 101 1, 576, 303 1, 757, 730 45826;:-64+08-Other Depreciation and Amertizattor32-- Amortization26 , 977 32
, 032 33,851 3—3—25-8—PIOV1§10H§ for Account% Receivable and Loan fesses345-Losses386 , 558 345 , 383 417, 496 242442
Stock— Based Compensation24-Compensation29 , 179 24 , 920 17, 521 245349-Deferred Income Taxes ( 56, 030) ( 32, 449) (9,
199) 45;:-729-Impairment of Goodwill and Other Assets6, 018 — 10, 151 Income Tax Benefit from Reversal of Uncertain
Tax Position (51, 443) — — Non- Cash Lease Expense ( 3, 632) (2, 669) (1, 674) 994-Other Changes, Net ( 2, 640) ( 5, 992)
(7, 164 3HF-56+) Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities s NetofEffeets-of Aequistttons—: Additions to Lease Merchandlse
(1, 850,425) (1, 721, 117) (1, 889, 207 H2-654;7-467) Book Value of Lease Merchandise Sold or Pispesed+59-Disposed182 ,
509 159 , 430 197, 489 130-665-Accounts Receivable ( 342, 954) (307, 984) (374, 515 H229:-763-) Prepaid Expenses and
Other Assets ( 25,394) (2, 110) 68 €58#9-Income Tax Receivable and Payable-Payable24 , 743 (14, 188) (6, 007 H295753-)




Operating Lease Right- of- Use Assets and Liabilities — — 2, 999 {1;-955)-Accounts Payable and Accrued Expensests—-
Expenses (8, 495) 15, 200 2, 227 76;-826-Customer Deposits and Advance Payments-PaymentsS , 204 (1, 361) (7, 996
495-) Cash Provided by Operating Aettvities204-Activities138 , 525 204 , 236 242, 479 245;96+-INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investments in Loans Receivable ( 459, 463) (214, 686) (203, 600 3+482204-) Proceeds from Loans Reeetvabled85
Receivable388 , 437 185 , 056 159, 707 432;28+0utflows on Purchases of Property and Equipment ( 8,316) (9, 616) (9, 674 ¥
(-9%55—) Proceeds frorn Sale of Property and Equtpmeﬂt4-8—Equ1pment131 48 277 78-Other Proceeds-Proceeds41 365

stom g 65-6 22;766)-Cash Used in Investing Activities ( 79,
170) ( 38 833) (53 534 )—(—82—1—66—) F INANCING ACTIVITIES Repayments-Borrowings on Revolving Faethity-Facility50 ,
Net-000 — — (56,600 ProecedsfromBPebt———>595-756-Acquisition of Treasury Stock ( 138, 651) ( 139, 573) (223, 598 ¥
42,358) Tender Offer Stock Repurchased and Retired — — (274) Dividends Paid ( 428-20 , 554393 ) — — Issuance of
Stock Under Stock Option and Employee Purchase Planst-Plans2,364 1, 357 1, 150 4;-592-Cash Paid for Shares Withheld
for Employee Fax-Taxes Payments-(9, 660) (3, 622) (2, 902 H5;:423-) Debt Issuance Costs (2, 776) (29) (1, 600 H59) Cash
Used In Financing Activities ( 119, 116) ( 141, 867) (227, 224) ( Decrease 36;28+) Increase {Beereasey-in Cash and Cash

- Equivalents (59, 761) 23 , 536 (38, 279) 33;7-544-Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of ¥eard3+

Yearl55, 416 131 , 880 170, 159 36—645—Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 95,655 $ 155,416 $ 131, 880 $478,459
Net Cash Paid During the Year: Interest $ 37,033 $ 36, 991 § 35, 712 $45452-Income Taxes $ 49, 840 $ 100, 433 $62,172 %
53;-662-PROG HOLDINGS, INC. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTE 1: BUSINESS AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Descrrptron ofBusrness Ane—(we our st

seeond—tookrevolvingereditproduets—Our Progresswe Leasing segment provrdes consumers wrth Iease purchase solutrons
through its point- of- sale partner locations and e- commerce website partners in the United States and Puerto Rico
(collectively," POS partners"). It does so by purchasing merchandise from the POS partners desired by customers and, in turn,
leasing that merchandise to the customers through a cancellable lease- to- own transaction. Progressive Leasing has no stores of
its own, but rather offers lease- purchase solutions to the customers of traditional and e- commerce retailers. PROG Holdings'
ecosystem OnJune25;2021;-the-Company-completed-the-aequisition-of financial technology offerings also includes Four
Technologies, Inc. (" Four"), a aptnnrevative-Buy Now, Pay Later (" BNPL") company that allows shoppers to pay for
merchandise through four interest- free installments. Shoppers use Four to purchase furniture, clothing, electronics, health and
beauty products, footwear, jewelry, and other consumer goods from retailers across the United States. Four is not a reportable
segment for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and-2624-as its financial results are not materiat-significant to
the Company' s consolidated financial results —See—Nete—Z—fer—ft&t-her—dtseus‘sreﬁ—erﬁ-he—aeqmsmeﬁ— Basis of Presentation The
preparation of the Company' s consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States (" U. S. GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
these consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Management
does not believe these estimates or assumptions will change significantly in the future absent unidentified and unforeseen events,
such as the possible direct or indirect impacts associated with elevated inflation, increasing unemployment rates, the-resumption
of studentloanrepaymentsir-Oetober2023;-and / or the pessibility-impact of tariffs a-reeesstonintheUnited-States-.
Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of PROG Holdings, Inc. and its
subsidiaries, each of which is wholly- owned. Intercompany balances and transactions between consolidated entities have been
eliminated. Progressive Leasing provides merchandise, consisting primarily of furniture, appliances, electronics, jewelry;-mobile
phones and accessories , jewelry , mattresses, automobile electronics and accessories, and a variety of other products, to its
customers for lease under terms agreed to by the customer. Progressive Leasing offers customers of traditional and e- commerce
retailers a lease- purchase solution through leases with payment terms that can generally be renewed up to 12 months.
Progressive Leasing does not require deposits upon inception of customer agreements. The customer has the right to acquire
ownership either through early buyout options or through payment of all required lease payments. The agreements are
cancellable at any time by either party without penalty. All of Progressive Leasing' s customer agreements are considered
operating leases. The Company maintains ownership of the lease merchandise until all payment obligations are satisfied under
the lease ownership agreements. Initial lease payments made by the customer upon lease execution are recognized as deferred
revenue and are amortized as lease revenue over the estimated lease term on a straight- line basis. Initial lease payments and
other payments collected in advance of being due or earned are recognized as deferred revenue within customer deposits and
advance payments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. All other customer lease billings are earned prior to the
lease payment due date and are recorded net of related sales taxes as earned. Payment due date terms include weekly, bi-
weekly, semi- monthly and monthly frequencies. Revenue recorded prior to the payment due date results in unbilled receivables
recognized in accounts receivable, net of allowances, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Lease revenues are
recorded net of a provision for uncollectible renewal payments. Initial direct costs related to lease purchase agreements are
capitalized as incurred and amortized as operating expense over the estimated lease term. The capitalized costs have been
classified within prepaid expenses and other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Interest and fees on loans
receivable is primarily generated from our Vive segment. Vive extends or declines credit to an applicant through its bank
partners based upon the applicant' s credit rating and other factors. Qualifying applicants are approved for a specified maximum
revolving credit card line to finance their initial purchase and to use in subsequent purchases at the merchant or other
participating merchants for an initial 24- month period, which Vive may renew if the cardholder remains in good standing. Vive
acquires the loan receivable from its third- party bank partners at a discount from the face value of the loan. The discount is



comprised of a merchant fee discount and a promotional fee discount, if applicable. The merchant fee discount represents a pre-
negotiated, nonrefundable discount that generally ranges from 3 % to 25-30 % of the loan face value. The discount is designed
to cover the risk of loss related to the portfolio of cardholder charges and Vive' s direct origination costs. The merchant fee
discount and origination costs are presented net in the consolidated balance sheets in loans receivable. Cardholders generally
have an initial 24- month period that the card is active. The merchant fee discount, net of the origination costs, is amortized on a
net basis and is recorded as interest and fees on loans receivable in the consolidated statements of earnings on a straight- line
basis over the initial 24- month period. If the loan receivable is paid off or charged off during the 24- month period, the
remaining net merchant fee discount is recognized as interest and fees on loans receivable at that time. The discount from the
face value of the loan on the acquisition of the loan receivable from the merchant through the third- party bank partners may
also include a promotional fee discount, which generally ranges from 1 % to 8 %. The promotional fee discount is intended to
compensate the holder of the loan receivable (i. e., Vive) for deferred or reduced interest rates that are offered to the cardholder
for a specified period on the outstanding loan balance (generally for six, 12 or 18 months). The promotional fee discount is
amortized as interest and fees on loans receivable in the consolidated statements of earnings on a straight- line basis over the
promotional interest period (i. e., over six, 12 or 18 months, depending on the promotion). If the loan receivable is paid off or
charged off prior to the expiration of the promotional period, the remaining promotional fee discount is recognized as interest
and fees on loans receivable at that time. The unamortized promotional fee discount is presented net within loans receivable in
the consolidated balance sheets. The customer is typically required to make monthly minimum payments of at least 3. 5 % of the
outstanding loan balance, which includes outstanding interest. Fixed and variable interest rates, typically 27 % to 35. 99 %, are
compounded daily for cards that do not qualify for deferred or reduced interest promotional periods. Interest income, which is
recognized based upon the amount of the loans outstanding, is recognized as interest and fees on loans receivable when earned
if eoHeetibility-collectability is reasonably assured. For credit cards that provide deferred interest, if the balance is not paid off
during the promotional period or if the cardholder defaults, interest is billed to the customers at standard rates and the
cumulative amount owed is charged to the cardholder account in the month that the promotional period expires. The Company
recognizes interest revenue during the promotional period based on its historical experience related to cardholders that fail to pay
off balances during the promotional period if eeHeetibtlity-collectability is reasonably assured. Annual fees are charged to
cardholders at the commencement of the loan and on each subsequent anniversary date. Annual fees are deferred and
recognized into revenue on a straight- line basis over a one- year period. Under the provisions of the credit card agreements,
Vive also may assess fees for missed or late payments, which are recognized as revenue in the billing period in which they are
assessed if eoHeetibility-collectability is reasonably assured. Annual fees and other fees are recognized as interest and fees on
loans receivable in the consolidated statements of earnings. Progressive Leasing' s merchandise consists primarily of furniture,
appliances, electronics, jewelry;-mobile phones and accessories , jewelry , mattresses, automobile electronics and accessories,
and a variety of other products, and is recorded at the lower of depreciated cost or net realizable value. Progressive Leasing
depreciates lease merchandise to a 0 % salvage value generally over 12 months. Depreciation is accelerated upon early buyout.
All of Progressive Leasing' s merchandise, net of accumulated depreciation and allowances, represents on- lease merchandise.
The Company records a provision for write- offs using the allowance method. The allowance method for lease merchandise
write- offs estimates the merchandise losses incurred but not yet identified by management as of the end of the accounting
period based on historical write- off experience. Other qualitative factors, such as current and forecasted customer payment
trends, are considered in estimating the allowance. Given the significant uncertainty regarding the impacts of inflation, tariffs,
elevated interest rates ;-the-resumptionof studentdoanrepayments-, and / or unemployment rates on our business, a high level of
estimation was involved in determining the allowance as of December 31, 2023-2024 . Actual lease merchandise write- offs
may differ materially from the allowance as of December 31, 2623-2024 . For customer lease agreements that are past due, the
Company' s policy is to write off lease merchandise after 120 days. The following table shows the components of the allowance
for lease merchandise write- offs, which is included within lease merchandise, net in the consolidated balance sheets: Year
Ended December 31, (In Thousands) 262320222024 Beginning—--- 202420232022Beginning Balance $ 44,180 $ 47, 118 § 54,
367 $45-992-Net Book Value of Merchandise Written off ( 178, 778) ( 165, 153) (210, 160) H28;-63HReeoveriesé
Recoveries8 , 134 6 , 965 8, 985 9;-422-Provision for Write- ﬁ-ffs—léé—offsl78 338 155, 250 193, 926 426;984-Ending Balance
$51,874 44, 180 $ 47, 118 $54;:36%Vendor Incentives and Rebates Provided to POS Partners Progressive Leasing has
agreements with some of its POS partners that require additional consideration to be paid to the POS partner, including
payments for exclusivity, rebates based on lease volume originations generated through the POS partners, and payments to the
POS partners for marketing or other development initiatives to promote additional lease originations through these POS
partners. Payments made to POS partners as consideration for them providing exclusivity to Progressive Leasing for lease- to-
own transactions with customers of the POS partner are expensed on a straight- line basis over the exclusivity term. Rebates are
accrued over the period the POS partner is earning the rebate, which is typically based on quarterly or annual lease origination
volumes. Payments made to POS partners for marketing or development initiatives are expensed on a straight- line basis over
the period the POS partner is earning the funds or the specified marketing term. Progressive Leasing expensed $ 34. 4 million,
$ 28. 5 million, and $ 27. 7 millien;-and-$48--0-million for such additional consideration to POS partners, for the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-20824-, respectively. Expenses related to additional consideration provided to POS
partners are classified within operating expenses in the consolidated statements of earnings. The Company expenses advertising
costs as incurred. Total advertising costs amounted to $ 20. 1 million, $ 17. 2 millionyand $ 15. 8 mitlenand-$3+7-S5-million
for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2621-, respectively, and are classified within operating expenses
in the consolidated statements of earnings. The Company has stock- based employee compensation plans, which are more fully
described in Note 43-12 to these consolidated financial statements . The fair value of each share of restricted stock units ("
RSUs"), restricted stock awards (" RSAs'") and performance share units (" PSUs") awarded is equal to the market value



of a share of the Company' s common stock on the grant date. The Company uses a Monte Carlo simulation model to
estimate the grant date fair value of PSUs that will be earned based on the relative performance of the Company' s total
shareholder return (" TSR'") compared to the TSR of the S & P 600 Small Cap Index . The Company estimates the fair
Value for the optrons granted on the grant date usmg a Black— Scholes Merton optron prrcmg model The -fatr—val-ue—e-f—eaeh

; he-ma : a-she h s-eommon-stoek-on-the-grant-da h Company estrmates the farr value
of awards issued under the Company' s employee stock purchase plan (" ESPP”) usrng a series of Black- Scholes pricing models
that consider the components of the" lookback" feature of the plan, including the underlying stock, call option and put option.
The design of awards issued under the Company' s ESPP is described in more detail in Note 43-12 to these consolidated
financial statements. Deferred income taxes represent primarily temporary differences between the amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial and tax reporting purposes. The Company' s largest temporary differences arise principally from the use
of accelerated depreciation methods on lease merchandise for tax purposes. Earnings Per Share Earnings per share is computed
by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. The
computation of earnings per share assuming dilution includes the dilutive effect of stock options, RSUs, RSAs, PSUs and
awards issuable under the Company' s ESPP (collectively," share- based awards") as determined under the treasury stock
method. The following table shows the calculation of dilutive share- based awards: Year Ended December 31, (Shares In
Thousands) 202320222024 Weighted---- 202420232022Weighted Average Shares Outstanding46-Outstanding42 , 584 46 ,
034 51, 921 66;926-Dilutive Effect of Share- Based Awards5+6-—- Awards965 516 154 396-Weighted Average Shares
Outstanding Assuming Pilattend6-Dilutiond3 , 549 46 , 550 52, 075 66;-4+6-Approximately 440, 000, 833, 000 s-and 1, 410 5
066-and423-, 000 weighted- average share- based awards were excluded from the computation of earnings per share assuming
dilution during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and-2624, respectively, as the awards would have been
antidilutive for the periods presented. The Company classifies highly liquid investments with maturity dates of three months or
less when purchased as cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in a limited number of banks.
Bank balances typically exceed coverage provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. However, due to the size and
strength of the banks in which the balances are held, any exposure to loss is believed to be minimal. Accounts receivable consist
primarily of receivables due from customers of Progressive Leasing and amounted to $ 80. 2 million and $ 67. 9 million ard-$
64—5-mithen, net of allowances, as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, respectively. The Company maintains an
accounts receivable allowance, which primarily relates to its Progressive Leasing operations and;-to-atesserextent, reeetvables
ffe-m—Vwe—s—P@-S—paﬁnefs— The Company' s policy is to record an allowance for uncollectible renewal payments based on
historical collection experience. Other qualitative factors, such as current and forecasted business trends, are considered in
estimating the allowance. Given the significant uncertainty regarding the impacts of inflation, elevated interest rates, the
resumption-of studenttoan-repayments;and / or unemployment rates on our business, a high level of estimation was involved in
determining the allowance as of December 31, 2623-2024 . Therefore, actual future accounts receivable write- offs may differ
materially from the allowance. The provision for uncollectible renewal payments is recorded as a reduction of lease revenues
and fees within the consolidated statements of earnmgs For customer lease agreements that are past due the Company s policy
is to wrrte off lease receivables after 120 days ; ane ble ACCOTHLS v v

felafed—a-l-lew&nee—fer—le&n—lesses—The followmg table shows the Components of the accounts recervable allowance Year Ended
December 31, (In Thousands) 202320222021 Beginning—--- 202420232022Beginning Balance $ 64, 180 $ 69, 264 § 71,233 $
56;-364-Net Book Value of Accounts Written Off ( 360, 790) ( 348, 729) (415, 344) (7'}47—7-89)—Reee¥eﬂes-3r9-Recoverles37

609 39,019 37, 111 3F/944-Accounts Receivable Proviston364— Provision330 , 608 304 . 626 376, 264 224;-744-Ending
Balance $ 71, 607 $ 64, 180 $ 69, 264 $7F233-1 oans Receivable, Net Gross loans receivable primarily represents the principal
balances of credit card charges at Vive' s participating merchants that remain due from cardholders, plus unpaid interest and fees
due from cardholders. The allowance and unamortized fees represent uncollectible amounts; merchant fee discounts, net of
capitalized origination costs; promotional fee discounts; and deferred annual card fees. Loans receivable, net, also includes $ 43
34 . 9 million and § 5-13 . 3-9 million of outstanding receivables from customers of Four as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 aned
2022, respectively. Economic conditions and loan performance trends are closely monitored to manage and evaluate exposure
to credit risk. Trends in delinquency rates are an indicator of credit risk within the loans receivable portfolio, including the
migration of loans between delinquency categories over time. Charge- off rates represent another indicator of the potential for
future credit losses. The risk in the loans receivable portfolio is correlated with broad economic trends, such as current and
projected unemployment rates, stock market volatility, and changes in medium and long- term risk- free rates, which are
considered in determining the allowance for loan losses and can have a material effect on credit performance. Expected lifetime
losses on loans receivable are recognized upon loan acquisition, which requires the Company to make its best estimate of
probable lifetime losses at the time of acquisition. Vive' s credit card loans do not have contractually stated maturity dates,
which requires the Company to estimate an average life of loan by analyzing historical payment trends to determine an expected
remaining life of the loan balance. Vive The-Company-segments its loans receivable portfolio into homogenous pools by Fair
Isaac and Company (" FICO") score and by delinquency status and evaluates loans receivable collectively for impairment when
similar risk characteristics exist. The Company calculates Vive's allowance for loan losses based on internal historical loss
information and incorporates observable and forecasted macroeconomic data over a six- month reasonable and supportable
forecast period. Incorporating macroeconomic data could have a material impact on the measurement of the allowance to the
extent that forecasted data changes significantly, such as higher forecasted inflation , and unemployment rates. Subsequent to
the six- month reasonable and supportable forecast period described above, the Company reverts to using historical loss




information on a straight- line basis over a three- month period. For the remaining life of the portfolio, the Company utilizes
historical loss information. The Company may also consider other qualitative factors in estimating the allowance, as necessary.
For the purposes of determrnrng the allowance as of December 31, 2023-2024 , management considered qualitative factors such
as the and-macroeconomic conditions associated with the impacts from

-mefeased-stamhzmg mflat10n —and unemployment rates Tand-or-the-possibility-ef areeesston-inrthe-United-States-. The

allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level considered appropriate to cover expected future losses of principal, interest
and fees on active loans in the loans receivable portfolio. The appropriateness of the allowance is evaluated at each period end.

To the extent that actual results differ from estlmates of uncollectlble loans recervable —elue—to—t-he—vo-l&t—thty—oﬁ-nﬂ-&t—ton;

; aletta aHowar the Company s results of operations and quu1d1ty may
be materlally affected Vlve s delinquent loans recervable mcludes those that are 30 days or more past due based on their
contractual billing dates. Vive' s loans receivable are placed on nonaccrual status when they are greater than 90 days past due or
upon notification of cardholder bankruptcy, death or fraud. Vive Fhe-Company-discontinues aeerutngrecognizing interest and
fees— fee revenue and amortizing merchant fee discounts and promotional fee discounts for Vive' s loans receivable in
nonaccrual status. Loans receivable are removed from nonaccrual status when eardhelderpaymentsresume;-the loan becomes
90 days or less past due and collection of the remaining amounts outstanding is deemed probable. Payments received on
nonaccrual loans are allocated according to the same payment hierarchy methodology applied to loans that are accruing interest.
Loans receivable are charged off no later than the end of the following month after the billing cycle in which the loans
receivable become 120 days past due. Vive extends or declines credit to an applicant through its bank partners based upon the
applicant' s credit rating and other factors. Four extends or declines Below-is-a-summary-ofthecredit quality-of the-Company
on an individual transaction basis using its proprietary decisioning platform, without using customer credit ratings. Four
instead uses an internal model using factors such as banking data and user history to generate internal proprietary risk
scores. Four S rlsk exposure is llmlted by smaller transactlon values and a short loan duratlon peﬁ-fel-te—as—ef—Beeember

Tdentified8-—8%4-—3%The Company records property and equlpment at Cost Deprecratlon and amortlzatron are Computed ona
straight- line basis over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, which range from three to 12 years for leasehold
improvements and from one to seven years for other depreciable property and equipment. Costs incurred to develop software for
internal use are capitalized and amortized over the estimated useful life of the software, which ranges from three to five to16
years. The Company develops software for use in its Progressive Leasing, Vive, and Four operations and related to other
strategic initiatives. The Company uses an agile development methodology in which feature- by- feature updates are made to its
software. Certain costs incurred during the application development stage of an internal- use software project are capitalized
when management, with the relevant authority, authorizes and commits to funding a feature update and it is probable that the
project will be completed and the software will be used to perform the function intended. Capitalization of costs ceases when
the feature update is substantially complete and ready for its intended use. All costs incurred during preliminary project and
post- implementation project stages are expensed. Generally, the life cycle for each feature update implementation is one to six
months. Gains and losses related to dispositions and retirements are recognized as incurred. Maintenance and repairs are also
expensed as incurred, and leasehold improvements are capitalized and amortized over the lesser of the lease term or the asset' s
useful life. Depreciation expense for property and equipment is included in operating expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of earnings and was $ 9. 1 million, $ 9. 3 miten;-$H-—0-million and $ 11. 0 million during the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2824-, respectively. Amortization of previously capitalized internal use
software development costs, which is a component of depreciation expense for property and equipment, was $ 6. 8 million, $ 5.
4 millionsand $ 5. 5 mithenand-$4-—9-million during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2624-,
respectively. The Company assesses its long- lived assets other than goodwill and other indefinite- lived intangible assets for
impairment whenever facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be fully recoverable. If it is determined
that the carrying amount of an asset is not recoverable, the Company compares the carrying amount of the asset to its fair value
as estimated using discounted expected future cash flows, market values or replacement values for similar assets. The amount by
which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the asset, if any, is recognized as an impairment loss. Prepaid expenses and
other assets consist of the following: December 31, (In Thousands) 20232622Prepaid-20242023Prepaid Expenses $ 38, 621 $
17, 768 $48;845-Prepaid Lease Merehandise9-Merchandisel2 , 540 9 . 944 +8;434-Prepaid Software ExpensesS-Expenses9 ,
908 8 , 624 F-922-Unamortized Initial Direct Costs on Lease Agreement Originations7, 883 7, 192 6;-0+6-Other Assets?
Assets9 , 278 7 , 183 6;464-Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets $ 78,230 $ 50, 711 $48;48+-The Company incurs costs to
implement cloud computing arrangements (" CCA") that are hosted by third- party vendors. Implementation costs associated
with CCA are capitalized when incurred during the application development phase and are recorded within prepaid software
expenses above. Amortization is calculated on a straight- line basis over the contractual term of the arrangement and is included
within computer software expense as a component of operating expenses in the consolidated statements of earnings. Goodwill
represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of the identifiable net tangible and intangible assets acquired
in connection with business acquisitions. Progressive Leasing and Four are the only reporting units with goodwill. Impairment
occurs when the reporting unit' s carrying value exceeds its fair value. The Company' s goodwill is not amortized but is subject
to an impairment test at the reporting unit level annually as of October 1 and more frequently if events or circumstances indicate
that an impairment may have occurred. Factors which could necessitate an interim impairment assessment include a sustained
decline in the Company' s stock price, prolonged negative industry or economic trends and significant underperformance relative
to historical results, projected future operating results, or the Company failing to successfully execute on one or more elements



of Progressive Leasing and / or Four' s strategic plans. During the third quarter of 2022, the Company engaged the assistance of
a third- party valuation firm to perform the interim goodwill impairment test for the Four reporting unit. This included an
assessment of the Four reporting unit' s fair value relative to the carrying value that was derived using a market approach. The
market approach, which includes the guideline public company method, utilized pricing multiples derived from an analysis of
other publicly traded companies that operate in the BNPL industry. We believe the comparable companies we evaluate as
marketplace participants serve as an appropriate reference when calculating fair value because those companies have similar
risks, participate in similar markets, provide similar products and services for their customers and compete with Four directly.
The Company determined the Four goodwill was partially impaired and recorded a $ 10. 2 million impairment of goodwill
during the third quarter of 2022. The remaining carrying value of the Four reporting unit was $ 7. 3 million, which
approximated its fair value as of October 1, 2022. Additional goodwill impairment charges may occur in future periods if the
Company fails to execute on one or more elements of Four' s strategic plan, Four' s actual or projected results are unfavorable
compared to the current forecasted operating results, and / or there are further declines in the BNPL peer market multiples. The
Company completed qualitative assessments for its annual goodwill impairment test for both Progressive Leasing and Four as of
October 1,2023-2024 . The qualitative assessments did not present any indicators of impairment and the Company concluded
that no impairment had occurred. The Company determined that there were no events that occurred or circumstances that
changed during the fourth quarter of 2623-2024 that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of Progressive Leasing or
Four below their carrying amounts. Other intangibles represent identifiable intangible assets acquired as a result of the
Progressive Leasing, Vive and Four acquisitions, which the Company recorded at the estimated fair value as of the respective
acquisition dates. The Company amortized the definite- lived intangible assets acquired as a result of the Vive acquisition on a
straight- line basis over five years. The Company amortizes the definite- lived intangible assets acquired as a result of the
Progressive Leasing and Four acquisitions on a straight- line basis over periods ranging from two to 12 years for technology,
Four' s trade name, and merchant relationships. Indefinite- lived intangible assets represent the value of the trade name acquired
as part of the Progressive Leasing acquisition. At the date of acquisition, the Company determined that no legal, regulatory,
contractual, competitive, economic or other factors limit the useful life of the trade name intangible asset and, therefore, the
useful life is considered indefinite. The Company reassesses this conclusion quarterly and continues to believe the useful life of
this asset is indefinite. Indefinite- lived intangible assets are not amortized but are subject to an impairment test annually and
when events or circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred. The Company performs the impairment test for its
indefinite- lived intangible assets on October 1 in conjunction with its annual goodwill impairment test. The Company
completed its indefinite- lived intangible asset impairment test as of October 1, 2623-2024 and concluded that no impairment
had occurred. Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following: December 31, (In Thousands)
20232622Aeeounts—-- 20242023 Accounts Payable $ 13,117 $ 20, 237 $+45386-Accrued Salaries and Benefits27Benefits24 ,
206 27 , 256 245366-Accrued Sales and Personal Property Taxes11, 080 11, 684 43;:-5+FIncome Taxes Rayablet-Payable3 ,
622 1, 153 15287 Uncertain Tax Pesttionst54— Positions1785 54 , 995 5454H0-Accrued Vendor Rebates11, 704 11, 446 9;-326
Other Accrued Expenses and Hiabilities24-Liabilities28 , 676 24 , 488 24;-039-Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 93,
190 $ 151, 259 $435;9025-1 The uncertain tax pesittons— position as of December 31, 2023 was and-2022-are-primarily related
to the Company' s tax treatment of the $ 175. 0 million settlement payment made in 2020 to the FTC as discussed in Note 9-8 .
During the third quarter of 2023, Progressive Leasing experienced a cybersecurity incident affecting certain data and IT
systems of Progressive Leasing. Promptly after detecting the incident, the Company engaged third- party cybersecurity
experts and took immediate steps to respond to, remediate and investigate the incident. Law enforcement was also
notified. Based on the Company' s investigation, the Company determined that the data involved in the incident
contained a substantial amount of personally identifiable information, including social security numbers, of Progressive
Leasing' s customers and other individuals. With the assistance of our cybersecurity experts, the Company located the
Progressive Leasing customers and other individuals whose information was impacted and notified them, consistent with
state and federal requirements. The Company also took a number of additional measures to demonstrate its continued
support and commitment to data privacy and protection. During the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the
Company incurred $ 0. 3 million and $ 2. 8 million , respectively, for aetual-and-antiepated-costs related to the cybersecurity
incident , net of insurance proceeds . These-Those costs related primarily to third- party legal and consulting services and
credit monitoring services for Progressive Leasing' s customers and employees that were impacted and-. Those costs, net of
insurance proceeds, are included within professional services expense as a component of operating expenses in the
consolidated statements of earnings. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had $ 0. 1 million and $ 0. 9 million,
respectively, accrued for costs related to the cybersecurity incident, which are included in accounts payable and accrued
expenses in the consolidated balance sheets. Fair Value Measurement Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. To
increase the comparability of fair value measures, the following hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation methodologies used
to measure fair value: Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets. Level 2
— Valuations based on observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets
and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, or other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data. Level 3 — Valuations based on unobservable
inputs reflecting the Company' s own assumptions, consistent with reasonably available assumptions made by other market
participants. These valuations require significant judgment. The Company measures a liability related to its non- qualified
deferred compensation plan, which represents benefits accrued for plan participants and is valued at the quoted market prices of
the participants' investment elections, at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company maintains certain financial assets and
liabilities that are not measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed. The fair values of the Company' s other



current financial assets and liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable,
approximate their carrying values due to their short- term nature. Adopted In March 2022, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (" FASB ") issued Accounting Standards Update ("' ASU ") 2022- 02, Financial Instruments- Credit Losses, Troubled
Debt Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures. ASU 2022- 04 eliminates the accounting guidance for troubled debt restructurings
by creditors while enhancing disclosure requirements for certain restructurings by creditors when a borrower is experiencing
financial difficulty. In addition, the amendments require disclosure of current period gross write- offs for financing receivables
by year of origination in the vintage disclosures. ASU 2022- 02 s-was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years for entities. The Company has-clected to early adopt this standard for
the year ended December 31, 2022. The adoption of this update did not have a material impact to the financial statements;
however, the Company enhanced its vintage disclosure to include the current period gross write- offs by year of origination
within Note 6-5 . In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020- 04, Reference Rate Reform: Facilitation of the Effects of
Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting (" ASU 2020- 04"). The standard provides temporary guidance to ease the
potential burden in accounting for reference rate reform primarily resulting from the discontinuation of the London Interbank
Overnight Rate (" LIBOR") or another reference rate expected to be discontinued. Entities may apply the provisions of the new
standard as of the beginning of the reporting period when the election is made. The provisions of this update were have-beenr
extended to December 31, 2024, when the reference rate replacement activity is expected to have been completed. The
amendments in ASU 2020- 04 are elective and apply to all entities that have contracts referencing LIBOR. The new guidance
provides an expedient which simplifies accounting analyses under current U. S. GAAP for contract modifications if the change
is directly related to a change from LIBOR to a new interest rate index. The Company amended the Revolving Facility
agreement to change the reference rate from LIBOR to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (" SOFR") during 2023. There
were no other changes to key terms of the Revolving Facility agreement and the legal expenses incurred in connection with the
amendment were immaterial. In November NOTE2-ACQUISTHON-OnJune 2526212023 , the FASB issued ASU 2023-
07," Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reporting Segment Disclosures" ("' ASU 2023- 07"). ASU 2023-
07 requires expanded disclosures, including the disclosure of significant segment expenses and the-other Company
segment items aequired-required to reconcile +06-%-ofthe eapital-stoek-difference between segment revenue and segment
expenses to segment profit or loss on an annual and interim basis. ASU 2023- 07 also requires disclosure of Feutthe title
and position of the chief operating decision maker, and is required to be applied retrospectively. It is effective for fiscal

years beginning after December 15 apurchaseprice-of $ 22 Fmillionineash inelustve-ofeashaequired-2023, and interim
periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 . Feur-Early adoption is aninnovative- BNPE-permitted.

The eemp&ny—Company ﬂ%&t—a-l-}ews—sheppers—te-pay—adopted ASU 2023 07 for ﬂ‘refehaﬂd-tse—t-hrettgh—fetﬂhmtefest-—free

dlsclosures as requlred in Note 13 There was no impact on our financial position and / or results of operations. Not Yet
Adopted In December 2023, andreventes-of$3-the FASB issued ASU 2023- 09," Income Taxes (Topic 740):
Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures . +mititorr" The amended guidance will improve the transparency of income
tax disclosures by requiring specific categories in the effective tax rate reconciliation and lesses-before-the disclosure of
income taxes of$24—4-mitlion-during-paid disaggregated by jurisdiction, along with the-other disclosure requirements. It
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, and can be applied on a prospective or retrospective basis.
Early adoption is permitted. We plan to adopt this pronouncement for our fiscal ycar ended-Deeember3+beginning
January 1, 2622-2025 , and we do —Four'sresults-ofoperations-were-not expect it to have a material impact on our to-the
Gemp&ny—s%@%l—consolldated financial results-statements. In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024- 03," Income
Statement- Reporting Comprehensive Income- Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40): Disaggregation
of Income Statement Expenses" (" ASU 2024- 03"), which requires more detailed disclosures of certain categories of
expenses, such as employee compensation, depreciation, and intangible asset amortization that are components of
existing expense captions presented on the face of the income statement. ASU 2024- 03 is effective for annual reporting
perlods begmmng after December 15, 2026 and interim reportmg perlods beglnmng after December 15 2027 Early




0 e g 0 GOODWILL
AND lNTANGIBLE ASSETS Indeﬁnlte leed Intanglble Assets The followmg table summarizes 1nf0rmat10n related to
indefinite- lived intangible assets at December 31: December 31, (In Thousands) 26232022 Frade-20242023Trade Name $ 53,
000 $ 53, 000 Goodwill296, 061 296, 061 Indefinite- lived Intangible Assets $ 349, 061 $ 349, 061 The following table provides
information related to the carrying amount of the Company' s goodwill by reporting unit: (In Thousands) Progressive
LeasingFourTotalBalance at January 1, 2022 $ 288, 801 $ 17,411 $ 306, 212 Impairment of Goodwilll — (10, 151) (10, 151)
Balance at December 341 , 2022288, 801 7, 260 296, 061 Changes to Goodwill — — — Balance at December 31, 2023288,
801 7,260 296, 061 Changes to Goodwill — — — Balance at December 31, 2623-2024 $ 288, 801 $ 7, 260 $ 296, 061 1 As
of September 30, 2022, the Company determined the Four goodwill was partially impaired and recorded an impairment of
goodwill of $ 10. 2 million during the third quarter of 2022. For further details regarding the impairment, see Note 1. Definite-
Lived Intangible Assets The following table summarizes information related to definite- lived intangible assets at December 31:
26232022-20242023 (In Thousands) GrossAccumulated AmortizationNetGrossAccumulated AmortizationNetAcquired Internal-
Use Software $ 14, 000 $ (14, 000) $ — $ 14, 000 $ (14, 000) $ — Technology72, 550 ( 71, 350) 1, 200 72, 550 ( 68, 662) 3,
888 F25-556-6+2621H5288Merchant Relationships181, 586 ( 162, 187) 19, 399 181, 586 ( 147, 104) 34, 482 +8H86—61—3—1—
8F449;-H2-Other Intangibles1587 ( 411) 176 587 ( 293) 294 587F63-4+H-Total $ 268, 723 § ( 247, 948) $ 20, 775 $ 268, 723
$(230,059) $ 38, 664 $268;723-$-207, 312 $-6144H-1 Other 1ntang1ble€ consists of the Four trade name. Total amortization
expense of definite- lived intangible assets included in operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
carnings was $ 17. 9 million, $ 22. 7 million ;-and $ 22. 9 mitlenand-$223-million during the years ended December 31,
2024, 2023 rand 2022 and2024-, respectively. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , estimated future amortization expense for the
next five years related to definite- lived intangible assets is as follows: (In Thousands) 2024-$37,-889202516—- 2025 $ 16 , 001
20264, 774 2027 — 2028 — 2029 — NOTE 43 : FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured
at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis The following table summarizes financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis: December 31, 2023Deeember-2024December 3 1, 2622-2023 (In Thousands) Level 1Level 2Level 3Level 1Level 2Level
3Deferred Compensation Liability $ — $2,971 § —$ —$ 2, 487 $—$—9$2,14858§ — The Company maintains the PROG
Holdings, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan as described in Note +5-14 to these consolidated financial statements, which is an
unfunded, nonqualified deferred compensation plan for a select group of management, highly compensated employees and non-
employee directors. The liability is recorded in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the consolidated balance sheets. The
liability represents benefits accrued for plan participants and is valued at the quoted market prices of the participants’
investment elections, which consist of equity and debt" mirror" funds. As such, the Company has classified the deferred
compensation liability as a Level 2 liability. Financial Assets and Liabilities Not Measured at Fair Value for Which Fair Value
is Disclosed Vive' s loans receivable are measured at amortized cost, net of an allowance for loan losses and unamortized fees in
the consolidated balance sheets. In estimating fair value for Vive' s loans receivable, the Company utilized a discounted cash
flow methodology. The Company used various unobservable inputs reflecting its own assumptions, such as contractual future
principal and interest cash flows, future loss rates, and discount rates (which consider current interest rates and are adjusted for
credit risk, among other factors). Four' s loans receivable, net of an allowance for loan losses and unamortized fees, are included
within loans receivable, net in the consolidated balance sheets and approximated fair value based on a discounted cash flow
methodology. On November 26, 2021, the Company entered into an indenture in connection with its offering of $ 600 million
aggregate principal amount of its Senior Notes due 2029. The Senior Notes are carried at amortized cost in the consolidated
balance sheets and are measured at fair value for disclosure purposes. The fair value of the Senior Notes was estimated based on
quoted market prices in less active markets and has been classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The following table
summarizes the fair value of the Company' s fixed- rate debt and the loans receivable held by Vive and Four: December 31,
2023DPeeember-2024December 3 1, 2622-2023 (In Thousands) Level 1Level 2Level 3Level 1Level 2Level 3Senior Notes § — $
573,720 $ —$ —$ 559, 500 $—$—$48+326-5 — Loans Receivable, Net § — § — $172,892$ —$ —§$ 148, 466 $—
$—$165,690-NOTE 54 : PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT The following is a summary of the Company' s property and
equipment: December 31, (In Thousands) 202320822 easehold—--- 20242023Leasehold Improvements $ +6-5 , 948-808 $ 10,
910 Fixtures, Equipment and ¥ehieles33-Vehicles29 , 949 33 | 771 32, 722-Internal- Use Sefeware39-Software46 , 474 39 , 792
3++63-Internal- Use Software- In Development 846 1, 057 5-868-Property and Equipment, Gress85-Gross83 , 077 85, 530 #6;
663-Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortizationl (61, 634) (61, 426) (52;-8H)-Property and Equipment, Net $ 21, 443 $
24, 104 $23:-852-1 Accumulated amortization of internal- use software development costs amounted to $ 29. 2 million and $
23. 1 million and-$3F-8-mithenas of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard2022-, respectively. NOTE 65 : LOANS
RECEIVABLE The following is a summary of the Company' s loans receivable, net: December 31, (In Thousands)
202320226a15-20242023Loans Receivable, Gross $ 204,327 § 176, 845 $384,-60+-Unamortized Fees (9, 559) (9, 402 3+
267) Loans Receivable, Amortized €ostH67Cost194, 768 167 , 443 +73;394-Allowance for Loan Losses ( 47, 783) (40, 620 ¥
42428-) Loans Receivable, Net of Allowances and Unamortized Feesl $ 146, 985 $ 126, 823 $436;-966-1 Loans Receivable,
Net of Allowances and Unamortized Fees attributable to Four was $ 43-34 . 9 million and $ 5-13 . 3-9 million as of December
31,2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. Vive extends or declines credit to an applicant through its bank partners based
upon the applicant' s credit rating and other factors. Four extends or declines credit on an individual transaction basis
using its proprietary decisioning platform, without using customer credit ratings. Four instead uses an internal model
using factors such as banking data and user history to generate internal proprietary risk scores. Four groups its internal
risk scores into three categories that range from A to C, with an A rating representing the highest credit quality. Below
is a summary of the credit quality of the Company' s loan portfolio as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 by FICO score and
proprietary risk category as determined at the time of loan origination: December 31, 20242023Vive- FICO Score



Category: 600 or Less10. 3 % 7.1 % Between 600 and 70076. 9 % 80. 6 % 700 or Greater12. 8 % 12. 3 % Four-
Proprietary Risk Category: Category A26.9 % 40. 5 % Category B48. 6 % 36. 8 % Category C24.5 % 22.7 % The table
below presents credit quality indicators of the amortized cost of the Company' s loans receivable by origination year: As of
December 31, 2023-2024 (In Thousands) 20232622-20242023 and PriorRevolving FeansFetalFHcO-LoansTotalVive- FICO
Score Category: 600 or Less § — $§ — $ +6-15 , 969-118 $ +6-15 , 969-118 Between 600 and 700 — — 426-112 , 866426-605
112 , 866-605 700 or Greater — — 4718 , 491+7690 18 , 9+9-690 Four- Proprietary Risk Category: Category Al1, 596 —
— 11, 596 Category B20, 981 — — 20, 981 Category C10, 550 — — 10, 550 No Scorc fdentiftecdt7IdentifiedS , 755228 —
—+7F5 , #55-228 Total Amortized Cost $ +7-48 , 755355 $ — § +49-146 , 688413 § +67-194 , 443-768 Gross Charge- offs by
Origination Year for the Year Ended December 31, 2623-2024 $ 2-10 , 88-635 $ 2-3 , 449-018 $ 43-42 , 852 $ 569 56 $43-,
266-505 Included in the table below is an aging of the loans receivable, gross balance: (Dollar Amounts in Thousands)
December 31, Aging Category2023262236-Category2024202330 - 59 Days Past Due7. 7 % 7. 3 %5-6-—6-% 60- 89 Days Past
Due3. 8 % 3. 5-8 % 90 or More Days Past Bue5-Dued . 49 % 5. +4 % Past Due Loans Receivablel6. 4 % 16. 5 %3+5-2-%
Current Loans Receivable83. 6 % 83. 5 %-84—8-% Balance of Credit Card Loans on Nonaccrual Status $ 4, 482-793 $ 4,
436Balanee-482Balance of Loans Receivable 90 or More Days Past Due and Still Accruing Interest and Fees $ — $ — The
table below presents the components of the allowance for loan losses: Year Ended December 31, (In Thousands)
20232022Beginning—--- 20242023Beginning Balance $ 40, 620 $ 42, 428 $46,789-Provision for Loan fesses40-Losses55 ,
950 40 , 757 445232-Charge- offs ( 56, 505) (48, 200) 43;-979Reeovertes5-Recoveries7 , 718 5, 641 4;386-Ending Balance
$ 47,783 $ 40, 620 $42;428-NOTE 76 : LEASES Lessor Information Refer to Note 1 to these consolidated financial
statements for further information about the Company' s revenue generating activities as a lessor. All of Progressive Leasing's
customer agreements are considered operating leases, and the Company currently does not have any sales- type or direct
financing leases. Lessee Information As a lessee, the Company leases management and information technology space for
corporate functions under operating leases expiring at various times through 20272028 . To the extent that a leased property is
vacated prior to the termination of the lease, the Company may sublease these spaces to third parties. The Company also teases
leased space for its hub facilities and information technology equipment under operating leases —During2022;-the-Company
also-had-eperatingleases-for-seme-ofits-vehieles- For all of its leases in which the Company is a lessee, the Company has
elected to include both the lease and non- lease components as a single component and account for it as a lease. The Company
did not have any obligations under finance leases for any of the periods presented within the consolidated financial statements.
Operating lease costs are recorded on a straight- line basis within operating expenses in the consolidated statements of earnings.
The Company d1d not have any %ubleaqe% in Wthh it remalned as the primary obligor during 2024 or 2023 er2022-and-eurrently
3 eeeipts-. The Company' s total operating lease cost is comprised of the
followmg Year Ended December 31, (In Thou%ands) 262320220perating—--- 202420230perating [case cost: Operating Lease
cost classified within Operating Expenseil $2,045$ 3, 178 $4;239-Total Operating Lease cost: $ 2,045 $ 3, 178 $4;239-1
Short- term and variable lease expenses were not signiﬁcant during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-.
Short- term lease expense is defined as leases with a lease term of greater than one month, but not greater than 12 months.
Additional information regarding the Company' s leasing activities as a lessee is as follows: Year Ended December 31, (In
Thousands) 28232022€ask-20242023Cash Paid for amounts included in measurement of Lease Liabilities: Operating Cash
Flows for Operating Leases $ 5, 675 $ 5, 847 $-5;943-Total Cash paid for amounts included in measurement of Lease
Liabilities5, 675 5, 847 5;-9H43-Right- of- Use Assets obtained in exchange for new Operating Lease Eiabiities-Liabilities648 —
FH1-Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases is as follows: December 31, (In Thousands) Balance Sheet
Classtfteation20232022AssetsTotal-Classification20242023AssetsTotal Lease A%iet%lOperatlng Lease Right- of- Use Assets $
4,0358 9, 271 $H;-875 LiabilitiesTotal Lease LiabilitiesOperating Lease Liabilities $ 11,496 $ 15, 849 $24,422-1 Operating
lease right- of- use assets as of December 31, 2022-2024 refleets— reflect impairment charges of $ 24 . 9-5 million that were
recorded as part of the restructuring activities nittated-during 2022-2024 . For further details related to the restructuring
activities, see Note +-10 . Many of the Company' s real estate leases contain renewal options for additional periods ranging
from three to five years. The Company currently does not have any real estate leases in which it considers the renewal options to
be reasonably certain of exercise, as the Company' s leases contain contractual renewal rental rates that are considered to be in
line with market rental rates and there are not %1gn1ﬂcant economic penaltle% or business dlqruptlonq 1neurred by not exercmng
anyrenewal optlonq rJants he : had-takens al-restraeturing 3 2

the dlqcount rate for its leases, as the 1mp1101t rate in the leaqe is not readlly determinable. Below is a summary of the Welghted—
average discount rate and weighted- average remaining lease term for the Company' s operating leases: December 31,
20232022Weighted----- 20242023 Weighted Average Discount RateWeighted Average Remaining Lease Term (in years)
Weighted Average Discount RateWeighted Average Remaining Lease Term (in years) Operating Feases3-Leases4 . 0 % 2. 43 .
5 % 3. 143—4%3—9-Under the short- term lease exception provided within ASC 842, the Company does not record a lease
liability or right- of- use asset for any leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less at commencement. Below is a summary
of undiscounted operating lease liabilities that have initial terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2623-2024 . The table
also includes a reconciliation of the future undiscounted cash flows to the present value of operating lease liabilities included in
the consolidated balance sheets. (In Thousands) Fetal2024-Total2025 $ 5-4 . 675-641 20254-20264 , 179 513202639+
20272, 692948 2028163 20282029 — Thereafter — Total Undiscounted Cash Flewst6-Flows11 , 7H-931 [ess: Interest (922
435 ) Present Value of Lease Liabilities $ +5-11 , 849-496 NOTE 8-7 : INDEBTEDNESS Below is a summary of the Company'
s debt, net of applicable unamortized debt issuance costs: December 31, (In Thousands) 20232622Senter-20242023Senior
Unsecured Notes, 6. 000 %, due November 2029 § 600, 000 $ 600, 000 Revolving Facility Outstandingt-Outstanding1 50 —,



000 — Less: Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs ( 6, 437) (7, 735 3H95-634-) Total Debt, Net of Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs
$ 643,563 $ 592, 265 $596,-966-1 Variable interest rate of 8. 25 % as of December 31, 2024. Unamortized debt issuance
costs related to the Revolving Facility were § 3. 2 million and $ 0. 9 million and-$4—3-miHien-as of December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2022-, respectively. These amounts were included within prepaid expenses in the consolidated balance sheets. On
November 26, 2021, the Company entered into an indenture with the guarantors party thereto and U. S. Bank National
Association, as trustee, in connection with the Company' s offering of $ 600 million aggregate principal amount of its 6. 00 %
senior unsecured notes due 2029. The Senior Notes were issued at 100. 0 % of their par value. The Senior Notes are general
unsecured obligations of the Company and are guaranteed by certain of the Company' s existing and future domestic
subsidiaries. The Senior Notes bear an annual interest rate of 6. 00 % and interest payments are payable semi- annually on May
15 and November 15 of each year, which commenced on May 15, 2022. The Senior Notes will mature on November 15, 2029.
The net proceeds from the Senior Notes were used to fund the purchase price, and related fees and expenses, of the Company' s
tender offer to purchase $ 425 million of the Company' s common stock in 2024-2022 as-diseussedinNote+2- The remaining
proceeds were used for additional share repurchases during the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . The Senior Notes wilt
also be-became redeemable, in whole or in part, at any time er—frem—&me—te—ﬁme—eﬂ—er—after N ovember 15,2024, at the
redemptron prrces specrﬁed in the indenture 5 ; A

-priee-eeta ¢ he-prinetpatbamonntthereot plus accrued and unpa1d interest, if any, to, but excludmg,
the redemptron date. Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined in the indenture), each holder has the right to
require the Company to offer to repurchase all or any part of such holder' s Senior Notes at a purchase price equal to 101 % of
the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but excluding, the repurchase date. The Company is
not required to make mandatory sinking fund payments with respect to the Senior Notes. On November 24, 2020, the Company
entered into a credit agreement with a consortium of lenders pr0V1d1ng for a $ 350 0 m11110n senior u—nseeu-red——— secured
revolving credit fac111ty (the Revolvrng Facrhty”) T8 undeieUnder whie & wings-beeame-available-at-the credit
agreement eomyp 0 ton etion a-nd—uﬁdeﬁwhteh—as amended all borrowmgs and
commitments of the Revolvmg Fac1]1ty W111 mature or terminate on November 24-15 , 2625-2029 . The Company expects that
the Revolving Facility will be used to provide for working capital and capital expendrtures to finance future permitted
acquisitions, and for other general corporate purposes. The Company incurred a total of $ 2-5 . 2-0 million of lender and legal
fees related to the Revolving Facility and amendments thereto ., which were recorded within prepaid expenses and other assets
in the consolidated balance sheets and will be deferred and amortized through the maturity date. The Company had #e-$ 50. 0
million of outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Facility as of December 31, 2623-2024 , which was subsequently
repaid in full in January 2025 . The Company is a guarantor of the Revolving Facility with Progressive Finance Holdings,
LLC, a wholly- owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower. The Revolving Facility is fully secured and includes (i) a $ 20.
0 million sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit on customary terms and (ii) a $ 25. 0 million sublimit for swingline loans
on customary terms. The Company will have the right from time to time to request to increase the size of the Revolving Facility
or add certain incremental revolving or term loan facilities (the" Incremental Facilities") in minimum amounts to be agreed upon.
The aggregate pr1n01pa1 amount of all such Incremental Facilities may not exceed $ 300. 0 million. Puring2623;-the-Company

-rmmaterta-l—Borrowmgs under the Revolvrng F ac111ty bear mterest at a rate per annum equal to, at our optlon ©) SOFR plus a
margin within the range of 1. 50 % to 2. 50 % for revolving loans, based on total leverage, or (ii) the base rate plus the
applicable margin, which will be 1. 00 % lower than the applicable margin for SOFR loans. The Company pays a commitment
fee on unused balances, which ranges from 0. 26-25 % to 0. 35-40 % as determined by the Company' s ratio of total net debt to
EBITDA as defined by the Revolving Facility. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the amount available under the Revolving
Facility was $ 356-300. 0 million. Financial Covenants The indenture discussed above contains various other covenants and
obligations to which the Company and its subsidiaries are subject to while the Senior Notes are outstanding. The covenants in
the indenture may limit the extent to which, or the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to, among other things: (i) incur
additional debt and guarantee debt; (ii) pay dividends or make other distributions or repurchase or redeem capital stock; (iii)
prepay, redeem or repurchase certain debt; (iv) issue certain preferred stock or similar equity securities; (v) make loans and
investments; (vi) sell assets; (vii) incur liens; (viii) enter into transactions with affiliates; (ix) enter into agreements restricting
the ability of the Company' s subsidiaries to pay dividends; and (x) consolidate, merge or sell all or substantially all of the
Company' s assets. The indenture also contains customary events of default for transactions of this type and amount. The
Revolving Facility discussed above contains financial covenants, which include requirements that the Company maintain ratios
of (i) total net debt to EBITDA as defined by the Revolving Facility of no more than 2. 50: 1. 00 and (ii) consolidated interest
coverage of no less than 3. 00: 1. 00. The Company will be in default under the Revolving Facility agreement if it fails to

comply with these covenants, and all borrowings outstandrng may become due 1mmed1ately Additionally;under-the Revelving

pet-deb atio-and-th volv etlity-beeam see - Under the Revolvrng F acrhty, the Company
may pay cash dividends in any year so long as, after giving pro forma effect to the dividend payment, the Company maintains
compliance with its financial covenants and no event of default has occurred or would result from the payment. At December




31,2023-2024 , the Company was in compliance with all covenants related to its debt. Below is a summary of future principal
maturities of our Senior Unsecured Notes and Revolving Facility due as of December 31, 2023-2024 : (In Thousands) 2624-%
—20258 — 2026 — 2027 — 2028 — Fhereafter660-2029650 , 000 Thereafter — Total $ 666-650 , 000 NOTE 9-8 :
INCOME TAXES The following is a summary of the Company' s income tax (benefit) expense: Year Ended December 31, (In
Thousands) 26232022202+Current—--- 202420232022Current Income Tax (Benefit) Expense: Federal $ 20,261 8 77,412 $
46, 579 $-56,240-Statel2-State108 12 , 420 12, 1554820 , 678-369 89, 832 58, 734 68;:9H8-Deferred Income Tax (Benefit)
Expense: Federal ( 49,973) (32, 612) (10, 696) State (4, 037) +6-163 -852-State1+63-1, 497 (+54 , +23-010 ) (32, 449) (9, 199)
+5;729-Income Tax (Benefit) Expense $ (33, 641) $ 57, 383 § 49, 535 $84;647-Significant components of the Company' s
deferred income tax liabilities and assets are as follows: December 31, (In Thousands) 20232022Peferred-----
20242023Deferred Income Tax Liabilities: Property and Equipment $ 71, 878 $ 103 $232-Goodwill and Other Intangtbles657—
Intangibles51 949-, 913 657 [nvestment in Partnershipt3+—-- Partnership — 131 , 002 +6+;499-Operating Lease Right- of-
Use Assetst73—- Assetsl 274, 003 173 Total Deferred Income Tax Eiabitittest3+-Liabilities124 , 794 131 , 935 462,95+
Deferred Income Tax Assets: Accrued iabikities9— Liabilities and Other Reservesd44, 924 9 | 769 +0,420-Customer
Deposits and Advance RPayments38-Payments9 33-, 035 38 Operating Lease Liabilitiest9+-Liabilities2 382-, 845 191 Tax
Credit Carryforwards7, 833 — Net Operating Loss Carryforwards4, 162 — Stock- Based Compensation5, 677 — Other,
Net25-Net8, 460 25 | 795 23;-598-Total Deferred Income Tax Assets35-Assets82 , 936 35 , 793 34,433 ess: Valuation
Allowance (5, 990) (5, 715 3H5;788-) Net Deferred Income Tax Liabilities $ 47, 848 $ 101, 857 $434-Partnership Deemed
Liquidation During the year ended December 31 . 366-2024, the Company made a tax election to convert a subsidiary of
the Company from a corporation to a disregarded entity which resulted in the deemed liquidation of the Company' s
investment in a wholly- owned partnership for tax purposes. As a result of the election, the Company reversed a deferred
tax liability related to the investment in partnership and recognized a non- cash deferred tax benefit of $ 27. 6 million.
The Company' s effective tax rate differs from the statutory United States Federal income tax rate as follows: Year Ended
December 31, 262326222024Statatory—--- 202420232022Statutory Rate21. 0 % 21. 0 % 21. 0 % Increases (Decreases) in
United States Federal TaxesResulting From: State Income Taxes, Net of Federal Income Tax Benefit4-BenefitS .34 .9 5. 0 3—%
Non- deductible Goodwill Impairment — — 1. 4 —Other Permanent Differences0. 8 0. 3 0. 6 —Deferred Tax Adjastmentst
Adjustments0 .3 1. 1 0. 7 Partnership Deemed Liquidation (16. 9) — — Valuation Allowance (0. 3) — 2. 2 —Current
Uncertain Tax Position Expenset—- Expense (32.9) 1. 9 2. 2 6—FShortfall in Stock- based Compensation0. 6 0. 4 1. 0 —Other,
Net-Netl . 5 (0. 4) (0. 7) 3-Effective Tax Rate29-- Rate (20. 6) % 29 . 2 % 33. 4 %25-8% At December 31, 2623-2024 , the
Company had $ +2 . 9-8 million of tax- effected state net operating loss carryforwards and $ 3. 5 million of state tax credit
carryforwards, which will both begin to expire in 2024-ard-2025 and 2026 , respectively. The Company files a federal
consolidated income tax return in the United States, and the separate legal entities file in various states. With few exceptions, the
Company is no longer subject to federal, state and local tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2626-2021 . The
following table summarizes the activity related to the Company' s uncertain tax positions for the periods presented (does not
include accrued interest) : Ycar Ended December 31, (In Thousands) 262320222021 Balanee----- 202420232022Balance at
January 1, $ 46, 200 $ 46, 407 $ 46, 750 $2,748-Additions Based on Tax Positions Related to the Current ¥ear8+-- Year —
81 850 44;-8+6-Additions for Tax Positions of Prior Years — — 24— Prior Year Reductions (3) — — H-Statute of
Limitation Expirations ( 45, 103) (288) (607) £692)-Settlements (362) — (586 H442-) Balance at December 31, $ 732 $ 46,
200 $ 46, 407 $46:-750-As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-, uncertain tax positions (inclusive of accrued interest)
were $ 0. 8 million and $ 55. 0 ﬁa-l-l-heﬂ—&ﬂd—$é—l—l—m11hon respecmely, and are included Wlthm accounts pdyable and accrued
expenses in the consolidated balance sheets he 3 3

—In December 2019 Progreiswe Leasmg reached an dgreement in prmc1p1e with
the staff of the Federal Trade Commission (" FTC ") with respect to a tentative settlement to resolve the FTC inquiry received
by the Company in July 2018, under which Progressive Leasing agreed to pay $ 175. 0 million. At the time of the agreement,
the Company treated the tentative settlement as a non- deductible regulatory charge for tax purposes and recognized tax
expense. The $ 175. 0 million settlement was finalized and paid to the FTC in 2020. Prior to filing the Company' s 2020 income
tax return, it was determined there #s-was a reasonable basis for deducting the settlement amount on the return. However, the
tax position dees-did not meet the more- likely- than- not recognition standard and no tax benefit was has-beenrrecognized ir-the
eurrentpertod-. As a result, the Company hasreclassified $ 44. 8 million from taxes payable, previously recognized in
December 2019, to an uncertain tax position as of September36-December 31 , 202 1. The Additionalythe-Company ' s pelicy
is to recognize potential interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions has-- as a component of income tax
(benefit) expense, and recognized -t-he—dccrued 1nterest related to t-he—thls uncertain tax position accordingly as-a-eemponent-of
: ey-. As of December 31, 2023 and-2022-, the amount of
accrued 1nterest related to the FTC settlement was $ 8 6 mrlhon aﬁd—$—4— S-miltlien-During September 2024 . respeetively—The
Company-believes,due-to-the statute of limitations expiration,itis-reasonablypossible-for the taxing authority to examine the
uncertain tax position related-relating to the FTC settlement ;-inelading-expired. The Company therefore recognized a net
income tax benefit of $ 53. 6 million relating to the uncertain tax position reversal, which included the reversal of the
associated accrued interest ;eould-bereleased-withinthe-next+2-months-. As a result, the Company had no accrued interest
related to the FTC settlement as of December 31, 2024. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, the amount of
uncertain tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is $ 0. 6 million and $ 51. 2 million and-$48—+
mithen-, respectively, including interest and penalties . During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recognized
a net benefit of $ 8. 7 million related to penalties and interest . During the years ended December 31, 2023 s-and 2022 , and
2062+-the Company recognized a-net expense of $ 4. 1 millionsand $ 3. 0 million, respectively, related to penalties and

interest. The Company had $ 0. | —5-million respeetively;refated-to-penalties-and interest—The-Company-had-5 8. § milhion




and-$4—F-million of accrued interest and penalties at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. The Company
recognizes potential interest and penalties related to uncertain tax benefits as a component of income tax expense. NOTE +6-9 :
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES From time to time, the Company is party to various legal and regulatory
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. Some of the proceedings to which the Company is currently a party are
described below. The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to all of the claims described below, and intends to
vigorously defend against the claims. However, these proceedings are still developing and due to the inherent uncertainty in
litigation, regulatory and similar adversarial proceedings, there can be no guarantee that the Company will ultimately be
successful in these proceedings, or in others to which it is currently a party. Substantial losses from these proceedings or the
costs of defending them could have a material adverse impact upon the Company' s business, financial position and results of
operations. The Company establishes an accrued liability for legal and regulatory proceedings when it determines that a loss is
both probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company continually monitors its litigation and
regulatory exposure and reviews the adequacy of its legal and regulatory reserves on a quarterly basis. The amount of any loss
ultimately incurred in relation to matters for which an accrual has been established may be higher or lower than the amounts
accrued for such matters. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the Company had accrued $ 0. 5 million and $ 1. 2
mition-and-$-0-6-million, respectively for pending legal and regulatory matters for which it believes losses are probable and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company records its best estimate of the loss to legal and regulatory
liabilities in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company estimates the aggregate
range of reasonably possible loss in excess of accrued liabilities for such probable loss contingencies is immaterial. Those
matters for which a probable loss cannot be reasonably estimated are not included within the estimated ranges. At December 31,
2623-2024 , the Company estimated that the aggregate range of loss for all material pending legal and regulatory proceedings
for which a loss is reasonably possible, but less likely than probable (i. e., excluding the contingencies described in the
preceding paragraph), is immaterial. Those matters for which a reasonable estimate is not possible are not included within
estimated ranges and, therefore, the estimated ranges do not represent the Company' s maximum loss exposure. The Company' s
estimates for legal and regulatory accruals, aggregate probable loss amounts and reasonably possible loss amounts are all subject
to the uncertainties and variables described above. Regulatory Inquiries In January-April 26242020 , Progressive Leasing
entered into a settlement ( the Company;-ateng-" FTC Settlement') with the Federal Trade Commission (" FTC") to
resolve allegations by the FTC that certain of Progressive Leasing’ s advertising and marketing practices violated the
FTC Act. Progressive Leasing did not admit any violations of the FTC Act or any other fease-laws in connection with the
FTC Settlement. Under the terms of the FTC Settlement, Progressive Leasing paid $ 175. 0 million to the FTC and
agreed to enhance certain of its compliance - related activities te—ewneompantes-, including augmenting disclosures to its
customers and expanding its POS partner monitoring programs. Progressive Leasing further agreed to submit
compliance reports or produce other requested documents and information to the FTC upon written request by the
FTC. During the third quarter of 2024, Progresslve Leasmg recelved a subpeena—wrltten request from the FTC to ev1dence
Progressive Leasing’ €a S rg-the-pre
deetuﬁents-reg&rd-rng—t-he—eempaﬂ-y—s comphance w1th state—eensumer—preteeﬁen—la—ws—the FTC Settlement by prov1d1ng the
FTC with information and documents , including newlegislation-that-wentinto-e y eh-the
Company-believesitrelated to customer complaints and advertlsmg and marketmg materlals The FTC’ s request is i

eempha-nee—not a c1v1l 1nvest1gat1ve demand The Company is fully cooperatmg w1th a-l-l—&pp{-teab-}e—eeftstm&eﬁﬁnaﬁeia-l—}a-ws

-BF-P-I—m respondmg to 1ts—mquﬂ=y—the FTC’ s request for 1nformatlon and documents ngatlon Matters On August 25,
2022, the Pennsylvania Attorney General filed a complaint against Progressive Leasing in the Philadelphia County Court of
Common Pleas alleging, among other things, that Progressive Leasing was operating in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in
violation of the Pennsylvania Rental Purchase Agreement Act by failing to disclose certain terms and conditions of rent- to-
own (" RTO") transactions on" hang tags" physically attached to RTO merchandise. Although Progressive Leasing believed the
Pennsylvania Attorney General' s claims were without merit, it entered into a settlement agreement with the Attorney General in
January 2024, pursuant to which the Attorney General agreed to release its claims against Progressive Leasing. The court where
that lawsuit was pending approved the settlement on January 26, 2024 resulting ina $ 1. 0 million settlement —AtBeeember31-,
Whlch was pald by the Company durlng the first quarter of %92—3—2024 —t-he—Gempa—&y—had—aeerued%—l—@—mﬂ-hen—foH-he
y heet-. As a result of the cybersecurity

1nc1dent Progresslve Leasmg has become subject to multiple lawsuits which allege, among other things, the incurrence of
various types of damages arising out of the incident. All As-efthe-date-ofthisFerm10-I5-al-buteone-of these lawsuits have
been consolidated into a smgle actlon 1n the Unlted States Dlstrlct Court for the Dlstrlct of Utah (the" District Court"). The
plaintiffs filed We-b /M o AW SHHEW : A-and-a consolidated complaint 48
e*peeted—te—be—ﬁ-}ed-agamst—on Aprll 19, 2024 On June 24, 2024 Progresswe Leasmg inr-filed a motion to dismiss the Distriet
Geu-rt—complamt Whlch was granted in Mareh—er—Arpﬂ-l—e-Ppart and demed in part on January 16, 2624-2025 . Progressive

o histawsuit-ate and-intends to vigorously defend itself against the
lawsuit; however at thls tlme the Company is unable to determme or predict the outcome of this lawsuit or reasonably provide
an estimate or range of the possible losses, if any. The Company also maintains cybersecurity insurance coverage, subject to a $
1. 0 million retention, to limit the exposure to losses such as those related to the cybersecurity incident and lawsuits stemming
therefrom; however, there can be no assurance that such insurance coverage will be adequate to cover all of the losses, costs and
expenses related thereto or that the insurers will agree to cover such losses, costs and expenses. Other Contingencies At




December 31, 2823-2024 , the Company had non- cancelable commitments of $ 41. 3 million primarily related to certain
consulting and information technology services agreements, software licenses, hardware and software maintenance, and
minimum contractually required customer loan amounts that were originated through and to be acquired from Vive' s third-
party federally insured banks ef$36-2-mittier-. Payments under these commitments are scheduled to be $ 27 20-0-mithontn
2024-$46-. 3 million in 2025, $ 3-10 . +5 million in 2026, $ 4-2. 7 million in 2027, and $ 0 . 8§ mithenrin2027and-$1-0
million in 2028, with no amounts committed thereafter. Management regularly assesses the Company' s insurance deductibles,
monitors the Company' s litigation and regulatory exposure with the Company' s attorneys and evaluates its loss experience. The
Company also enters into various contracts in the normal course of business that may subject it to risk of financial loss if
counterparties fail to perform their contractual obligations. Off- Balance Sheet Risk The Company, through its Vive segment,
had unconditionally cancellable unfunded lending commitments totaling $ 461. 1 million and $ 523. 9 million and-$543-7
mithten-as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respectively, that do not give rise to revenues and cash flows. These
unfunded commitments arise in the ordinary course of business from credit card agreements with individual cardholders that
give them the ability to borrow, against unused amounts, up to the maximum credit limit assigned to their account. While these
unfunded amounts represent the total available unused lines of credit, the Company does not anticipate that all cardholders will
utilize their entire available line at any given point in time. Commitments to extend unsecured credit are agreements to lend to a
cardholder so long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon,
the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. NOTE 4410 . RESTRUCTURING
EXPENSES During 2022, the Company initiated restructuring activities intended to reduce expenses, consolidate certain
segment corporate headquarters, and align the cost structure of the business with the Company' s near- term revenue outlook.
The Company continued such activities during 2023 and 2024 and recorded restructuring expenses of $ 22. 7 million, $ 12. 5
million and $ 9. 0 million for the year-years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively , resulting in aggregate
expenses of § 2444 . 5-2 million since the inception of the restructuring activities in 2022. These costs were primarily
comprised of early contract termination costs related to certain independent sales agreements and a third party service and
marketing agreement , employee severance withinPregresstve-easing-, and operating lease right- of- use asset impairment
charges related to the relocation of the Vive corporate headquarters to the Company' s corporate office building and a reduction
of management and information technology office space. The following tables summarize restructuring charges recorded within
operating expenses in the consolidated statements of earnings for the years ended ended-December 31 ,2024 , 2023 and 2022:
Year Ended December 31, 202420232022 2023¥-earEnded Deeember34,2022-(In Thousands) Plogresqlve
LeasingViveOtherTotalProgressive LeasingTotalProgressive LeasingViveOtherFotatSeveranee—----
LeasingViveTotalSeverance $ 4,253 $ 1,853 $ 628 $ 6,734 $ 2, 958 § —$—8$-2,958 $ 5,611 $—$ — $ 5, 611 Right- of-

Use Asset impatrmentImpairment14 , 515 — — 4,515 — — 2, 285 655 —2, 940 Property and Equipment tmpairment
Impairmentl , 503 — — 1, 503 — — 309 3 312 Early Contract Termination Costs7, 750 — 312-OtherRestruetaring
Aetivitiest9-2, 000 9, 750 9, 575 9 , 575 — — 9:-575— Other Restructuring Activities189 — — 189 — — 138 —— 138

Total Restructuring Expenses $ 18,210 $ 1,853 $2,628 $22,691 $ 12, 533 § —$—%-12, 533 § 8, 343 $ 658 $—$ 9, 001 1

To determine Other—- the RestrueturingAetivities-amount of impairment for vacated office space the-yearended-Deeember
3+, 2023-are-primarily-early-eontractterminatiotreosts-the fair value of the right- of- use asset is calculated based on the
present value of the estimated net cash flows rclated to eertatirindependentsales-agreements-the right- of- use asset . The

following table summarizes the accrual and payment activity related to the restructuring program for the years ended December
31,2024, 2023 and 2022: (In Thousands) Severance ©Other-Early Contract Termination CostsOther Restructuring
ActivitiesTotalBalance at Peeember3+-January 1 , 20242022 — $ — $ — § — Charges5, 611 — 138 5, 749 Cash Payments
(2, 550) — (96) (2, 646) Balance at December 31, 20223, 061 — 42 3, 103 Charges2, 958 9, 5#5-600 (25) 12, 533 Cash
Payments (3, 344) (7,100) (HF- 17 ) (10, 461) Balance at December 31, 2623-20232 $-, 675 2, 675-500 — 5, 175 Charges6,
7349, 750 189 16, 673 Cash Payments (7, 084) (10, 650) (189) (17 923) Balance at December 31 2024 $ 2, 599—$é—1—7§—9ﬂ

impacts of changes in macroeconomic condmoni on its bu§1n€§§6§ and may take additional steps to further adjust the Company
s cost structure based on unfavorable changes in these conditions, which may result in further restructuring charges in future
periods. NOTE 42-11 : SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AtDeeember3+-Share repurchases are conducted under
authorizations made from time to time by the Company' s Board of Directors. The authorization effective November 3 ,
2623-2021 s-provided the Company with hetd-38,464;-527shares-in-its-treasury-and-had-the autherity-ability to purehase
repurchase additterral-shares up to a maximum amount #srematningautherizattortimitof § 1 197 Fmittten-billion . On
February 21, 2024, the Company' s Board of Directors reauthorized the repurchase of Company common stock at an aggregate
purchase price of up to $ 500 million under the Company' s existing share repurchase program, with such reauthorized share
repurchase program to be extended for a period of three years from February 21, 2024, or until the $ 500 million aggregate



purchase price of Company common stock purchased pursuant to the reauthorized share repurchase program has been met,
whichever occurs first. At December 31, 2024, the Company held 41, 262, 901 shares in its treasury and had the authority
to purchase additional shares up to its remaining authorization limit of $ 361. 3 million. [n 2623-2024 , the Company
repurchased 4-3 , 694-480 , 274-871 shares of its common stock for $ 138. 7 million. During 2023, the Company repurchased
4, 691, 274 shares of its common stock for $ 139. 6 million. Fhat-During 2022, the Company repurchased 8, 720, 223
shares of its common stock for $ 223 6 mllllon These amount-amounts dees—do not 1nc1ude any excise tax that may be

etuLBeafd-ef—Bﬁeefefs-deems-re}eV&nt—The holders of common Stock are entrtled to receive drvrdend% and other dl§t11b11t10n§ in
cash or stock of the Company as and when declared by the Company' s Board of Directors out of legally available funds. Certain
unvested time- based restricted stock awards-units issued by the Company also entrtle partlcrpant@ to Vete—a-nd-accrue
drvrdendq durmg the Vestmg perrod —AsS 0 y e

mﬁmn—dt&mg—t-he—yea-r—eﬁded—Beeem-ber—}-l—E@%l— The Company ha% 1, 000 000 qhare% of preferred qtock authorrzed The

shares are issuable in series with terms for each series fixed by, and such issuance subject to approval by, the Board of Directors.
As of December 31, 2823-2024 , no preferred shares have been issued. NOTE 43-12 : STOCK- BASED COMPENSATION
Description of Planq The Company grants stock options, RSUs, RSA% and PSU% to certain employeei and drrector% of the

Company under the 2015 Equity and Incentive Award Plan

2019. In May 2021 the 2015 Plan was amended W1th ihareholder approval, to increase the number of shares of common stock
authorized for issuance under the 2015 Plan from 8, 000, 000 shares to 10, 980, 000 shares. Beginning in 2015, as part of the
Company' s long- term incentive compensation program (" LTIP Plan") and pursuant to the Company' s 2664+Rtan-and-2015
Plan, the Company granted a mix of stock options, time- based restricted stock and performance share units to key executives
and managers and also granted time- based restricted stock units to directors of the Company. As of December 31, 2623-2024 ,
the aggregate number of common stock shares that may be issued or transferred under the 2015 Plan is 4-3 , 839-285 , +63-467 .
Stock- based Compensation Expense The Company has elected a policy to estimate forfeitures in determining the amount of
stock compensation expense. Total stock- based compensation expense was $ 29. 2 million, $ 24. 9 million;and $ 17. 5 mithen
and-$24-3-million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024- respectively. The total income tax
benefit recognized in the consolidated statements of earnings for stock- based compensation arrangements was $ 7. 3 million, $
6.2 millionyand $ 5. 9 mithefrand-$-5—-5-million in the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 s-and 2022 and-2062+,
respectively. Deficits of recognized compensation costs in excess of tax deductronq were $ 0. 1 million, $ 0. 4 millionand $ 1.7
million for the years ended December 31, 2024 2023 and 2022, reqpectrvely —Benefits-oftax-deduetionsinrexeess-of recognized
v ; . Deficits and benefits related to tax deductions for
compeniatron co%t are mcluded n operatmg ca@h flows and asa Component of income tax (benefit) expense in the consolidated
statements of earnings. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , there was $ 24-27 . 8-9 million of total unrecognized compensation
expense related to non- vested stock- based compensation of directors and employees of PROG Holdings, which is expected to
be recogmzed over an average perrod of 1. 2—6—39 year% Stock Optronq Hﬂéer—t-he—Geﬂapaﬁy—s—ZG@-l—Plaﬁ,—epﬁeﬂs—gf&nted
eeome-exere e d-o 5 he-date-of-grant—Under the
Company's 2015 Plan optlons granted to date become exercr%able after a period of one to three years and unexercised options
lapse 10 years after the date of the grant. Unvested options are subject to forfeiture upon termination of service for both plans.
The Company recognizes compensation expense for options that have a graded vesting schedule on a straight- line basis over
the requisite service period. Shares are issued from the Company' s treasury shares upon share option exercises. The Company
determines the fair value of stock options on the grant date using a Black- Scholes- Merton option pricing model that
incorporates expected volatility, expected option life, risk- free interest rates and expected dividend yields. The expected
volatility is based on implied Volatrhtre% from traded optronq on the Company s qtock and the historical volatility of the
Company' s common stock subses y-in combination with the
volatility of the Company' s comparable peer group pmﬁe—ﬂae—sepa—r&t—ten—&ﬂd—dis&rbtmeﬁ—for the most recent period generally
commensurate with the expected estimated life of each respective grant. The expected lives of options are based on the
Company' s historical option exercise experience. The Company believes that the historical experience method is the best
estimate of future exercise patterns. The risk- free interest rates are determined using the implied yield available for zero-




coupon United States government issues with a remaining term equal to the expected life of the grant. The expected dividend
yields are based on the approved annual dividend rate in effect and the market price of the underlying common stock at the time
of grant. Beginning-For stock options granted in 26242023 and 2022 , the annual dividend rate s-was assumed to be zero,
and no assumption for a future dividend rate was kas-been-included, as the Company did not anticipate paying any dividends at
the time of grant. The Company did not grant any stock options during 2024. The Company granted 208, 000 ;-and 264 5
860-and156-, 000 stock options during the years ended December 31, 2023 s-and 2022 and-20624-, respectively. The weighted-
average fair value of options granted and the weighted- average assumptions used in the Black- Scholes- Merton option pricing
model for such grants were as follows: 262320222024 Dtvidend----- 20232022Dividend Yield —%— % — % Expected
Volatility51. 6 % 43 —0-%44-. 0 % Risk- free Interest Rate4. 3 % 1. 5 % 8-6%-Expected Term (in years) 4. 54. 54—4Weighted
SWeighted - average Fair Value of Stock Options Granted $ 11. 66 $ 10. 89 $37-26-The following table summarizes
information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2023-2024 : Options OutstandingOptions ExercisableRange of
ExercisePricesNumber OutstandingDecember 3 1, 2623 Weighted-2024Weighted Average Remaining ContractualLife (in
Years) Weighted AverageExercise PriceNumber ExercisableDecember 31, 2023 Wetghted-2024Weighted AverageExercise
Price $ 20. 00- 30. 6855100497 , 3460-7-680 6 . 66-61 $ 20. 34206738 292 , 140-571 § 25-26 . 84-44 30. 01- 40. 6694-0088 . 166
344 5. 54351734 . 66-54-78 88 , 166-35-344 34 . 66-78 40. 01- 50. 66263-00255 , 3665495 4 . 6446-7946 . 7+224-70 255 , 156
495 46.66-70 50. 01- 60. 005, 304 76 . 3553-3453 . 55 3-5 . 536-304 53. 55 20. 00- 60. 669+4-00846 , H6-6-823 5 . 5433-9133 .
25-528-55 641 , 932-36-714 35 . 49-88 The table below summarizes option activity for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 :
Options (In Thousands) Weighted AverageExercise PriceWeighted AverageRemainingContractual Term (in Years)
Aggregatelntrinsic Value (in Thousands) WeightedAverage FairValueOutstanding at January 1, 2623727-2024914 § 35-33 . 25
S55-Granted206824—76-Forfeited / Expired (48-12 ) 28-44 . +6-14 Exercised ( 3-55 ) 29-25 . +6-96 Outstanding at December 31,
2023914-2024847 33. 256-55 5 . 5491 $ 2-8 , 536-566 5 12. 45-68 Expected to Mest37528-Vest204 26 . 88-8-30 7 . 57H-813 ,
429-254 11. 9838 Exercisable at December 31, 2023529-36-2024642 35 . 49-88 5. 651+-305 , 65642-290 13 . 8+-09 The
aggregate intrinsic value amounts in the table above represent the closing price of the Company' s common stock on December
31,2023-2024 in excess of the exercise price, multiplied by the number of in- the- money stock options as of that same date.
Options outstanding that are expected to vest are net of estimated future option forfeitures. The aggregate intrinsic value of
options exercised, which represents the value of the Company' s common stock at the time of exercise in excess of the exercise
price, was $ 0. 9 million and $ 0. | miltenand-$3--0-million during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2624-,
respectively. The total grant- date fair value of options exercised was $ 0. 4 million and $ 0. | miienand-$+-8-million during
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2624-, respectively. There were no options exercised during 2022. Restricted
Stock Restricted stock units or restricted stock awards (collectively," restricted stock") may be granted to employees and
directors under the 2015 Plan and typically vest over approximately one to three- year periods. Restricted stock grants are settled
in stock and may be subject to one or more objective employment, performance or other forfeiture conditions as established at
the time of grant. The Company recognizes compensation expense for restricted stock with a graded vesting schedule on a
straight- line basis over the requisite service period as restricted stock is not subject to Company performance metrics. Shares
are issued from the Company' s treasury shares upon vesting. Any shares of restricted stock that are forfeited may again become
available for issuance. The fair value of restricted stock is generally based on the fair market value of the Company' s common
stock on the date of grant. The Company granted 646, 000, 574, 000 s-and 630 7660-and-524-, 000 shares of restricted stock at
weighted- average fair values of $ 30. 67, $ 25. 69 ;-and $ 26. 05 and-$44—44-in the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 5
and 2022 and-2024-, respectively. The following table summarizes information about restricted stock activity during 2623-2024
: Restricted Stock (In Thousands) Weighted AverageFair ValueNon- vested at January 1, 2023420241 , 628-180 $ 33-31 . 84-47
Granted574-Granted646 25-30 . 69-67 Forfeited (+H5-89 ) 26-27 . 36-07 Vested ( 369-36-53-593 ) 36. 05 Non- vested at
December 31, 20231420241 , 4180-31+-144 28 . 4798 The total vest- date fair value of restricted stock described above that vested
during the year was $ 19. 2 million, $ 8. 4 million yand $ 3. 9 mittenand-$F8-million in the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023 ;and 2022 and-20824-, respectively. Performance Share Units For performance share units, which are settled in stock, the
number of shares earned is determined at the end of the one to three- year performance periods based upon achievement of
specified performance conditions. The performance criteria vary by agreement and have included the following performance
conditions: (i) adjusted pre- tax profit, (ii) return on investment capital, (iii) consolidated revenues, (iv) segment or business unit
revenues, (V) certain business development and technology initiatives , and-e#(vi) business unit customer count , (vii) business
unit enterprise value, (viii) adjusted EBITDA and / or (ix) the Company' s total shareholder return (" TSR") relative to
the TSR of the S & P 600 Small Cap Index . When the performance criteria are met, the award is earned and vests assuming
continued employment through the specified service period (s). Shares are issued from the Company' s treasury shares upon
vesting. The number of performance- based shares which could potentially be issued ranges from 0 % up to a maximum of 100
%, 200 %, 2608-%;-or 400 % of the target award depending on the specified terms and conditions of the target award. The fair
value of performance share units that have only a service and performance condition (s) is based on the fair market value of
the Company' s common stock on the date of grant. The compensation expense associated with these awards is amortized on an
accelerated basis over the vesting period based on the Company' s projected assessment of the level of performance that will be
achieved and earned. In the event the Company determines it is no longer probable that the minimum performance criteria
specified in the plan will be achieved, all previously recognized compensation expense is reversed in the period such a
determination is made. The TSR performance condition is a market condition. Therefore, a Monte Carlo simulation
model was used to determine the fair value of those awards. The fair value and compensation expense of awards which
vest based on the TSR performance is fixed at the measurement date and is not revised based on actual performance
during the vesting period. The table below summarizes the assumptions used in the fair value calculation of the TSR
awards, which were granted beginning in 2024: 2024Expected VolatilityS3. 2 % Risk- Free Rate of Interest4. 4 %



Expected Dividend Yieldl. 6 % Performance Period (Years) 2. 84 The expected volatility was based on the historical
volatility of the Company' s stock. The risk- free rate of interest was based on the U. S. Treasury yield curve for the
period that is commensurate with the expected life at the time of grant. The expected annual dividend yield was based on
the most recently declared quarterly dividend at the time of the grant. The following table summarizes information about
performance share unit activity during 2823-2024 : Performance Share Units (In Thousands) Weighted AverageFair ValueNon-
vested at January 1, 2023741+-2024750 $ 39-36 . 86-Granted35825-38 Granted464 33 . 57-11 Forfeited ( 56-51 ) 26-30 . 5798
Vested (82222 )40-31 . 86-20 Performance Factor Adjustment (247205 ) 36-44 . 49-64 Non- vested at December 31, 2023756
36-2024736 30 . 38-54 The total vest- date fair value of performance share units described above that vested during the period
was $ 7. 7 million, $ 2. 2 million -and $ 4 —+mitherand-$7. | million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 -and
2022 and2024-, respectively. Employee Stock Purchase Plan Effective May 9, 2018, the Company' s Board of Directors and
shareholders approved the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (" ESPP"), which is a tax- qualified plan under Section 423 of the
Internal Revenue Code. The purpose of the Company' s ESPP is to encourage ownership of the Company' s common stock by
eligible employees of PROG Holdings, Inc. and certain subsidiaries. Under the ESPP, eligible employees are allowed to
purchase common stock of the Company during six- month offering periods at the lower of: (i) 85 % of the closing trading price
per share of the common stock on the first trading date of an offering period in which a participant is enrolled; or (ii) 85 % of
the closing trading price per share of the common stock on the last day of an offering period. Employees participating in the
ESPP can contribute up to an amount not exceeding 10 % of their base salary and wages up to an annual maximum of $ 25, 000
in total fair market value of the common stock (determined at the time the ability to purchase shares of common stock is
granted) and may not purchase more than 500 shares in each offering period. The compensation cost related to the ESPP is
measured on the grant date based on eligible employees' expected withholdings and is recognized over each six- month offering
period. Total compensation cost recognized in connection with the ESPP was $ 0. 4-3 million, $ 0. 4 million and $ 0. 4 million
for years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and2024- respectively. The Company issued 44, 811, 67, 720 ;-and 81,
784 and-38-044-shares under the ESPP at weighted average purchase prices of $ 27.56, $ 18. 72 yand $ 14. 06 and-$39-62
during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2624-, respectively. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , the
aggregate number of shares of common stock that may be issued under the ESPP was 387342 , 766-955 . NOTE +4-13 :
SEGMENTS Description of Products and Services of Reportable Segments As of December 31, 2023-2024 , the Company has
two reportable segments: Progressive Leasing and Vive. Progressive Leasing partners with traditional and e- commerce
retailers, primarily in the consumer residential electronics, furniture and appliance, jewelrys-mobile phones and accessories ,
jewelry , mattresses, and automobile electronics and accessories industries to offer a lease- purchase solution primarily for
customers who may not have access to traditional credit- based financing options. It does so by offering leases with monthly,
semi- monthly, bi- weekly and weekly payment frequencies. Vive offers a variety of second- look financing programs originated
through third- party federally insured banks to customers of participating merchants and, together with Progressive Leasing,
allows the Company to prov1de POS partners with near- prnne and below- prnne customers one source for financing and leasing
transactions. As-d 0 § d sittenrof-Four is a buy- now , an
-rﬁnev&t—x—ve—BN—P—I:pay— later company that allows shoppers to pay for merchandrse through four interest- free installments. Four
is not a reportable segment for the yeat-years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 , and 2022 as its financial results are not matertat
significant to the Company' s consolidated financial results. The revenues, loss before income taxes, and assets of Four are
included within Other below-are-primartty-eomprised-of, along with the Company' s the-other strategic initiatives eperating
aetivittesofFour-. Factors Used by Management to Identify the Reportable Segments The Company' s reportable segments are
based on the operations of the Company that the chief operating decision maker (" CODM") regularly reviews to analyze

performance and allocate resources among business units of the Company. Disaggregated-Revenue-The folowing-table-presents
fevenue—by—seufee-C0mpany s CODM is its Pres1dent and Jey—CEO segmeﬂt—Segment Assets fer—t-he—year—eﬂded—Beeembef

ef—Segment Proﬁt or Loss a-nd—Segfﬁeﬂt—A:ssets—The Ge-m-paﬂ-y—CODM evaluates operatmg segment performance and dec1des
how to alleeates— allocate resources based on segment revenues and earnings (loss) before income tax (benefit) expense. The
Company determines earnings (loss) before income tax (benefit) expense for all reportable segments in accordance with U. S.

GAAP. The CODM uses this information to evaluate A-pertion-ofinterestexpense-is-aloeated-from-the ProgresstveLeasing
profitability of the Company' s reportable segmentsegments and make decisions to-the-Vivesegmentbased-on future
business plans the-balanee-ofoutstanding-intereompany-debt-. The Company incurred various corporate overhead expenses for

certain executive management, legal, human resources, finance, facilities treasury;tax-, audit ;tegal, risk management ,
technology , and other overhead functions during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and2024-. Corporate
overhead expenses incurred are primarily reflected as expenses of the Progressive Leasing segment and an immaterial amount
was allocated to the Vive segment and Other. The allocation of corporate overhead costs to Progressive Leasing, Vive and Other
ts-was consistent with how the CODM ehtef-operating-deetstonmaker-analyzed performance and allocated resources among the

segments of the Company during-the-years-ended-Deeember3+2023;2022;and-2024-. The following is a summary of earnings



before-ineome-taxexpense-total assets by segment. The amount within Other is primarily comprised of the assets of Four.
December 31, (In Thousands) 20242023 Assets: Progressive Leasing $ 1, 282, 585 § 1, 286, 587 Vivel37, 762 141, 028
Other93, 420 63, 640 Total Assets $ 1, 513,767 $ 1, 491, 255 Following is a summary of capital expenditures by segment:
Year Ended December 31, (In Thousands) 202420232022Capital Expenditures %%O%ﬁmgs—Befefe—}ﬂeeme—’Pa*
Expense-: -Pfegfesswe—lProgresswe Leasing § 2465, 2—7—1—615 $ -1—74-6 -1-43—160 § 3H9-S5 | 125-Vave4 545919526, 225
Gt-l‘tefl—(%4—59§9—(-3§—835 V1ve298 601 926 A e 4 SHO¢ g

6,—1—69—$é,—8—35—$—8,—1—9—1—¥h%e69—1—9%61‘3+9—9%her2—. 855 2. L)1 3 63§—Tolal (dplldl E\pmduuus \ 8 316 $ L) 616 L) 674-$—9é§§«
éepfeem—t—refr&ﬂd-&fneﬂ-&aﬁeﬂ%@ﬁaﬁ&l-lCapltal L\DLI]dllLllL\ pllmdlll\ consists of mlunal use \011\\ are, as w L” as computer

hardware and furniture and equipment . The following tables present a summary of segment revenues, significant segment
expenses, other segment items, and profit and loss information for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.
The revenues and loss before income taxes within Other is comprised of the operating activities of Four and certain
other strategic initiatives. Year Ended December 31, 2024 (In Thousands) Progressive LeasingViveOtherTotalRevenues:
Lease Revenues and Feesl $ 2,366,489 $ — $ — $ 2, 366, 489 Interest and Fees on Loans Receivable2 — 64, 415 32, 592
97, 007 Total Revenues2, 366, 489 64, 415 32, 592 2, 463, 496 Significant Segment Expenses3Depreciation of Lease
Merchandisel, 621, 101 — — 1, 621, 101 Provision for Lease Merchandise Write- Offs178, 338 — — 178, 338 Selling,
General and Administrative309, 859 25, 456 28, 227 363, 542 Provision for Loan Losses — 37, 311 18, 639 55, 950 Total2,
109, 298 62, 767 46, 866 2, 218, 931 Other Segment Items: Depreciation and Amortization423, 546 643 2, 788 26, 977
Restructuring Expenses18, 210 1, 853 2, 628 22, 691 Interest Expense538, 816 — 636 39, 452 Interest IncomeS (8, 163) —
— (8, 163) Total72, 409 2, 496 6, 052 80, 957 Earnings (Loss) Before Income Tax (Benefit) Expense $ 184, 782 § (848) $
(20, 326) $ 163, 608 1 Revenue within the score of ASC 842," Leases." 2 Revenue within the scope of ASC 310,"
Receivables." Also included within Interest and Fees on Loans Receivable in for the Other category is $ 11. 4 million of
subscription fee and interchange revenue within the scope of ASC 606," Revenue from Contracts with Customers." 3
The significant expense categories and amounts align with the segment- level information that is regularly provided to
the CODM. 4 Excludes depreciation of lease merchandise, which is not included in the CODM' s measure of depreciation
and amortization. S Intersegment interest income and expense of $ 0. 6 million are included within the amounts shown.
Year Ended December 31, 2023 (In Thousands) Progressive LeasingViveOtherTotalRevenues: Lease Revenues and
Feesl $2,333,588 8 —$—$ 2,333, 588 Interest and Fees on Loans Receivable2 — 68, 912 5, 764 74, 676 Total
Revenues2, 333, 588 68, 912 5, 764 2, 408, 264 Significant Segment Expenses3Depreciation of Lease Merchandisel, 576,
303 — — 1, 576, 303 Provision for Lease Merchandise Write- Offs155, 250 — — 1585, 250 Selling, General and
Administrative315, 088 26, 932 23, 742 365, 762 Provision for Loan Losses — 36, 097 4, 660 40, 757 Total2, 046, 641 63,
029 28, 402 2, 138, 072 Other Segment Items: Depreciation and Amortization429, 165 745 2, 122 32, 032 Restructuring
Expenses12, 533 — — 12, 533 Interest Expense538, 859 593 — 39, 452 Interest IncomeS (9, 881) — (165) (10, 046)
Total70, 676 1, 338 1, 957 73, 971 Earnings (Loss) Before Income Tax Expense $ 216, 271 $ 4, 545 §$ (24, 595) $ 196, 221 1
Revenue within the score of ASC 842," Leases." 2 Revenue within the scope of ASC 310," Receivables." 3 The
significant expense categories and amounts align with the segment- level information that is regularly provided to the
CODM. 4 Excludes depreciation of lease merchandise, which is not included in the CODM' s measure of depreciation
and amortization. S Intersegment interest income and expense of $ 0. 8 million are included within the amounts shown.
Year Ended December 31, 2022 (In Thousands) Progressive LeasingViveOtherTotalRevenues: Lease Revenues and
Feesl $ 2,523,785 % —$ — $ 2,523, 785 Interest and Fees on Loans Receivable2 — 70, 911 3, 130 74, 041 Total
Revenues2, 523, 785 70, 911 3, 130 2, 597, 826 Significant Segment Expenses3Depreciation of Lease Merchandisel, 757,
730 — — 1, 757, 730 Provision for Lease Merchandise Write- Offs193, 926 — — 193, 926 Selling, General and
Administrative321, 266 24, 225 20, 799 366, 290 Provision for Loan Losses — 35, 640 5, 592 41, 232 Impairment of
Goodwill — — 10, 151 10, 151 Total2, 272, 922 59, 865 36, 542 2, 369, 329 Other Segment Items: Depreciation and
Amortization431, 374 795 1, 682 33, 851 Restructuring Expenses8, 343 658 — 9, 001 Interest ExpenseS38, 675 398 — 39,
073 Interest IncomeS (1, 672) — — (1, 672) Total76, 720 1, 851 1, 682 80, 253 Earnings (Loss) Before Income Tax
Expense $ 174,143 $ 9, 195 $ (35, 094) $ 148, 244 1 Revenue within the score of ASC 842," Leases." 2 Revenue within the
scope of ASC 310," Receivables." 3 The significant expense categories and amounts align with the segment- level
information that is regularly provided to the CODM. 4 Excludes depreciation of lease merchandise, which is not
included in the CODM' s measure of depreciation and amortization. 5 Intersegment interest income and expense of $ 0. 4
million are included within the amounts shown. In 2024, the results of the Company' s operating segments were
impacted by the following items: ¢ Progressive Leasing earnings before income tax (benefit) expense were impacted by $




18. 2 million related primarily to early contract termination costs, operating lease right- of- use asset and other fixed
asset impairment charges related to a reduction of office space, and employee severance costs associated with the
Company' s restructuring activities. * Vive loss before income tax (benefit) expense was impacted by $ 1. 9 million of
restructuring costs, which consisted of employee severance costs. * Other loss before income tax (benefit) expense was
impacted by $ 2. 6 million of restructuring costs, which consisted of early contract termination costs and employee
severance costs . In 2023, the results of the Company' s operating segments were impacted by the following items: ¢
Progressive Leasing earnings before income tax expense were impacted by $ 12. 5 million related primarily to early contract
termination costs and employee severance costs associated with the Company' s restructuring activities. * Progressive Leasing
earnings before income tax expense were impacted by $ 2. 8 million related to aetual-and-antieipated-costs related-te-associated
with the cybersecurity incident that occurred during the third quarter of 2023. In 2022, the results of the Company' s operating
segments were impacted by the following items: ¢ Progressive Leasing earnings before income tax expense were impacted by $
8. 3 million related primarily to severance costs and lease asset impairment associated with the Company' s restructuring
activities. * Vive earnings before income tax expense were impacted by $ 0. 7 million related primarily to lease asset
impairment associated with the Company' s restructuring activities. * Other earnings before income tax expense were impacted
by the $ 10 2 mllhon 11npa1rment loss assoelated Wlth the part1a1 11npa1rment of Four' s goodwill. In2024;-theresults-ofthe

o RO ms—NOTE 1+5-14 : COMPENSATION
ARRANGEMENTS The Company maintains a Deferred Compensatlon Plan, which is an unfunded, nonqualified deferred
compensation plan for a select group of management, highly compensated employees and non- employee directors. On a pre-
tax basis, eligible employees can defer receipt of up to 75 % of their base compensation and up to 75 % of their incentive pay
compensation, and eligible non- employee directors can defer receipt of up to 100 % of their cash director fees. Compensation
deferred under the plan is recorded as a deferred compensation liability, which is recorded in accounts payable and accrued
expenses in the consolidated balance sheets. The deferred compensation plan liability was $ 3. 0 million and $ 2. 5 million and
$22-milhenas of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively. Liabilities under the plan are recorded at amounts due
to participants, based on the fair value of participants' selected investments, which consist of equity and debt" mirror" funds. The
obligations are unsecured general obligations of the Company and the participants have no right, interest or claim in the assets
of the Company, except as unsecured general creditors. The Company has established a rabbi trust to fund obligations under the
plan, primarily with cash and money market funds. The value of the assets within the rabbi trust was $ 2. 9 million and $ 2. 6
million aad-$4+-9-mitlteras of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622- respectively, and is included in prepaid expenses and
other assets in the consolidated balance sheets. Benefits paid to employees of the Company were not material during the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and-262+-. Effective January 1, 2018, the Company implemented a discretionary
match within the nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan. The match allows eligible employees to receive 100 % matching by
the Company on the first 3 % of contributions and 50 % on the next 2 % of contributions for a total of a 4 % match. The annual
match for an individual employee is not to exceed $ 13, 800, $ 13, 200, and $ 12, 200 ;and-$35-600-in 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ;
and-2021, respectively, and is subject to a three- year cliff vesting schedule. The deferred compensation expense related to the
Company' s matching contributions was not material for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ;-and262+. 401
(k) Defined Contribution Plan The Company maintains a 401 (k) savings plan for all its employees. Effective January 1, 2015,
the 401 (k) savings plan was amended to allow employees to contribute up to 75 % of their annual compensation in accordance
with federal contribution limits with 100 % matching by the Company on the first 3 % of eompensation-contributions and 50 %
on the next 2 % of eempensation-contributions for a total of a 4 % match. The Company' s expense related to the plan was §$ 3.
3 million in 2024, $ 3. 2 million in 2023 s-and $ 3. 2 million in 2022 and-$2—-5-mithenrin 2624 Sce Note 43-12 to these
consolidated financial statements for more information regarding the Company' s compensatory ESPP. ITEM 9. CHANGES IN
AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE ITEM 9A.
CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES Disclosure Controls and Procedures An evaluation of the Company' s disclosure controls
and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, was carried out by
management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), as of the end of
the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Based on management' s evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded
that the Company' s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2623-2024 to provide reasonable
assurance that the objectives of disclosure controls and procedures are met. Reports of Management and Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Management has assessed, and the Company' s
independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has audited, the Company' s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2823-2024 . The unqualified reports of management and Ernst & Young LLP thereon are included
in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K and are incorporated by reference herein. Changes in Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting There were no changes in the Company' s internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-
15 (f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, during the Company' s fourth fiscal quarter of 2623-2024 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company' s internal control over financial reporting. ITEM 9B.
OTHER INFORMATION During the quarter ended December 31, 2623-2024 , none of our directors or executive officers
adopted, modified or terminated any contract, instruction or written plan for the purchase or sale of Company securities that was
intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5- 1 (¢) or any" non- Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement." ITEM
9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS PART II ITEM 10.
DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE The information
required in response to this Item is contained under the captions" Nominees to Serve as Directors,"" Executive Officers Who Are
Not Directors,"" Communicating with the Board of Directors and Corporate Governance Documents,"" Composition, Meetings

and Committees of the Board of Directors" and" Seetterr+6-(a)-Beneficial Ownership Reperting-Comptanee-of Common Stock




" in the Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A. These portions of the Proxy Statement are hereby
incorporated by reference. We have adopted a written code of business conduct and ethics that applies to all our directors,
officers and employees, including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or
controller and other executive officers identified pursuant to this Item 10 who perform similar functions, which we refer to as
the Selected Officers. The code is posted on our website at http: / / www. progholdings. com. We will disclose any material
changes in or waivers from our code of business conduct and ethics applicable to any Selected Officer on our website at http: / /
www. progholdings. com or by filing a Form &- K. ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION The information required in
response to this Item is contained under the captions" Compensation Discussion and Analysis,"" Summary Compensation
Table,"" Grants of Plan- Based Awards in Fiscal Year 2623-2024 ,"" Outstanding Equity Awards at 2623-2024 Fiscal Year-
End,"" Options Exercised and Stock Vested in Fiscal Year 2623-2024 ."" Nen—Qualified-Nonqualified Deferred Compensation
as of December 31, 2623-2024 ,"" Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change- in- Control,"" Non- Management Director
Compensation in 2623-2024 ,"" Components of Our 2823-2024 Executive Compensation Programs,"" Base Salaries,"" Annual
Cash Incentive Awards,"" Long- Term Equity Incentive Awards,"" 2015 Equity and Incentive Plan,"" Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation" and" Compensation Committee Report" in the Proxy Statement. These portions of the
Proxy Statement are hereby incorporated by reference. ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS The information required in response to
this Item is contained under the captions" Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock" and" Securities Authorized for Issuance
under Equity Compensation Plans" in the Proxy Statement. These portions of the Proxy Statement are hereby incorporated by
reference. ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE The information required in response to this Item is contained under the captions" Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions" and" Election of Directors" in the Proxy Statement. These portions of the Proxy Statement are hereby
incorporated by reference. ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES The information required in
response to this Item is contained under the caption" Audit Matters" in the Proxy Statement. This portion of the Proxy Statement
is hereby incorporated by reference. PART IV ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS and SCHEDULES a) 1.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS The following financial statements and notes thereto of PROG Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries,
and the related Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm are set forth in Item 8 and Item 9A. Consolidated
Balance Sheets — December 31, 2623-2024 and 2622Censehdated-2023Consolidated Statements of Earnings — Years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 ;2022-and 202+Censelidated-2022Consolidated Statements of Shareholders” Equity — Years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 -2022-and 202+Censelidated-2022Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 ;2022-and 2024 Netes-2022Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsReport of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID: 42) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal
Control Over Financial ReportingManagement Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 2. FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SCHEDULES All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC
have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is included in the financial statements or notes
thereto. 3. EXHIBITS EXHIBITNO. DESCRIPTION OF EXHIBITPlan of acquisition, reorganization, arrangement, liquidation
or succession2. 1Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2020, by and between PROG Holdings, Inc.
(formerly Aaron' s Holdings Company, Inc.) and The Aaron' s Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2. 1 of the
Registrant' s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on December 1, 2020). Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws3.
1Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of PROG Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 of
the Registrant' s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on October 16, 2020). 3. 2Articles of Amendment of Articles
of Incorporation of PROG Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 of the Registrant' s Current Report on Form
8- K filed with the SEC on December 1, 2020). 3. 3Amended and Restated Bylaws of PROG Holdings, Inc. (as amended)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 2 of the Registrant' s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on December 1,
2020). Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders, Including Indentures4. 1Specimen Stock Certificate Representing
Shares of Common Stock of the Registrant, par value $ 0. 50 per share (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the
Registrant' s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2020 filed with the SEC on February 26, 2021). 4.
2 * Description of Registrant’ s Securities Registered. 4. 3Indenture, dated November 26, 2021, by and among the Company,
the guarantors party thereto and U. S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the
Registrant' s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on November 26, 2021). 4. 4Form of 6. 000 % Notes due 2029
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the Registrant' s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on November 26,
2021). Material Contracts10. 1Credit Agreement among PROG Holdings, Inc. (formerly Aaron's Holdings Company, Inc.),
PROG Holding Company, LLC (formerly Aaron' s Progressive Holding Company), Progressive Finance Holdings, LLC, those
certain other subsidiaries of PROG Holdings, Inc. party thereto, the several banks and other financial institutions from time to
time party thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N. A., as administrative agent, dated November 24, 2020 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 5 of the Registrant' s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on December 1, 2020). 10.
2Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of May 26, 2023, entered into among Progressive Finance Holdings, LLC,
PROG Holdings, Inc. and the other Guarantors party thereto, the Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. A., as
Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Registrant' s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2023 filed with the SEC on July 26, 2023). 10. 3€ensent3Third Amendment to Credit Agreement,
dated February2+-November 15 , 2620-2024 , entered into among Progressive Finance Holdings, LLC, PROG Holdings,
Inc. and other Guarantors party thereto, the Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. A., as the
Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of Aaron's, Inc....... by reference to Exhibit 10. 4 of the
Registrant' s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on Oeteber+6-November 19, 2024). 10. 4Consent Agreement



dated February 21 . 2020 ¥ A i 0 ireetors
aﬁd—Restaten&en-t—(lncorporated by reference to Exhrbrt 10 6—1—0f Aaron S Inc S Current Report on F orm 8- K ﬁled with the
SEC on February 25,2020).10. 5Censent4Consent Order,dated April 22,2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Aaron' s,Inc.' s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on April 23,2020).Management Contracts and Compensatory
Plans or Arrangements10. 6éEmployees-SEmployees Retirement Plan,as amended and restated,effective January 1,2016
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of Aaron' s,Inc.' s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended June 30,2016
filed with the SEC on August 4,2016).10. FFirst-6First Amendment to the Employees Retirement Plan,dated as of June
28,2016,to be effective October 4,2016 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Aaron's,Inc.' s Quarterly Report on Form
10- Q for the quarter ended June 30,2016 filed with the SEC on August 4,2016).10. Fhird-7Third Amendment to the
Employees Retirement Plan,dated August 23,2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Aaron' s,Inc.' s Quarterly Report
on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended September 30,2019 filed with the SEC on November 4,2019).10. SFeurth-8Fourth
Amendment to the Employees Retirement Plan,dated October 16,2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 4 of the
Registrant' s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on October 16, 2020). 10. +oBeferred-10Amended and Restated
Compensation Plan for Non- Employee Directors , 2020 Amendment and Restatement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10. 5-6 of the Registrant' s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on October 16, 2020). 10. 11Deferred
Compensation Plan, 2020 Amendment and Restatement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. S of the Registrant' s
Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on October 16, 2020). 10. H¥erm-12Form of Employee Stock Option
Award Agreement under the Aaron' s, Inc. 2015 Equity and Incentive Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 2 of
the Registrant' s Registration Statement on Form S- 8 (333- 204014) filed with the SEC on May 8, 2015). 10. +2Ferm-13Form
of Executive Performance Share Award Agreement under the Aaron's, Inc. 2015 Equity and Incentive Award Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 3 of the Registrant' s Registration Statement on Form S- 8 (333- 204014) filed with the
SEC on May 8, 2015). 10. 3Amendment14Amendment to Form of Executive Performance Share Award Agreement under the
Aaron's, Inc. 2015 Equity and Incentive Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 6 of the Registrant' s Quarterly
Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2015 filed with the SEC on August 6, 2015). 10. +4Ferm-15Form of
Executive Officer Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Aaron's, Inc. 2015 Equity and Incentive Award Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 4 of the Registrant' s Registration Statement on Form S- 8 (333- 204014) filed with the
SEC on May 8, 2015). 10. +5Amendment16Amendment to Form of Executive Officer Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
under the Aaron's, Inc. 2015 Equity and Incentive Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 8 of the Registrant' s
Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2015 filed with the SEC on August 6, 2015). 10. +6Exeeutive
17Executive Severance Pay Plan of PROG Holdings, Inc., Effective July 29, 2021 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of
the Registrant' s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 filed with the SEC on July 29, 2021). 10.
+7+Exeentive-18Executive Severance Pay Plan of PROG Holdings, Inc., Effective November 8, 2023 —(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 17 of the Registrant' s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2023 filed
with the SEC on February 21, 2024). 10. +8Ferm-19Form of Severance and Change In Control Agreement, effective July 29,
2021 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 of the Registrant' s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended June
30, 2021 filed with the SEC on July 29, 2021). 10. +9Fernr20Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10. 29 of the Registrant' s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2020 filed with the SEC on
February 26, 2021). 10. 26BRO6-21PROG Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated 2015 Equity and Incentive Plan, 2022
Amendment and Restatement (incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Company' s Definitive Proxy Statement filed with
the SEC on April 26, 2022). 10. 2HRE6-22PROG Holdings, Inc. Amended Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by
reference to Appendix C to the Company' s Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SEC on April 26, 2022). 9419 * + PROG
Holdings, Inc. Insider Trading Policy97PROG Holdings, Inc. Incentive- Based Compensation Recoupment Policy
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 97 of the Registrant' s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December
31, 2023 filed with the SEC on February 21, 2024) . Other Exhibits and Certifications21 * Subsidiaries of the Registrant. 23 *
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. 31. 1 * Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of PROG Holdings, Inc. pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. 31. 2 * Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of PROG Holdings, Inc.
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. 32. 1 * Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of PROG
Holdings, Inc. furnished herewith pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. 32. 2 * Certification of the Chief
Financial Officer of PROG Holdings, Inc. furnished herewith pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. 101.
INSXBRL Instance Document- The instance document does not appear in the interactive data file because its XBRL tags are
embedded within the inline XBRL document. 101. SCHXBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document101. CALXBRL
Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document101. DEFXBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Document101. LABXBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document101. PREXBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
Linkbase Document104Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and embedded within Exhibit 101) 1 The
Company hereby agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted schedule or exhibit to the SEC upon the request of the
SEC. * Filed herewith. (b) EXHIBITS The exhibits listed in Item 15 (a) (3) are included elsewhere in this Report. (c)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES The financial statements listed in Item 15 (a) (1) are included in Item 8 in
this Report. ITEM 16. FORM 10- K SUMMARY SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, on February 2419 , 2624-2025 . PROG Holdings, Inc. By: / s / BRIAN GARNER Brian Garner Chief
Financial Officer Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 2419 , 2624-2025 . SIGNATURE
TITLE /s / STEVEN A. MICHAELS Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive Officer) Steven A. Michaels / s




/ BRIAN GARNER Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) Brian Garner /s / MATT SEWELL Vice President,
Financial Reporting (Principal Accounting Officer) Matt Sewell /s / KATHY T. BETTY DirectorKathy T. Betty /s /
DOUGLAS C. CURLINGDirectorDouglas C. Curling /s / CYNTHIA N. DAY DirectorCynthia N. Day /s / CURTIS L.
DOMANDirectorCurtis L. Doman /s / RAY M. ROBINSONDirectorRay M. Robinson /s / JIM SMITHDirectorJim Smith /s /
CAROLINE SHEUDirectorCaroline Sheu /s / RAY MARTINEZDirectorRay Martinez / s / ROBERT
JULIANDirectorRobert Julian /s / DANIELA MIELKEDirectorDaniela Mielke Exhibit 4. 2 DESCRIPTION OF PROG
HOLDINGS, INC. CAPITAL STOCK The following is a summary of the terms of our common stock based on our amended
and restated articles of incorporation (our" articles of incorporation"), our amended and restated bylaws (our" bylaws") and
applicable provisions of Georgia law. This summary is not complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to
the complete text of our articles of incorporation and our bylaws, and applicable provisions of Georgia law. You should read
these documents for additional information regarding our common stock that may be important to you. Unless the context
otherwise requires, references to" we,"" us," and" our" are solely to PROG Holdings, Inc. and not to any of its subsidiaries or
affiliates. We are authorized under our articles of incorporation to issue an aggregate 225 million shares of common stock, par
value $ 0. 50 per share, and 1 million shares of preferred stock, par value $ 1. 00 per share. Based on the advice of counsel, our
issued and outstanding shares of common stock are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable. Each holder of our common
stock is entitled to one vote per share in the election of directors and on all other materials submitted to a vote of our
shareholders. There are no cumulative voting rights, meaning that the holders of a majority of the shares of our common stock
voting for the election of directors can elect all of the directors standing for election. Subject to the rights of the holders of any
series of our preferred stock that may be outstanding from time to time, each share of our common stock will have an equal and
ratable right to receive dividends as may be declared by our board of directors out of funds legally available for the payment of
dividends, and, in the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, will be entitled to share equally and ratably in the
assets available for distribution to our stockholders. No holder of our common stock will have any preemptive or other
subscription rights to purchase or subscribe for any of our securities. In addition, holders of our common stock have no
conversion rights, and there are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to our common stock. Our common stock
is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol" PRG." The transfer agent for our common stock is
Computershare, Inc. Anti- Takeover Effects of PROG’ s Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws and under Georgia Law Our
articles of incorporation and bylaws, as well as the Georgia Business Corporation Code, contain provisions that could delay or
make more difficult the acquisition of control of us through a hostile tender offer, open market purchases, proxy contest, merger
or other takeover attempt that a shareholder might consider in his or her best interest, including those attempts that might result
in a premium over the market price of our common stock. Authorized but Unissued Capital Stock We have an aggregate 225
million authorized shares of common stock and 1 million authorized shares of preferred stock. One of the consequences of our
authorized but unissued common stock and undesignated preferred stock may be to enable our board of directors to make more
difficult or to discourage an attempt to obtain control of us. If, in the exercise of its fiduciary obligations, our board of directors
determined that a takeover proposal was not in our best interest, our board of directors could authorize the issuance of those
shares without stockholder approval, subject to limits imposed by the New York Stock Exchange. The shares could be issued in
one or more transactions that might prevent or make the completion of a proposed change of control transaction more difficult or
costly by, among other things: * diluting the voting or other rights of the proposed acquiror or insurgent shareholder group; *
creating a substantial voting block in institutional or other hands that might undertake to support the position of the incumbent
board; or « effecting an acquisition that might complicate or preclude the takeover. In this regard, our articles of incorporation
grants our board of directors broad power to establish the rights and preferences of the authorized and unissued preferred stock.
Our board of directors could establish one or more series of preferred stock that entitle holders to:  vote separately as a class on
any proposed merger or consolidation; ¢ cast a proportionately larger vote together with our common stock on any transaction or
for all purposes; ¢ elect directors having terms of office or voting rights greater than those of other directors; ¢ convert preferred
stock into a greater number of shares of our common stock or other securities; « demand redemption at a specified price under
prescribed circumstances related to a change of control of us; or * exercise other rights designed to impede a takeover.
Shareholder Action by Written Consent; Special Meetings of Shareholders Our bylaws provide that any action permitted to be
taken by shareholders at any annual or special meeting may be taken without a meeting by written consent if all our
shareholders consent thereto in writing. Special meetings of our shareholders may only be called by our chief executive officer
or secretary (i) when directed by the chairman of our board of directors or by a majority of our entire board of directors, or (ii)
upon the demand of shareholders representing at least 25 % of all votes entitled to be cast on each issue to be considered at the
proposed special meeting of shareholders. Election and Removal of Directors Our bylaws provide that the number of directors
shall be at least 3, but may be increased and fixed from time to time by resolution of our board of directors. However, no
decrease in the size of our board of directors will shorten the term of any incumbent director. Our bylaws also provide that a
director may be removed by the shareholders only for cause and only by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the issued
and outstanding capital stock entitled to vote for the election of directors. Finally, our bylaws provide that vacancies, including
vacancies resulting from an increase in the number of directors or from removal of a director, may be filled by a majority vote of
the remaining directors then in office, even if less than a quorum or a sole remaining director. Advance Notice Procedure for
Director Nomination and Shareholder Proposals Our bylaws provide the manner in which shareholders may give notice of
director nominations and other business to be brought before an annual meeting. In general, to bring a matter before an annual
meeting, other than a proposal being presented in accordance with the provisions of Rule 14a- 8 under the Exchange Act, a
shareholder must give notice of the proposed matter in writing not less than 90 and not more than 120 days prior to the meeting
and satisfy the other requirements in our bylaws. To nominate a candidate for election as a director, a shareholder must give
notice of the proposed nomination in writing not less than 60 or more than 120 days prior to the first anniversary of the prior



year’ s annual meeting. If the annual meeting is more than 30 days before or more than 70 days after the first anniversary of the
prior year’ s annual meeting, a sharcholder must instead give notice of a proposed nomination in writing no more than 120 days
prior to such annual meeting and no less than 60 days prior to the annual meeting or the 10th day following the public
announcement of when the meeting will be held. Any notice to nominate a candidate for election as a director must also satisfy
all other requirements specified in our bylaws. Amendments of Our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws Amendments to our
articles of incorporation generally must be approved by our board of directors and by a majority of the outstanding stock entitled
to vote on the amendment, and, if applicable, by a majority of the outstanding stock of each class or series entitled to vote on the
amendment as a class or series. Our bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of our board of directors. Any bylaws adopted
by our board of directors may be amended, and new bylaws may be adopted, by our shareholders by majority vote of all of the
shares having voting power. Georgia Anti- Takeover Statutes The Georgia Business Corporation Code restricts certain business
combinations with “ interested shareholders ”” and contains fair price requirements applicable to certain mergers with certain
interested shareholders that are summarized below. The restrictions imposed by these statutes will not apply to a corporation
unless it elects to be governed by these statutes. We have not elected to be covered by these restrictions, but, although we have
no present intention to do so, we could elect to do so in the future. The Georgia Business Corporation Code regulates business
combinations such as mergers, consolidations, share exchanges and asset purchases where the acquired business has at least 100
shareholders residing in Georgia and has its principal office in Georgia, and where the acquiror became an interested
shareholder of the corporation, unless either: ¢ the transaction resulting in such acquiror becoming an interested shareholder or
the business combination received the approval of the corporation’ s board of directors prior to the date on which the acquiror
became an interested shareholder; ¢ the acquiror became the owner of at least 90 % of the outstanding voting stock of the
corporation, excluding shares held by directors, officers and affiliates of the corporation and shares held by certain other
persons, in the same transaction in which the acquiror became an interested sharcholder; or shares held by certain other persons,
subsequent to the transaction in which the acquiror became an interested shareholder, and the business combination is approved
by a majority of the shares entitled to vote, exclusive of shares owned by the interested shareholder, directors and officers of the
corporation, certain affiliates of the corporation and the interested shareholder and certain employee stock plans. For purposes of
this statute, an interested sharcholder generally is any person who directly or indirectly, alone or in concert with others,
beneficially owns or controls 10 % or more of the voting power of the outstanding voting shares of the corporation. The statute
prohibits business combinations with an unapproved interested shareholder for a period of five years after the date on which
such person became an interested sharcholder. The statute restricting business combinations is broad in its scope and is designed
to inhibit unfriendly acquisitions. The Georgia Business Corporation Code also prohibits certain business combinations between
a Georgia corporation and an interested shareholder unless: ¢ certain" fair price" criteria are satisfied; ¢ the business combination
is unanimously approved by the continuing directors; ¢ the business combination is recommended by at least two- thirds of the
continuing directors and approved by a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of voting shares, other than voting
shares beneficially owned by the interested shareholder; or ¢ the interested shareholder has been such for at least three years and
has not increased his ownership position in such three- year period by more than one percent in any 12- month period. The fair
price statute is designed to inhibit unfriendly acquisitions that do not satisfy the specified" fair price" requirements. Limitation of
Liability of Directors Our articles of incorporation provide that none of our directors will be personally liable to us or our
shareholders for monetary damages resulting from a breach of the duty of care or any other duty owed to us as a director to the
fullest extent permitted by Georgia law. Our bylaws require us to indemnify any person to the fullest extent permitted by law for
any liability and expense resulting from any threatened, pending or completed legal action, suit or proceeding resulting from the
fact that such person is or was a director or officer of us, including service at our request as a director, officer, partner, trustee,
employee, administrator or agent of another entity. Our directors and officers are also insured against losses arising from any
claim against them in connection with their service as directors and officers for wrongful acts or omissions, subject to certain
limitations. Exhibit 464719 INSIDER TRADING POLICY EXECUTIVE SUMMARY Updated SEVERANCERAY
-P-I:ANGF—PRGG—HGJ:BI—NGS—I—N&E—ffeeﬁve—a% of Nevember—S—February 15 , 2623-2024 This Insider Trading Policy

p : ar —( the-this *“ Company-Policy ") hereby-establishes-is
mtended to prevent Vlolatlons of the -E*eeut—we—Se’v‘efa-nee—Pay—P-lan—Umted States federal securities laws and to protect the
reputation of PROG Holdings, Inc. (the “ Plan-Company ) for integrity and ethical conduct. The securities laws prohibit
trading in securities of the Company by insiders who are aware of material nonpublic information or giving such
information to others. You may have access to material nonpublic information about the Company and its operations. If
you are in possession of such information , you may not trade in Company securities. Additionally, even if you are not
aware of material nonpublic information, this Policy prohibits you from trading during certain black- out periods. Also,
you must obtain pre- clearance of all trades in Company securities from the Insider Trading Compliance Officer. Please
refer to the full text of this Policy for a more detailed description of your obligations hereunder. Q: Who does this Policy
apply to? A: This Policy applies to directors, effective-executive officersl and certain employees of the Company as of
November-8,2023-may be determined from time to time ( the-* Effeetive-Date-Covered Persons ). You will be notified The
Plan-shall-eontinue-ineffeetuntitterminated-by the Company;-subjeetto-the-provisions-of-SeettonX—below-Insider Trading
Compliance Officer if you are a Covered Person . You may also check Exhibit B attached hereto for a current list of the
Covered Persons. Q. As a Covered Person, what can I do to stay in compliance with this Policy? A: You should: |. 2Fhe

purpeses-of Never trade in the securities Plan-inelude-(Hproviding-eertainexeentives-of the Company (and+or any affiliate

company, for that matter) whlle in possessmn of materlal nonpubllc information about the Company ( or any substdiary

other employment (i) betterenabling the-Company
company ) 2. Only trade in securltles of the Company whlle in a-nd» an tts—a-fﬁ-l-t&tes—open tradmg Wmdow. Q What 1f I

place and-- an order during d




the-event-of-a ehangeineontrotof-window and it gets filled after the Coempany-window closes- am I in compliance because I
placed the order while in the open window? A: No. You have violated this Policy. This Policy permits trades only during
a window. Regardless of when you placed the order, the trade occurred outside the window. You are responsible for
cancelling open orders trades do not occur outside a window and you must execute the transaction within two
business days after receiving approval. 1 For purposes of this Policy, the term “ exeettives— executive officer ” has the
meaning specified for the term “ officer ” in Rule 16a- 1 (f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
There arc foeused-limited instances in which trading may occur outside the window, including Company approved 10b5-
1 plans and cash payments of exercise price. Q: Are there any additional obligations I should be aware of? A: Yes — even
if a window has been opened by the Insider Trading Compliance Officer, Covered Persons may not initiate a transaction
until they have received written pre- approval of the Insider Trading Compliance Officer. Q: Who is the Insider Trading
Compliance Officer? A. An individual designated by the Company and responsible for administration of this Policy. The
Insider Trading Policy Compliance Officer is Todd King. Q: As a Covered Person, what is the easiest way for me to
receive pre- approval from the Insider Trading Compliance Officer? A. Generally, an email will suffice. A couple of
examples follow. You should keep the response in your records in case a question arises in the future. 1. Todd, I would
like to exercise up to 1, 000 options before the close of the current window. I confirm that I am not in possession of
material nonpublic information. Am I ok to trade? 2. Todd, I would like to purchase / sell up to 2, 000 shares before the
close of the current window. I confirm that I am not in possession of material nonpublic information. Am I ok to trade?
3. Todd, I would like to make a bona fide gift of up to S00 shares before the close of the current window. I confirm that I
am not in possession of material nonpublic information. Am I ok to make the gift? Q: Who should I contact if I have any
questions about my obligations under this Policy? A. You should contact Todd King, the Insider Trading Compliance
Officer. IF YOU KNOW OR HAVE REASON TO BELIEVE THAT THIS POLICY HAS BEEN OR IS ABOUT TO BE
VIOLATED, YOU MUST REPORT THIS INFORMATION IMMEDIATELY TO THE INSIDER TRADING
COMPLIANCE OFFICER. PROG Holdings, Inc. Insider Trading Policy- Executive Summary 2 I. Statement of Purpose
It is illegal for any employee, officer or director of the Company to engage in transactions involving the Company’ s
securities while in the possession of material nonpublic information concerning the Company. It is also illegal for any
employee, officer or director of the Company to give material nonpublic information concerning the Company to others
who may trade on pursuing-transaetioropportanities-the basis of are-benefietal-information or may commumcate that
information to others. In order to assist sharcholders;-and-(iv)retaining-eritteal-talent
eeﬂ{-fel-comphance w1th federal and state securities laws governmg transaettorrtransactions in Company securities while
ob 0 d meantngs-possession of material nonpublic
mformatlon concerning the Company, and governmg dlsclosure of materlal nonpublic information to outsiders (“
tipping ”), and in order to prevent the appearance of improper trading or tipping, the Company has adopted this Policy.
I1. Scope This Policy applies to directors, executive officers2 and certain employees of the Company (“ Covered Persons
) as in Exhibit B attached hereto. The restrictions on Covered Persons also applies to (i) members of their
families who share the same household, (ii) persons living in their households and (iii) persons financially dependent
upon them (regardless of residence), as well as entities (such as corporations, trusts and partnerships) which such
Covered Person controls or influences with respect to a securities transaction (“ Covered Entities ”’). Covered Persons
are responsible for ensuring compliance by their families and others living in their households or financially dependent
on them and by Covered Entities. This Policy applies to any and all transactions in, and bona fide gifts of, the Company’
s securities, including common shares, options and any other type of securities that the Company may issue, such as
preferred shares, convertible debentures, debt securities and exchange- traded options, unless the transaction is
explicitly permitted by this Policy. Each Covered Person will be required to annually sign an acknowledgement that he
or she has received a copy and agrees to comply with the terms of this Policy, and has complied with this Policy, as
applicable, over the past year. This acknowledgment and agreement will constitute consent for the Company to impose
sanctions for violation of this Policy and to issue any necessary stop- transfer orders to the Company’ s transfer agent to
enforce compliance with this Policy. As discussed in Section IX, sanctions for individuals may include disciplinary
actions, up to and including termination of employment if the Company has a reasonable basis to conclude that this
Policy has been violated. Section 16 (b) Persons, as defined where-used-ir, may be required to certify compliance
with this Policy on an annual basis. This Policy also applies to material nonpublic information relating to the-other Plan
companies , srtess-including the Company’ s vendors and suppliers (“ business partners ), when that information is 2
For purposes of this Policy, the term “ executive officer ” has the meaning specified for the term “ officer ” in Rule 16a- 1
(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. PROG Holdings, Inc. Insider Trading Policy 1 obtained in
the course of employment with, or the performance of services on behalf of, the Company. Civil and criminal penalties
and termination of employment may result from trading on or tipping others with inside information regarding the
Company’ s business partners. All Covered Persons should treat material nonpublic information about the Company’ s
business partners with the same care required with respect to information related directly to the Company. Covered
Persons have ethical and legal obligations to maintain the confidentiality of information about the Company and not to
engage in transactions in Company securities while in possession of material nonpublic information. In all cases, the
responsibility for determining whether an individual is in possession of material nonpublic information rests with that
individual, and any action on the part of the Company, the Compliance Officer or any the-other eontext-elearly-indieates
person pursuant to this Policy (or ) does not in any way constitute legal advice or insulate an individual from
liability under applicable securities laws . +The Company may change these procedures or adopt other procedures in the
future, as the Company considers appropriate, in order to carry out the purposes of this Policy . +-III. Section 16 (b)




Persons The Company will, from time to time, designate certain persons who are subject to the reporting provisions and
trading restrictions of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the * Administrator-Exchange Act
means-), and the underlying rules and regulations promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ SEC
”); each such party is referred to herein as a “ Section 16 (b) Person. ” The will promptly notify in writing each
person or entity designated a Section 16 (b) Person. Each Section 16 (b) Person must comply with all Section 16 filing
requirements as described in more detail in Exhibit A hereto. The Company will amend its designation of Section 16 (b)
Persons from time to time as necessary to reflect the addition, the resignation or departure, of a Section 16 (b) Person.
Each Section 16 (b) Person will notify the Compliance Officer in writing when such Section 16 (b) Person believes that
he, she or it is no longer subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act. If the Company agrees that such Section 16 (b)
Person is no longer so subject, or if the Company determines independently that such Section 16 (b) Person is no longer
so subject, then such Section 16 (b) Person automatically will be deemed to be removed from such designation effective
when it is determined that such Section 16 (b) Person is no longer subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act. The
Company will promptly notify any Section 16 (b) Person in writing if the Company independently determines that such
Section 16 (b) Person is no longer legally subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act. IV. Insider Trading Compliance
Officer The Company shall, from time to time, designate an officer as its Insider Trading Compliance Officer (the *
Compliance Officer ). The Compliance Officer, in his or her Plan-such, will report directly to the Chief
Executive Officer. The duties of the Compliance Officer include the following: 1. Administering and interpreting this
Policy, monitoring and enforcing compliance with all Policy provisions and procedures and training Covered Persons
with respect to the operation of this Policy. 2. Responding to all inquiries relating to this Policy and its procedures,
including inquiries as to whether information is ** administrator-material ” and-or ** nonpublic named-fidaetary-" . 3.
Participating in the administration of the Trading Window Policy as described in Section VI. 4. Providing copies of this
Policy and other appropriate materials to all Covered Persons, and such other persons whom the Compliance Officer
determines may have access to material nonpublic information concerning the Company. 5. Administering, monitoring
and enforcing compliance within—- with the-meaning-all federal and state insider trading laws and regulations, including
without limitation Sections 10 (b), 16, 20A and 21A of ERISA-the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder, and Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “ Securities Act ”); and assisting in the
preparation and filing of all required SEC reports via EDGAR relating to insider trading in Company securities,
including without limitation Forms 3, 4, 5 and 144. 6. Revising this Policy as necessary to reflect changes in federal or
state securities laws and regulations. 7. Maintaining as Company records originals or copies of all documents required
by the provisions of this Policy or the procedures set forth herein, and copies of all required SEC reports relating to
insider trading, including without limitation Forms 3, 4, 5 and 144. 8. Maintaining a list of Covered Persons and adding
persons to, or removing persons from, such list from time to time as necessary to reflect changes in positions or
circumstances. 9. Pre- clearing all trading in securities of the Company by Covered Persons in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Section VI Committtee-Compliance Officer aet-as-consult with the Administrator-unless
and-unti-t-delegates-sueh-antherity-and-responsibiity-Chief Executive Officer concerning relevant matters. All inquiries
concerning any of the provisions or procedures of this Policy should be directed to the Compliance Officer. The Chief
Executive Officer may designate individuals who may perform the Compliance offieers— Officer ’ s duties in
the event that the Compliance Officer is unable or a-eemmittee-unavailable to perform such duties, and may replace or
amend the duties of the Compliance Officer in the Chief Executive Officer’ s sole discretion . V. Definition of “ Material
Nonpublic Information ” Insider trading restrictions come into play only if the information you possess is “ material. ”
Information about the Company is material if it would be expected to affect the investment decisions of a reasonable
shareholder or investor, or if the disclosure of the information would be expected to significantly alter the total mix of the
information in the marketplace about the Company. In simple terms, material information is any type of information
that could reasonably be expected to affect the market price of the Company’ s securities. Both positive and negative
information may be material. While it is not possible to identify all information that would be deemed “ material, > the
following types of information typically are considered material: |. New earnings estimates (including changes of
previously announced estimates), whether for completed or future periods. 2 . Significant changes in company
operations, projections or strategic plans, or significant events affecting the Company’ s operations. 3. Potential mergers
and acquisitions by the Company or subsidiaries, sales or other dispositions of Company or subsidiary assets or joint
ventures involving the Company or subsidiaries. 4. Significant pricing changes. 5. Stock splits or public or private
securities / debt offerings or stock repurchases. 6. Changes in Company dividend policies or amounts. 7. Changes in
senior management. 8. Significant accounting developments. 9. Actual or threatened major litigation or significant
developments in such litigation. 10. Significant actions by regulatory bodies related to the Company. 11. Significant data
security incidents involving the Company or a significant vendor, including (among other incidents) data breaches, data
theft, cyber- security attacks and unauthorized access to the Company’ s or such vendor’ s computer networks. 12.
Bankruptcy or receivership. Insider trading restrictions come into play only if the material information you possess is
Anntal-Salary-nonpublic. ” means-Material information is nonpublic if it has not been widely disseminated to the public
through major newswire services , national news services or public filings with the SEC or through a Company call or
conference that is open to investors on a broad, non- exclusionary basis. For the purposes of this Policy, information will
be considered public — i. e., no longer “ nonpublic ” — after one full trading day following the widespread public release
of the information. Any Covered Persons who have any doubt about whether the information that they possess is
material or nonpublic must consult the Compliance Officer for guidance before engaging in any transaction involving
any Company securities or disseminating such information outside the Company. VI. Certain Specific Prohibitions



Related to Transactions in Company Securities No Trading While in Possession of Material Nonpublic Information. No
Covered Person may engage in transactions involving Company securities (i. e., purchasing, selling or gifting) while in
possession of material nonpublic information concerning the Company, other than transactions effected under a written
contract, instruction or plan approved by the Compliance Officer (an “ Approved Plan ), as described below under
Section VILI. It does not matter if there is an independent, justifiable reason for a purchase, sale or gift, or if a “ trading
window ” is open. If a Covered Person has material nonpublic information, the prohibition on trading in the Company’ s
securities applies. No Trading Outside of Trading Windows. No Covered Person may engage in transactions involving
Company securities outside of a trading window. Trading Windows will generally commence after the close of trading
one full trading day following the Company’ s widespread public release of quarterly or year- end operating results, and
ending at the close of trading on the last trading day that is at least two weeks prior to quarter- end. However, a formal
notification to Covered Persons will be made by the Compliance Officer with respect to aPartieipant-the Partieipant™
opening and closing of a Trading Window. Covered Persons should not expect that the window will open on any
particular date or remain open for any minimum period of time. No Trading Without Prior Notification and Approval.
Covered Persons may engage in transactions involving Company securities (i. e., purchasing, selling or gifting) only after
obtaining approval, unless the transactions are effected under an Approved Plan. If a Covered Person determines to
engage in a transaction involving Company securities, the Covered Person will notify the Compliance Officer in writing

of the amount and nature of the proposed transaction ( s ) prior to anntal-basesalary-exelustve-ofanybonuspay;
eommisstons;-overtimepay-orother—- the additional-eompensation;-proposed trade. The Covered Person will not engage in

effeet—at—transactlons 1nv01v1ng tln t—nﬁe-e-ﬁrelevant securities (a) unless and untll the Compllance Ofﬁcer pr0v1des his or
her approval Sepa oard OTS0
tm-}ess—pfeﬂded-et-heﬁv‘rse—m wrltlng and (b) after the end of the second full business day after such approval is granted
The foregoing functions of the Compliance Officer will be undertaken by the Chief Executive Officer in the case of
proposed trades by the Compliance Officer. Notwithstanding this paragraph, a Covered Person may buy, sell or gift
Company securities at any time without further approval if effected under the terms of an individual-agreement-between
Approved Plan. The existence of the Exeeutive-and-foregoing approval procedures does not in any way obligate the
Compliance Officer to approve any transaction involving Company securities. The Compliance Officer may reject any
approval request in his or her discretion, subject to review by the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer. No Trading
Adyvice. Covered Persons are also prohibited from giving trading advice of any kind regarding the Company’ s securities
to anyone while in possession of material nonpublic information about the Company. Indeed, the Company strongly
discourages all employees, officers and directors from giving third parties trading advice concerning the Company even
when they do not possess material nonpublic information about the Company. This prohibition includes a prohibition on
offering trading advice about the Company or otherwise discussing the Company’ s securities on the Internet, including
discussion forums, blogs and social media (such as Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Snapchat, Reddit, Pinterest, YouTube
and other social media networks). Empteyer-Employees , officers and directors may, however, advise others not to engage
in transactions related to Company securities that might violate the securities laws or this Policy. Pledged Stock; Margin
Loans- General Rule. Sales of Company shares because an individual has borrowed money and pledged shares as
security for the loan have no special exemption from insider trading laws. Accordingly, Covered Persons should be
extremely careful when utilizing a margin loan in a brokerage account or otherwise using Company securities as
collateral for a loan — and, as further discussed below, Section 16 (b) Persons are prohibited from pledging Company
securities or other uses of Company securities as collateral. Under margin arrangements, a broker is entitled to sell
shares which an individual has deposited as collateral for loans, if the value of the securities falls below the brokerage
firm’ s margin requirements. Even though the individual did not initiate the sale or control its timing, because it is still a
sale for the individual’ s benefit, the individual may be subject to liability under insider trading laws if the sale is made at
a time when the individual is in possession of material, nonpublic information. Accordingly, such a sale must be made in
compliance with respeet-the restrictions under this Policy that apply to a Covered Person. As a result, if a Covered Person
uses Company securities to secure a margin loan, he or she may be forced to take actions (for instance, depositing
additional money or selling other securities) to satisfy margin requirements in order to avoid his or her broker selling his
or her Company securities at a time that would result in a violation of insider trading laws or this Policy. Similar
cautions apply to a bank or other loan for which a Covered Person has pledged Company stock as collateral. Pledged
Stock; Margin Loans- Prohibited for Section 16 (b) Persons. Pledging of Company securities or other uses of Company
securities as collateral (whether related to margin loans in brokerage accounts, as collateral for a bank or other loan, or
otherwise) is prohibited for Section 16 (b) Persons. No Derivative Transactions. Covered Persons are prohibited from
purchasing or selling any interest or position relating to the future price of Company securities, such as a put, call, short
sale or hedge. No Short Sales. A “ short sale ” is one involving securities which the seller does not own at the time of sale
or, if the securities are owned, where they will be delivered on a delayed basis (meaning that the securities are not
delivered within 20 days after the sale or deposited in the mail or other usual channels of transportation within five days
after the sale). Selling securities “ short ” is consistent with an Exeeutive-expectation that the price of the securities will
decline in the near future and is often speculative in nature. Short selling will arouse suspicion in the eyes of the SEC that
the person was trading on the basis of inside information, particularly when the trading occurs before a major company
announcement or event. Accordingly, Covered Persons are prohibited from selling Company stock short. Short- Term
Transactions. The Company expects investments by Covered Persons in the Company to be long- term investments that
align their interests with the long- term success, growth and profitability of the Company. The Company expects
Covered Persons not to engage in speculative transactions that are designed to result in profit based on short- term




fluctuations in the price of the Company’ s securities. When purchasing Company securities, the Company strongly
encourages Covered Persons to do so with the expectation of owning those securities for an extended period of time — at a
minimum, for twelve months. The Company recognizes, of course, that personal circumstances may change due to
unforeseen events, in which case Covered Persons may be forced to more quickly liquidate Company securities that were
originally purchased as a long- term investment. Additional Restrictions Related to Business Partners. No Covered
Person : {-1. May engage in transactions involving the securities of any business partner while possessing material
nonpublic information concerning that company. 2. May “ tip ” or disclose material nonpublic information concerning
any business partner to anyone. 3. May give trading advice of any kind to anyone concerning any business partner while
possessing material nonpublic information about that business partner. 4. May use nonpublic information about other
companies obtained in the course of their employment for personal gain, such as disclosing information to third parties
in exchange for 2 consulting fee (e. g., expert network firms may try to obtain nonpublic information from employees
VII. Exceptions to this Policy A. Approved Plans Covered Persons may enter into an Approved Plan only when the-they
eommisstorrare not in possession of any material nonpublic information and during an open window period. Actual sales
and purchases under an Approved Plan must follow the terms of the Approved Plan. The Compliance Officer will
approve a contract, instruction or plan only if it complies in all respects with the requirements of Rule 10b5- 1 under the
Exchange Act, including, for example, a minimum cooling- off period (1) for Section 16 (b) Persons that ends on the later
of (a) 90 days following adoption of the Approved Plan or (b) two business days following the disclosure of the Company’
s financial results in a Form 10- K or Form 10- Q for the fiscal quarter in which the Approved Plan was adopted and (2)
for other Covered Persons that ends 30 days following adoption of the Approved Plan. Revocation of Approved Plans will
be subject to the prior review and approval of the Compliance Officer. A person acting in good faith may amend a prior
Approved Plan so long as such amendments are made inside of a quarterly trading window and at a time when the
Approved Plan participant does not possess material, non- public information. Plan amendments must not take effect for
at least 30 days after the plan amendments are made. Under certain circumstances, an Approved Plan must be revoked.
This may include circumstances such as the announcement of a merger or the occurrence of an event that would cause
the transaction either to violate the law or to have an adverse effect on the Company. The Compliance Officer or
administrator of the Company’ s stock plans is authorized to notify the broker in such circumstances, thereby insulating
the insider in the event of revocation. B. Exempted Transactions Covered Persons may enter into the following types of
transactions without regard to whether the trading window is open or closed or whether they are in possession of
material nonpublic information and without obtaining Prior Approval. Transactions with the Company 1. Covered
Persons may receive stock options, shares of restricted stock or similar grants of securities under the Company’ s
employee benefit plans (including elections to acquire stock options in lieu of other compensation) and may cancel or
forfeit options or restricted shares pursuant to the Company’ s plans. 2. Covered Persons may elect to participate in,
cease participation in or purchase securities under a Company employee stock purchase plan, if such a plan is in effect.
3. Covered Persons may exercise stock options by payment the-Exeeutive-of the exercise price in cash at any time (but
may not simultaneously sell the issued shares except in compliance with the terms of this Policy). 4. Covered Persons may
exercise stock options by payment of the exercise price (and / or tax withholding) through the withholding of shares
otherwise issuable under the award (i. e., net exercise) or by way of the delivery / attestation of already- owned shares (i.
e., stock swap). 5. Covered Persons may permit the Company to withhold shares to satisfy tax withholding obligations
upon the vesting of restricted shares. 6. Covered Persons may purchase Company stock under any Company dividend or
distribution reinvestment plan (in each case, a “ DRIP ”) that results from the reinvestment of dividends paid on
Company stock held in a DRIP. This Policy does apply, however, to voluntary purchases of Company stock that result
from additional contributions a Covered Person chooses to make to any DRIP, and to a Covered Person’ s initial election
to participate in a DRIP or increase his or her level of participation in a DRIP. This Policy also applies to the Covered
Person’ s sale of any Company stock purchased pursuant to a DRIP. 1. Covered Persons may transfer shares to an entity
if aet-of fraud,embezzlementtheft— the transfer does not involve a change in the beneficial ownership of the shares, for
example, to an inter vivos trust of which the Covered Person is the sole beneficiary during his or preven-dishonesty-her
lifetime. 2. Covered Persons may effect any transaction specifically authorized in writing , with reference to this Policy,
by the Compliance Officer. VIII. Special Circumstances A. Employee Benefit Plans Covered Persons in possession of
material, nonpublic information should consult with the Compliance Officer before making any decisions relating to
their participation in, or transactions effected under, any of the Company’ s employee benefit plans, e. g. stock purchase
plan, stock option plan, etc. B. 401 (k) Plan Transactions In making elections that involve your Company stock account
(s) under the Company’ s 401 (k) Plan, Covered Persons should observe the following: 1. An election to transfer an
existing account balance in another 401 (k) or IRA fund into your Company stock account, or to transfer a balance in
your Company stock account out of that account into another account, should be regarded as trading in Company
securities and thus subject to this Policy. 2. Taking out a loan from the 401 (k) Plan that decreases the balance in your
Company stock account should be treated as trading in Company securities and thus subject to this Policy. 3. Elections
to change your contributions to the Company stock account should be treated as trading in Company securities and thus
subject to this Policy. C. Mutual Funds 1. Investments in mutual funds or exchange traded funds that invest in a broad
index or sector are not subject to this Policy, even though such funds may also invest in Company securities. D. Post-
Termination Transactions This Policy continues to apply to transactions in the Company’ s securities even after
termination of service to the Company. If a Covered Person is in possession of material nonpublic information when his
or her service terminates, that individual may not trade in Company securities until that information has become public
or is no longer material. In addition, any Covered Person whose service to the Company terminates outside a trading



window may not trade in Company securities until the opening of the next trading window. E. Priority of Statutory or
Regulatory Trading Restrictions The trading prohibitions and restrictions set forth in this Policy are in addition to any
contractual restrictions on the sale of securities or any other prohibitions or restrictions prescribed by federal or state
securities laws and regulations, e. g., short- swing trading by Section 16 (b) Persons or restrictions on the sale of
securities subject to Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933. Any Covered Person who is uncertain whether other
prohibitions or restrictions apply should ask the Compliance Officer. IX. Potential Civil, Criminal and Disciplinary
Sanctions Civil and Criminal Penalties. The consequences of prohibited insider trading or tipping can be severe. Persons
violating insider trading or tipping rules may be required to disgorge the profit made or the loss avoided by trading, pay
the loss suffered by the persons who purchased securities from or sold securities to the insider or tippee, pay civil
penalties or criminal penalties and even serve a jail term. The Company and / or the supervisors of the person violating
the rules may also be required to pay severe civil or criminal penalties and could under certain circumstances be subject
to private lawsuits by contemporaneous traders for damages suffered as a result of illegal aet-insider trading or praetiee<
tipping by persons under the Company’ s control. Company Discipline. Violation of this Policy or federal or state insider
trading or tipping laws by any employee or officer may subject a Covered Person to disciplinary action by the Company
up to and including termination. A violation of the Company’ s Policy is not necessarily the same as a violation of law. In
fact, this Policy is intended to be broader than the law. The Company reserves the right to determine, in its own
discretion and on the basis of the information available to it, whether this Policy has been violated. The Company may
determine that specific conduct violates this Policy, whether or not resulting-in-the conduct also violates the law. It is not
necessary for the Company to await the filing or conclusion of a civil or criminal preseeuntion-action against the alleged
violator before taking disciplinary action. Reporting of Violations. Any Covered Person who violates this Policy or
eonvietion);(b)-the-willful-engaging-any federal or state laws governing insider trading or tipping, or knows of any such
violation by any the-other employee Exeeutive-irmisconduet-which-is-deemed-by-the-Committee-, officer ingood-faith;to-be
materially-infurious-to-the-Company-or director, must report the violation immediately to the Compliance Officer. Upon
learnmg of an-any such Vlolatlon afﬁhate—e%ﬁrbﬁdiaryhe%t-he—eempamf— meﬂe’f&ﬁ-}y—eret-hefw‘rse—ée)—lhu Comphance

E\uum e ()l icer pfeﬂded-and legal counsel w1ll determme what actlons to take Monltorlng The SEC and NYSE
employ sophisticated computer- assisted enforcement techniques to monitor securities trading and detect automatically



unusual trading patterns or volumes, particularly in advance of significant (positive or negative) announcements. Thus,
the odds that unlawful trading will be detected are far greater than is commonly realized. # # #
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the PROG Holdings, Inc. Insider Trading
Policy and agrees to abide by its terms and conditions. SignaturePrint NameDate of Signature EXHIBIT A SECTION 16
—FORM 3, 4 AND 5 POLICY AND FILING REQUIREMENTS The following summarizes the obligations and
restrictions imposed on Section 16 (b) Persons, as defined in Section III of this Policy. Specifically, the memorandum
reflects the Company’ s policy to ensure compliance with the reporting requirements and to help prevent any inadvertent
violations of the federal securities laws, and to avoid even the appearance of trading on inside information. Ownership
Reports Under Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act, Section 16 (b) Persons must file with the SEC reports disclosing the
their ChiefExeeutive-Offteer-holdings of and transactions in the Company’ s equity securities. Form 3 An initial report
on Form 3 must be filed by every Section 16 (b) Person within 10 calendar days of becoming such, disclosing all equity
securities of the Company beneficially owned by the reporting person on the date such person became a Section 16 (b)
Person. Even if no securities are owned on that date, the report must be filed. Form 4 Changes in beneficial ownership
by a Section 16 (b) Person, including dispositions of Company securities by bona fide gifts, must, unless exempt from
reporting or eligible for deferred reporting, be reported on a Form 4 filed within 2 business days after the transaction
has been executed. The fact that a Section 16 (b) Person’ s transactions result in no net change, or the fact that no
securities are owned after the transaction is completed, docs not partieipate-provide a basis for failing to report. If such
change in the-Plan(beneficial ownership results from a purchase or steh-sale of Company securities pursuant to a Rule
10b5- 1 trading plan, other—- the elassifieation-determined-by-* check box ” on Form 4 indicating that thc Committee-trade
was made pursuant to a trading plan must be checked. Form 5 Form 5, a “ clean up ” report due within 45 days after the
close of the Company s ﬁscal year, and must be ﬁled to dlsclose transactlons and holdings exempt {rom prior reporting

—1, as well as transactions and-any-otherkey
emp}eyee-e%&n—and Emp}eyer—w%eﬁs—s?eerﬁea%}y&eﬂgnated-eﬂ—holdmgs that should have been reported previously but

were not. Keeping current with the filing of timely Form 4s, and voluntarily filing early for certain transactions will
eliminate the need to file Form Ss. PROG Holdings, Inc. Insider Trading Policy — Exhibit A attached-hereto-A- 1 Securities
Trading Policies and Procedures Mandatory Pre- Notification Procedure Section 16 (b) Persons, as well as eligible-to
parttetpate-irthe-other Plan-designated persons, are subject to the trading pre- clearance procedures set forth in Section
VI of this Policy. Power of Attorney In order to enable the Company to prepare and file the Forms 4 on a timely basis on
behalf of the Section 16 (b) Persons, it is imperative that all directors and executive officers provide a power of attorney
to the Company. Reportable Transactions All changes in beneficial ownership (not just purchases and sales) must be
reported. Moreover, a person who has ceased to be a director or executive officer must report any non- exempt purchase
or sale after termination of service that occurred within six months of an opposite- way, non- exempt sale or purchase
that took place while the person was a director or executive officer. The reports under Section 16 (a) are intended to
cover all equity securities of the Company beneficially owned by the-Committee-a Section 16 (b) Person, as defined under
applicable SEC rules. A Section 16 (b) Person is deemed to beneficially own any security from which the insider time-te
time—1H4--Good-Reasonshall-mean,-withott-an-can Exeeuntive-derive a direct or indirect pecumary benefit. A Section 16
(b) Person is considered the direct owner of all Company equity securities held in such person ’ s express-written-eonsent;
own name or held jointly with others. A Section 16 (b) Person also is considered thec eeetrrenee-indirect owner of any of
the-foltowing-eireumstanees-within-the-securities from which such person obtains benefits substantially equivalent two- to

{%)-—ye&%peﬂed—fe-l-}emg—ﬂae—those d&te—ol a—eh&ﬁge-rn—eeﬂtre-l-ownershlp Thus, equity securities of the-Company:—{a)yA
material-gimin A-H-th 3 ; her—-- the than-as-aresult-of-Company beneficially owned through

partnershlps, corporatlons, trusts, estates &n—and &emss-—the-—be&rd—base—sa}&w—famlly members may be subject to
reportmg Absent countervanlmg facts, a fee}uet-tefh Sectlon 16 &ﬂﬁrl-&r}y—a-ffeet-rng—et-her—E*eeﬂtﬁes— b) Person *matefia-}
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pant—s-death N ghts S 8 pan P arttetpant-or any othu securities being reported
if there is a reasonable basis for domg so. Derivative Securltles Sectlon 16 (a) requires reporting of all acquisitions and
dispositions of derivative securities by Section 16 (b) perserrPersons shal-have-any-interestin-any-fund-. The term “
derivative securities ” include options, warrants, convertible securities, stock appreciation rights or in-any-speetfie-asset
similar rights. The Company has issued options to its employees to purchase Company common shares from time to

time. These options are derivative securities or-for assets-purposes of Section 16 the-Employers-by-reason-ofany-amounts-or
beﬂeﬁts—pa—yab%e—tmder—ﬂae—P-}aﬂ- ExerCISes and conversions Any-ExeeutiveformerExeeutive; PartieipantformerPartietpant;
v ergretup-of derlvatlve securities are reportable eﬂe—eﬁm@fe—e%ﬁhe—fefegeiﬂg

days after tlm transactlon tn-tefest—e%h-rs—eﬁher—esfa-te—hds been appe-rnfed-executed PROG Holdlngs, -I-n—Inc Insider

Trading Policy — Exhibit A A- 2 Timely Notice to thc Company event-a-guatrdianoreonservator-of the-estate-or-any Trades
It is important that Section 16 (b) pefseﬁ—Persons prepare thelr reports feeerﬁﬁg—ere{a-rm-rﬂg-pa-ymeﬂfs—undu Sectlon 16 (
the-Plan-shall-be-appointed-by-a ) € ; o
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essthg he-elatmand-the-Clatmant-ts A fre h or an extension of the ﬁhng deadhnes, and the
SEC can take enforcement action against violators of the ﬁhng requirements. In addition, the Company is required to
report the number of late filings of reports under Section 16 (a) in the Company’ s proxy statement for its annual
meeting and to identify the Section 16 (b) Person (s) who made the late filings. To avoid liability and embarrassing
disclosures of this nature, all directors and executive officers should avail themselves of the assistance of the Company in
satisfying the reporting requirements. In addition to obtaining pre- clearance for their trades, Section 16 (b) Persons
should provide detailed trade information to the Company in order for it to effect the Form 4 filing of the Section 16 (b)
Person’ s behalf within the short two business day timeframe. It is incumbent on Section 16 (b) Persons to notify their
brokers or others executing trades on their behalf that the Section 16 (b) Person is subject to reporting obligations under
Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act, as well as an “ affiliate ” under Rule 144 under the Securities Act. The Section 16 (b)
Person should similarly instruct their broker to provide detailed trade information at the earliest time possible.
Disgorgement priorto-the-end-of the-inttial-ninetyProfits on Short- Swing Transactions Under Section 16 ( 96-b ) day-, any
profit realized by a Section 16 (b) Person on a “ short- swing ” transaction (i. e., 2 non- exempt purchase and sale, or sale
and purchase, of the Company’ s equity securities within a period and-of less than six months) must be disgorged to the
date-Company upon demand by whieh-the Administrator-expeets-to-make-Company or a stockholder acting on the finat
deeistorCompany’ s behalf . By law, Inne-event-wit-the Administrater-be-given-Company cannot waive or release any
claim it may have under Sectlon 16 (b), or enter into an eﬁeﬂﬁeﬁ—enforceable agreement to provide indemnification for

v +86-b ) days-after-. Operation of

Section 16 (b) Liability under Section 16 (b) is 1mposed in a mechanlcal fashlon without regard to the date-en-which-the
Sectlon 16 (b) Person s intent. Good falth therefore, is not a defense All that is necessary for a successful (,ldlm is -ﬁ-rst

show that be—&néersteed—by—lhu Sectlon 16 attante

Person realized profits feﬁhe—demal—a—spee&ﬁe—refereme—te—the—ﬂarrpfeﬁsreﬂ—(sﬁm whteh—t-he—defna-l—ts—based,—a short- swing
transaction. When computing recoverable profits on multlple purchases Wwﬁm
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month per 1od feﬁeﬂng—th&da-t&e-ﬁa—Ghange—m—Geﬂtrel— lhc Gemp&nyshaH—payLeHetm-burse—E*eeuﬁve-courts maximize the

recovery by matching the lowest purchase price with the highest sale price, the next lowest purchase price with the next
highest sale price, and so on. The use of this method makes it possible in some instances for alt-reasonable-eosts-the
Company to recover profits under Section 16 ( b inchadingreasenablelegal-fees-) ineurred-even though the Section 16 (b)
Person sustained a net loss on the transactions. The terms “ purchase ” and “ sale ” are construed to cover a broad range
of transactions. For example, the acquisition of a derivative security and the disposition of the underlying security could
be matched asa “ purchase i and “sale.” Moreover, purchases and sales b\ a Sectlon 16 (b) Person t-he—E—xeeut—we—te

atre-otra nefretarte hePa pan Ve egalp may bc made—upeﬁ—matched w1th transactlons by any
person (such as certain family members) whose securltles are deemed to be beneficially owned by the Section 16 (b)
Person. PROG Holdings, Inc. Insider Trading Policy — Exhibit A A- 3 Limitations on Liability The SEC has mitigated
the impact of Section 16 (b) in some situations by providing exemptions from liability. The most important exemption is
provided by Rule 16b- 3 of the Exchange Act for transactions by directors and executive officers with the Company that
satisfy prescribed conditions. The SEC also has limited the amount of profits recoverable on transactions involving stock
options and the-other Administrator-derivative securities. Further, the courts have indicated that it is permissible for
Section 16 (b) Persons to structure their transactions to avoid the application of Section 16 (b). Before engaging in any
transaction involving the Company’ s securities, Section 16 (b) Persons should therefore consult with the Compliance
Officer to discuss the potential applicability of Section 16 (b). Prohibition of Short Sales Under Section 16 (c) of the
Exchange Act, Section 16 (b) Persons are prohibited from effecting “ short sales ” of the Company’ s equity securities. A
“ short sale ” is one involving securities which the seller does not own at the Company-headquarters-time of sale, or upetn
suehr, if owned, are not delivered within 20 days after the sale or deposited in the mail or other perserrusual channels of
transportation within five days after the sale. Disclaimer This memorandum is only a summary and is not a complete
recitation of Section 16’ s requirements. In view of the complexity of Section 16 and the frequency of changes in the SEC’
s rules and mterpretatlons, directors and executlve ofﬁcers are encouraged to consult w1th counsel as often as may be




Fm&nee—He%émgs—EE%—Preg—Ee&smg—EE%—Vwe—Fm&ne*al—bb@Exhlblt 21 NAME STATE OR COUNTRY OF
INCORPORATIONPROG Holding Company, LLC DelawareVive Financial LLC DelawareProgressive Finance Holdings, LLC

DelawareProg Leasing, LLC DelawareFour Technologies, Inc. DelawarePRG Ventures, Inc. DelawareProg Services, Inc.
DelawarePRGB, Inc. DelawareApprove. Me LLC UtahAM2 Enterprises, LLC UtahPango LLC UtahNPRTO Arizona, LLC
UtahNPRTO California, LLC UtahNPRTO Florida, LLC UtahNPRTO Georgia, LLC UtahNPRTO Illinois, LLC UtahNPRTO
Michigan, LLC UtahNPRTO New York, LLC UtahNPRTO Ohio, LLC UtahNPRTO Texas, LLC UtahNPRTO Mid- West,
LLC UtahNPRTO North- East, LLC UtahNPRTO South- East, LLC UtahNPRTO West, LLC UtahNPRTO Anywhere,
LLCUtahProg International, LLCDelawareNPRTO Puerto Rico, LLCPuerto Rico Exhibit 23 Consent of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements: 1) Registration
Statement (Form S- 8 No. 333- 265601), filed June 15, 2022, 2) Registration Statement (Form S- 8 No. 333- 231463) and Post-
Effective Amendment No. 1 to said Registration Statement, filed October 16, 2020, 3) Registration Statement (Form S- 8 No.
333-225385) and Post- Effective Amendment No. 1 to said Registration Statement, filed October 16, 2020, 4) Registration
Statement (Form S- 8 No. 333- 204014) and Post- Effective Amendment No. 1 to said Registration Statement, filed October 16,
2020, 5) Registration Statement (Form S- 8 No. 333- 171113) and Post- Effective Amendment No. 1 to said Registration
Statement, filed October 16, 2020, 6) Registration Statement (Form S- 8 No. 333- 160357) and Post- Effective Amendment No.
1 to said Registration Statement, filed October 16, 2020, 7) Registration Statement (Form S- 8 No. 333- 123426) and Post-
Effective Amendment No. 1 to said Registration Statement, filed October 16, 2020, and 8) Registration Statement (Form S- 8
No. 333- 76026) and Post- Effective Amendment No. 1 to said Registration Statement, filed October 16, 2020 of our reports
dated February 2+-19 , 2624-2025 , with respect to the consolidated financial statements of PROG Holdings, Inc. and the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of PROG Holdings, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10- K) of
PROG Holdings, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 . Salt Lake City, UT Exhibit 31. 1 CERTIFICATION I,
Steven A. Michaels, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10- K of PROG Holdings, Inc.; 2. Based on my
knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing
and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a y-.
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; b . Designed such
internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; ¢ 3. Evaluated the effectiveness of
the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and d ¥
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant' s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and 5. The
registrant’ s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions): a 3. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and b . Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’ s internal controls over financial reporting. Date: February 2+-19 , 2624-2025 / s / Steven
A. Michaels Steven A. Michaels Chief Executive Officer Exhibit 31. 2 I, Brian Garner, certify that: d 3. Disclosed in this report
any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant' s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to
materially affect the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and Date: February 2+19 , 2624-2025 / s / Brian
Garner Brian Garner Chief Financial Officer Exhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 I, Steven A. Michaels, Chief
Executive Officer of PROG Holdings, Inc. (the" Company"), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of
2002, 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, that: (1) The Annual Report on Form 10- K of the Company for the annual period ended
December 31, 2023-2024 (the" Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act



of 1934 (15 U. S. C. 78m); and (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company. Exhibit 32. 2 I, Brian Garner, Chief Financial Officer of PROG Holdings,
Inc. (the" Company"), certify, pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, that: Date:
February 24-19 , 2624-2025 / s / Brian Garner Brian GarnerChief Financial Officer Exhibit-97-Approved-by-the-Compensation










